
 

Document Number: 2515814 

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM 
CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, 
ON MONDAY, MAY 6, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

 
 

Watch Livestream at cnv.org/LiveStreaming 
View complete Agenda Package at cnv.org/CouncilMeetings 

 
The City of North Vancouver respectfully acknowledges that this Council meeting is held on the traditional 

and unceded territories of the Skwxwú7mesh (Squamish) and Səl̓ílwətaɬ (Tsleil-Waututh) Nations. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, May 6, 2024 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, April 22, 2024 
 
3. Special Council Meeting Minutes, April 29, 2024 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items *4, *5, *6 and *7 are listed in the Consent Agenda and may be considered 
separately or in one motion. 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
*4. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2023, No. 8959” (David 

Iaquinta / Cobblestone Homes Ltd., 259 East 23rd Street, CD-750) 
 
*5. “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9015” (2024 

Capital Plan Funding) 
 
*6. “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017” 
 
*7. “Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, No. 8640, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023” 

(Short-Term Rentals and Other Residential Accommodation Businesses) 
 
REPORTS 
 
8. 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
9. Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management,  

CD-760) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 
116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165) 

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – May 6, 2024 Page 2 
 

 

BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
10. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960” (Three 

Shores Management, 120-128 East 14th Street, CD-760 (the Density Receiver 
Site)) and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue,  
116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165) 

 
REPORT 
 
11. Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood House and 

City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 – Petition Results 
 
BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
12. “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 

2024, No. 9006” 
 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – May 6, 2024 Page 3 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, May 6, 2024 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, April 22, 2024 
 
3. Special Council Meeting Minutes, April 29, 2024 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
The Public Input Period is addressed in sections 12.20 to 12.28 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, 
No. 8500.”  The time allotted for each speaker addressing Council during the Public Input Period is 2 
minutes, with the number of speakers set at 5 persons.  Speakers’ comments will be audio recorded, 
as well as live-streamed on the City’s website, and will form part of the public record. 
 
Speakers may only speak on the same matter once in a 3-month period. 
 
Speakers during the Public Input Period are permitted to join the meeting in person in the Council 
Chamber or electronically via Webex.  There are 2 ways to sign up to speak during the Public Input 
Period. 
 

1) IN PERSON:  Speakers who choose to participate in person must sign the speaker list located 
outside the Council Chamber between 5:30 and 5:50pm on the day of the Council meeting. 

 
2) ELECTRONICALLY VIA WEBEX:  Speakers who choose to participate electronically must 

pre-register by 12:00 noon on the day of the Council meeting by completing the online form at 
cnv.org/PublicInputPeriod, or by phoning 604-990-4234.  These pre-registrants will receive 
instructions by email or phone on the afternoon before the Council meeting. 

 
If a speaker has written material to accompany their comments, the material must be sent to the 
Corporate Officer at clerks@cnv.org no later than 12:00 noon on the day of the Council Meeting. 
 
The Public Input Period provides an opportunity for comment only and places the speaker’s concern 
on record, without the expectation of a response from Council.  Speakers must comply with the 
General Rules of Conduct set out in section 5.1 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500” and 
may not speak with respect to items as listed in section 12.25(2), including Zoning Bylaws for which a 
Public Hearing will not be held or is prohibited under section 464 of the Local Government Act. 
 
Speakers are requested not to address matters that refer to items from a concluded Public 
Hearing/Public Meeting or to Public Hearings, Public Meetings and Committee meetings when those 
matters are scheduled on the same evening’s agenda, as an opportunity for public input is provided 
when the particular item comes forward for discussion. 
 
Please address the Mayor as “Your Worship” or “Mayor, followed by their surname”.  Councillors 
should be addressed as “Councillor, followed by their surname”.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – May 6, 2024 Page 4 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items *4, *5, *6 and *7 are listed in the Consent Agenda and may be considered 
separately or in one motion. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
*4. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2023, No. 8959” (David 

Iaquinta / Cobblestone Homes Ltd., 259 East 23rd Street, CD-750) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2023, No. 8959” 
(David Iaquinta / Cobblestone Homes Ltd., 259 East 23rd Street, CD-750) be 
adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the 
corporate seal. 

 
*5. “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9015” (2024 

Capital Plan Funding) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9015” 
(2024 Capital Plan Funding) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate 
Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
*6. “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017” 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and 
Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
*7. “Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, No. 8640, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023” 

(Short-Term Rentals and Other Residential Accommodation Businesses) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, No. 8640, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 
9023” (Short-Term Rentals and Other Residential Accommodation Businesses) 
be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the 
corporate seal. 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – May 6, 2024 Page 5 
 

 

REPORTS 
 
8. 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements – File: 05-1680-04-0001/2023 
 

Report: Chief Financial Officer, April 24, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated April 24, 2024, 
entitled “2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements”: 
 
THAT, in accordance with Section 167 of the Community Charter, Council accept 
the City of North Vancouver Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2023. 

 
9. Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management,  

CD-760) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 
116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165)  
– File: 08-3400-20-0075/1 
 
Report: Planner 3, April 24, 2024 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 3, dated April 24, 2024, entitled 
“Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, 
CD-760) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue,  
116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165)”: 
 
THAT the application submitted by Three Shores Management, to rezone the 
property located at 120-128 East 14th Street from a C-1B Zone to a 
Comprehensive Development Zone and to amend the CD-165 Zone to facilitate a 
density transfer, be considered with no Public Hearing held, in accordance with 
the Local Government Act, section 464(3) [public hearing prohibited]; 
 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960” 
(Three Shores Management, 120-128 East 14th Street, CD-760 (the Density 
Receiver Site)) and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale 
Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165) be 
considered for first, second and third readings with no Public Hearing held, in 
accordance with the Local Government Act, section 464(3) [public hearing 
prohibited]; 
 
THAT the community benefits listed in the report section “Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits” be secured through agreements at the applicant’s expense 
and to the satisfaction of staff; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the required 
legal agreements including an encroachment agreement to permit solar shades, 
which are permanently affixed to the proposed building and encroach over City 
property, and any other necessary documentation to give effect to the motion. 
 
Item 10 refers. 



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – May 6, 2024 Page 6 
 

 

BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
10. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960” (Three 

Shores Management, 120-128 East 14th Street, CD-760 (the Density Receiver 
Site)) and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue,  
116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960” 
(Three Shores Management, 120-128 East 14th Street, CD-760 (the Density 
Receiver Site)) and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale 
Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165) be given first 
and second readings; 
 
AND THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960” 
(Three Shores Management, 120-128 East 14th Street, CD-760 (the Density 
Receiver Site)) and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale 
Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165) be given third 
reading. 

 
REPORT 
 
11. Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood House and 

City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 – Petition Results 
– File: 09-4250-20-0008/1 

 
Report: Manager, Legislative and Election Services, and Senior Manager, 

Engagement and Communications, April 24, 2024 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Legislative and Election Services, and 
the Senior Manager, Engagement and Communications, dated April 24, 2024, 
entitled “Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood 
House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 – Petition 
Results”: 
 
THAT the Acting Corporate Officer’s Certification for the Alternative Approval 
Process Opportunity regarding “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City 
Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006” be received and filed with the 
Inspector of Municipalities; 
 
AND THAT “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006” be considered for final adoption. 
 
Item 12 refers. 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – May 6, 2024 Page 7 
 

 

BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
12. “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 

2024, No. 9006” 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006” be adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer 
and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
The Public Clarification Period is limited to 10 minutes in total and is an opportunity for 
the public to ask a question regarding process or clarification on an item on the Regular 
Council Agenda. The Public Clarification Period concludes after 10 minutes and the 
Regular Council Meeting reconvenes. 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
ADJOURN 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Document Number: 2513362 V1 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ELECTRONICALLY (HYBRID) FROM CITY 
HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON 
MONDAY, APRIL 22, 2024 

 
 
PRESENT 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor J. McIlroy* 
Councillor S. Shahriari 
Councillor T. Valente 

*participated electronically 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
B. Pearce, Deputy CAO  
P. DeJong, Acting Corporate Officer 
J. Peters, Manager, Legislative and Election Services 
L. Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 
D. Van Heerden, Manager, Financial Planning 
P. Manarovici, Controller 
H. Granger, City Solicitor 
K. Magnusson, Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment 
D. Hutch, Deputy Director, Parks and Public Spaces 
J. Hall, Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 
D. Priestly, Acting Manager, Parks and Natural Spaces 
S. Galloway, Director, Planning and Development 
T. Ryce, Chief Building Official 
R. Skene, Deputy Director, Civic Development & Strategic Initiatives 
D. Foldi, Sr. Project Manager 
M. Chan, Deputy Director, Real Estate and Economic Development 
S. Smith, Manager, Economic Development 
B. Lin, Economic and Business Development Coordinator 
E. Doran, Director, People and Culture 
A. Gibbs, Sr. Manager, Communications and Engagement 
S. Balraj, Sr. Manager, Information Technology 
H. van Gelderen, Legislative Services Advisor 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, April 22, 2024 
 

THAT the Regular Agenda of April 22, 2024 be amended by moving Item 12 – “Public 
Hearing Prohibition for Rezonings for Residential Developments” for consideration 
after Proclamations; 
 
AND THAT the Agenda, as amended, be approved. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-22/1 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2024 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, April 15, 2024 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-22/2 

PROCLAMATION 
 
Mayor Buchanan declared the following proclamation: 
 

Day of Mourning – April 28, 2024 
 
REPORT 
 
12. Public Hearing Prohibition for Rezonings for Residential Developments 
 – File: 06-2210-01-0001/2024 
 

Report: City Solicitor, April 16, 2024  
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the City Solicitor, dated April 16, 2024, entitled “Public 
Hearing Prohibition for Rezonings for Residential Developments”: 
 
THAT the report of the City Solicitor, dated April 16, 2024, entitled “Public Hearing 
Prohibition for Rezonings for Residential Developments”, be received for information. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

R2024-04-22/12 
 

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 

• Donald Piercy, HUB Cycling, North Vancouver, spoke in support of Item 5 – Upper 
Levels Greenway Update and Lonsdale Highway Overpass Mobility Improvements 
Project Initiation, and requested separate bike paths through Tempe Heights Park. 

• Garry Nishimura, North Vancouver, spoke regarding his disappointment in not being 
able to speak to a particular development application due to recent changes in 
Provincial legislation. 

• Richard Short, North Vancouver, spoke regarding improved communication and 
transparency from Council members regarding development applications. 

• Sue Knaap, North Vancouver, spoke in opposition to increased density, traffic 
congestion and a decline in the environment from increased pollution in Central 
Lonsdale. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT the recommendation listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 3 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2024 

START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
3. “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016” 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Back 
 

THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2024 to 2028 Bylaw, 2024, No. 9016” be adopted, 
signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY BY CONSENT) 

R2024-04-22/3 
 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

Economic Strategy – Manager, Economic Development 
 

The Manager, Economic Development, provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding the 
“Economic Strategy” and responded to questions from Council. 
 
Councillor Girard left the meeting at 7:21 pm and returned at 7:23 pm. 
 
REPORT 
 
4. Economic Strategy – File: 13-6750-20-0003/1 
 

Report: Manager, Economic Development, April 10, 2024 
 
Moved by Councillor Shahriari, seconded by Councillor Girard 
  

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Economic Development, dated April 10, 
2024, entitled “Economic Strategy”: 

 
 THAT the City of North Vancouver Economic Strategy be endorsed; 
 

AND THAT staff report back to Council with annual updates regarding progress 
through the Annual Municipal Report process. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-22/4 

 
PRESENTATION 
 

Upper Levels Greenway Update and Incorporation of the Lonsdale Highway Crossing: 
Project Initiation – Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure 
 

The Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure, and Director, Engineering, Parks and 
Environment, provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding the “Upper Levels Greenway 
Update and Incorporation of the Lonsdale Highway Crossing: Project Initiation” and 
responded to questions from Council. 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 4 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2024 

REPORT 
 
5. Upper Levels Greenway Update and Lonsdale Highway Overpass Mobility 

Improvements Project Initiation – File: 16-8350-20-0046/1 
 

Report: Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure, April 10, 2024 
 

Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Public Realm Infrastructure, dated April 10, 
2024, entitled “Upper Levels Greenway Update and Lonsdale Highway Overpass 
Mobility Improvements Project Initiation”: 

 
THAT the community’s preferred alignment for the Upper Levels Greenway project be 
endorsed; 
 
THAT staff be directed to complete options analysis, concept design and public 
engagement for the Lonsdale Highway Overpass Mobility Improvements; 
 
AND THAT staff be directed to integrate analysis and concept design work of the 
Lonsdale Highway Overpass Mobility Improvements with the Phase 1 concept of the 
Upper Levels Greenway to develop a coordinated mobility solution. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-22/5 

 
Mayor Buchanan declared a recess at 8:34 pm and reconvened the meeting at 8:41 pm. 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

Business Licensing of Short-Term Rentals – Manager, Economic Development 
 

The Manager, Economic Development, and Deputy Director, Real Estate and Economic 
Development, provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding “Business Licensing of Short-
Term Rentals” and responded to questions from Council. 
 
REPORT 
 
6. Business Licensing of Short-Term Rentals – File: 13-6750-10-0001/1 
 

Report: Manager, Economic Development, April 10, 2024 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Economic Development, dated April 10, 
2024, entitled “Business Licensing of Short-Term Rentals”: 
 
THAT “Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, No. 8640, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023” 
(Short-Term Rentals and Other Residential Accommodation Businesses) be 
considered;  

Continued… 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 5 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2024 

REPORT – Continued 
 
6. Business Licensing of Short-Term Rentals – File: 13-6750-10-0001/1 – Continued 
 

AND THAT staff seek redirection of the portion of the Municipal and Regional District 
Tax collected on Short-Term Rentals to the City’s Affordable Housing Reserve Fund 
for the purpose of supporting affordable housing initiatives. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-22/6 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
7. "Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, No. 8640, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023" 

(Short-Term Rentals and Other Residential Accommodation Businesses) 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT “Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, No. 8640, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023” 
(Short-Term Rentals and Other Residential Accommodation Businesses) be given first 
and second readings; 
 
AND THAT “Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, No. 8640, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, 
No. 9023” (Short-Term Rentals and Other Residential Accommodation Businesses) be 
given third reading. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-22/7 

 
REPORT 
 
8. 2024 Appropriations #1 – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2024 
 
 Report: Chief Financial Officer, April 10, 2024 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Back 

 
PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated April 10, 2024, entitled 
“2024 Appropriations #1”: 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2405) an amount of $6,635,184 be appropriated from 
the General Capital Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2406) an amount of $42,936 be appropriated from the 
Computer Equipment Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2407) an amount of $23,568,121 be appropriated from 
the Civic Amenity Harry Jerome Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 
Capital Plan; 

Continued… 
 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 6 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2024 

REPORT – Continued 
 
8. 2024 Appropriations #1 – File: 05-1705-30-0019/2024 – Continued 
 

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2408) an amount of $2,746,550 be appropriated from 
the Civic Amenity Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2409) an amount of $185,000 be appropriated from the 
Carbon Fund Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2410) an amount of $320,000 be appropriated from the 
Tax Sale Land Interest Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital 
Plan; 
 
THAT (Funding Appropriation #2411) an amount of $640,000 be appropriated from the 
Growing Community Reserve for the purpose of funding the 2024-2028 Capital Plan; 
 
THAT “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9015” 
(2024 Capital Plan Funding), a Bylaw to appropriate an amount of $49,500 from DCC 
(Parks) Reserve Fund to fund 2024-2028 Capital Plan, be considered; 
 
AND THAT should any of the amounts remain unexpended as at December 31, 2027, 
the unexpended balances shall be returned to the credit of the respective reserves. 

 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

R2024-04-22/8 
 

BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
9. “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9015” (2024 

Capital Plan Funding) 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 
 

THAT “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9015” 
(2024 Capital Plan Funding) be given first and second readings; 

 
AND THAT “Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9015” 
(2024 Capital Plan Funding) be given third reading. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-22/9 

 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 7 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2024 

REPORT 
 
10. 2024 Tax Rates Bylaw – File: 05-1970-05-0005/2024 
 
 Report: Chief Financial Officer, April 10, 2024 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 

 
PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated April 10, 2024, entitled 
“2024 Tax Rates Bylaw”: 
 
THAT “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017” be considered. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-22/10 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
11. “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017” 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 
 

THAT “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017” be given first and second readings; 
 
AND THAT “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017” be given third reading. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-22/11 

 
PUBLIC CLARIFICATION PERIOD 
 
Mayor Buchanan declared a recess at 9:44 pm for the Public Clarification Period and 
reconvened the meeting immediately after. 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
13. Tennis Feasibility Study – File: 01-0220-01-0001/2023 
 
 Inquiry by Councillor Valente 
 
Councillor Valente inquired of Mayor Buchanan regarding the staff approach and scope of 
work for the Tennis Feasibility Study. Mayor Buchanan advised that this matter has been 
forwarded to staff for a report back to Council. 
 
14. Pedestrian Interval Intersections – File: 01-0220-01-0001/2023 
 
 Inquiry by Councillor Valente 
 
Councillor Valente inquired of Mayor Buchanan regarding the number of Leading Pedestrian 
Interval (LPI) intersections in the City. Mayor Buchanan advised that this matter has been 
forwarded to staff for a report back to Council. 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 8 Regular Council Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2024 

NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Nil. 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
Nil. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Shahriari, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:48 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Acting Corporate Officer” 
____________________________________ 
ACTING CORPORATE OFFICER 



Document Number: 2514772 V1  

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD IN 
CONFERENCE ROOM A, CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, 
NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON MONDAY, APRIL 29, 2024 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor J. McIlroy 
Councillor S. Shahriari 
Councillor T. Valente 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
P. DeJong, Acting Corporate Officer 
 
 

 
The meeting was called to order at 5:33 pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Shahriari 
 
1. Special Council Meeting Agenda, April 29, 2024 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
R2024-04-29/1 

 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 

 
THAT Council recess to the Special Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, 
pursuant to the Community Charter, Section 90(1)(a) [personal information] and 
90(1)(c) [employee relations], and where required, Council considers that the matters 
could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the City if they were held in 
public. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Special Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, at 5:34 pm 
and reconvened at 7:07 pm. 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Special Council Meeting Minutes of April 29, 2024  

REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
Moved by Councillor Shahriari, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

THAT the following item from the Special Committee of the Whole (Closed Session), 
of April 29, 2024, be ratified: 
 

2. Personnel Matter 
 
Report: Mayor Buchanan, April 29, 2024 

 
PURSUANT to the report of Mayor Buchanan, dated April 29, 2024, regarding a 
personnel matter: 

 
THAT the wording of the resolution and the report of Mayor Buchanan, dated April 29, 
2024, remain in the Closed session. 

R2024-04-29/2 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:08 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Acting Corporate Officer” 
__________________________________ 
ACTING CORPORATE OFFICER 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2023, No. 8959 Document: 2330428-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8959 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2023, No. 8959” (David Iaquinta / Cobblestone Homes Ltd., 259 
East 23rd Street, CD-750). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lands currently having a civic address of 259 East 
23rd Street and legally described below as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-750 (Comprehensive Development 750 Zone): 

 
PID: 011-144-815 LOT 12 BLOCK 208 DISTRICT LOT 546 PLAN 5481 

 
from zone RS-1. 

 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following Comprehensive Development  Zone to Section 1101 in numerical 
order:  

 
CD-750 Comprehensive Development 750 Zone (259 East 23rd Street) 
 
In the CD-750 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the RT-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) One Principal Building containing a maximum of three dwelling units shall be 

permitted on one Lot; 
 

(2) The permitted Uses on the Lot shall be limited to: 
 

(a) One-Unit Residential Use, subject to Section 506(2) of this Bylaw; 
(b) Two-Unit Residential Use, subject to Section 506(2) of this Bylaw; 
(c) Townhouse Residential Use, subject to Section 506(2) of this Bylaw; 
(d) Accessory Home Occupation Use, subject to Sections 507(6), (7), and (8) 

of this Bylaw;  
(e)  Accessory Home Office Use; and 
(f)  Accessory Off-Street Parking Use; 

 
(3) Gross Floor Area combined and in total, shall not exceed 0.5 times the Lot Area, 

except that: 
 

(a) Basement floor area may be excluded from Gross Floor Area, up to a 
maximum of 167 square metres; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2023, No. 8959 Document: 2330428-v1 

(4) Lot Coverage of the Principal Building shall not exceed 35%. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 24th day of July, 2023. 

READ a second time on the 24th day of July, 
2023. 

READ a third time on the 24th day of July, 2023. 

APPROVED pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the 
Transportation Act on the 3rd day of November, 
2023. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2023. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9015 Document: 2503270-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9015 

A Bylaw to authorize the expenditure of monies from the 
Development Cost Charge (Parks) Reserve Fund 

for the 2024 Capital Plan Appropriations. 

WHEREAS the entire City is listed in “Development Cost Charges Bylaw, 2016, No. 8471” as an 
area where development cost charges for parks will be levied; 
 
AND WHEREAS the development of park land is a capital cost permitted to be paid using 
Development Cost Charge funds under Section 566 of the Local Government Act; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Development Cost Charge 

(Parks) Reserve Fund Bylaw, 2024, No. 9015” (2024 Capital Plan Funding). 
 
2. The following amount is hereby appropriated from the Development Cost Charge (Parks) 

Reserve Fund for the purpose of funding: 
  

A. $49,500 for the “1600 Eastern Avenue Park Construction” project. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 22nd day of April, 2024. 

READ a second time on the 22nd day of April, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the 22nd day of April, 
2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
ACTING CORPORATE OFFICER 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017 Document: 2499888-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9017 

A Bylaw to impose property value taxes on land and improvements in the 
City of North Vancouver for the year 2024. 

WHEREAS it is provided under Section 197(1) of the Community Charter being, that the Council 
must, each year after adoption of the financial plan but before the 15th day of May, subject to the 
provisions and restrictions of the Community Charter contained, pass a bylaw to impose property 
value taxes on all land and improvements according to the assessed value thereof, for the 
purpose enumerated and set forth in Section 197(1) of the Community Charter; 
 
WHEREAS the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver deems it necessary 
and expedient to pass a bylaw for imposing a property value tax on all taxable land and 
improvements, according to the assessed value thereof, on the last Revised Assessment roll for 
The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, the rates thereinafter imposed and levied for 
purpose hereinafter stated; 
 
WHEREAS for General and Debt purposes, according to the last Revised Assessment Roll of the 
City, the amount of the assessed value of the taxable land and taxable improvements is 
$33,577,876,823; 
 
AND WHEREAS for the Regional Hospital purposes, according to the last Revised Assessment 
roll of the City, the amount of the assessed value of the taxable land and taxable improvements 
is $33,601,226,323; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Tax Rates Bylaw, 2024, No. 

9017”. 
 
2. The following rates are hereby imposed and levied for the year 2024: 
 

A. For all lawful general purposes of the municipality on the assessed value of land and 
improvements taxable for general municipal purposes, rates appearing on Schedule 
“A” attached hereto and forming a part hereof. 
 

B. For the storm drainage purposes on the assessed value of land and improvements 
taxable for general municipal purposes, rates appearing on Schedule “B” attached 
hereto and forming a part hereof. 
 

C. For the eco levy purposes on the assessed value of land and improvements taxable 
for general municipal purposes, rates appearing on Schedule “C” attached hereto and 
forming a part hereof. 
 

D. For the City’s appropriate share of the monies required for the operating fund of the 
Metro Vancouver Regional District for the year 2024, on the assessed value of land 
and improvements taxable for Regional Hospital District purposes, rates appearing on 
Schedule “D” attached hereto and forming a part hereof. 

  



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017 Document: 2499888-v1 

3. The minimum amount of taxation upon a parcel of real property shall be One Hundred 
Dollars ($100.00) for property owners 65 years of age and over and Three Hundred and 
Fifty Dollars ($350.00) for property owners under 65 years of age. 

 
 

READ a first time on the 22nd day of April, 2024. 

READ a second time on the 22nd day of April, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the 22nd day of April, 
2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
ACTING CORPORATE OFFICER 

 
  



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017 Document: 2499888-v1 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

2024 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 
 
 

 
Property Class     Municipal General 
 
 
1. Residential       1.65756 
 
2. Utilities     37.47356 
 
4. Major Industry    25.76307 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap) 25.76307 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap 21.07888 
 for new investment) 
 
5. Light Industry      5.31567 
 
6. Business       5.31567 
 
8. Recreation/Non Profit     1.89010 
 
  



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017 Document: 2499888-v1 

SCHEDULE “B” 
 

2024 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 
 
 

 
Property Class Storm Drainage 
 
 
1. Residential     0.08415 
 
2. Utilities     1.90238 
 
4. Major Industry    1.30789 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap) 1.30789 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap        1.07009 

for new investment) 
 
5. Light Industrial     0.26985 
 
6. Business     0.26985 
 
8. Recreation/Non Profit   0.09595 
 
  



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017 Document: 2499888-v1 

SCHEDULE “C” 
 

2024 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 
 
 

 
Property Class     Eco Levy 
 
 
1. Residential     0.02760 
 
2. Utilities     0.62406 
 
4. Major Industry    0.42904 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap) 0.42904 
 
4. Major Industry (With Provincial Cap 0.35103 
 for new investment) 
 
5. Light Industry     0.08852 
 
6. Business     0.08852 
 
8. Recreation/Non Profit   0.03148 
 
  



The Corporation of the City North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9017 Document: 2499888-v1 

SCHEDULE “D” 
 

2024 Tax Rates ($’s of tax per $1,000 taxable value) 
 
 

 
Property Class                            Metro Vancouver Regional District 
 
 
       
 
1. Residential     0.05718 
 
2. Utilities     0.20011 
 
4. Major Industry    0.19439 
 
5. Light Industry     0.19439 
 
6. Business     0.14008 
 
8. Recreation/Non Profit   0.05717 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023 Document: 2491666-v3 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9023 

A Bylaw to amend “Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, No. 8640” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, 

No. 8640, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023” (Short-Term Rentals and Other 
Residential Accommodation Businesses). 

 
2. “Business Licence Bylaw, 2018, No. 8640” is amended as follows: 
 

A. In Part 3 – Definitions: 
 

(1) By deleting the definitions of “Apartment House” and “Building Rentals”. 
 

(2) By replacing “Bed and Breakfast” with “Accessory Bed and Breakfast” wherever 
it appears in the Bylaw. 

 
(3) By deleting the definition of “Rooming House” and replacing it with the following 

definition, in alphabetical order: 
 

“Accessory Dormitory Use” means a building that is used for renting or leasing 
rooms without cooking facilities to students attending an educational institution 
located on the same parcel. 

 
(4) By replacing “Rooming House” with “Accessory Dormitory Use” wherever it 

appears in the Bylaw. 
 

(5) By adding the following definitions in alphabetical order: 
 

“Accessory Boarding – Long Term” means a portion of a Dwelling Unit that is 
used for the purpose of gain or profit by renting or leasing rooms, without cooking 
facilities, for 90 or more consecutive days, in accordance with the limitations set 
out in Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700 as amended or replaced from time to time. 

 
“Accessory Boarding – Short Term” means a portion of a Dwelling Unit that is 
used for the purpose of gain or profit by renting or leasing rooms, without cooking 
facilities, for less than 90 consecutive days, in accordance with the limitations set 
out in Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700 as amended or replaced from time to time. 

 
 “Commercial Rental” means leasing, letting or renting offices, suites or rooms 
for non residential accommodation purposes. No Person shall be required to pay 
a Commercial Rental Licence fee for premises occupied for the purpose of their 
business provided they are licensed for a business other than Commercial 
Rental. 

 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023 Document: 2491666-v3 

“Dwelling Unit” means one or more habitable rooms designed, occupied or 
intended to be occupied for independent residential accommodation of one or 
more persons, containing: toilet, bathroom, sleeping and living areas, and 
cooking facilities. 

 
“Principal Residence” means the residence in which an individual resides for at 
least 183 days per year. 

 
“Residential Accommodation Business” means Accessory Bed and Breakfast; 
Accessory Boarding – Long Term; Accessory Boarding – Short Term; 
Residential Rental – Long Term; and Residential Rental - Short Term. 

 
“Residential Rental – Long Term” means the rental of a Dwelling Unit for 
accommodation for 90 or more consecutive days. 

 
“Residential Rental – Short Term” means the rental of a Dwelling Unit for 
accommodation for less than 90 consecutive days. 

 
B. By deleting section 505 and replacing it with the following: 
 

505 Residential Accommodation Business 
 

Every person carrying on the Business of or operating a Residential 
Accommodation Business shall: 

 
(1) Install and maintain in good working order a fire extinguisher of not less 

than a five pound ABC class. Such fire extinguisher is to be mounted in a 
visible area of the kitchen; 

 
(2) Post an evacuation plan in a visible area at the main entry/ exit, and clearly 

indicate the contact information (accessible 24/7) for the operator 
responsible for the rental premises; 

 
(3) Comply with life safety requirements to the satisfaction of the Municipality’s 

Chief Building Official for use of a Primary Dwelling Unit, an Accessory 
Secondary Suite, an Accessory Dwelling Unit, and/or an Accessory Lock-
Off Unit, for rental purposes. The requirements for compliance may include 
but may not be limited to: 

 
(a) Install and maintain in good working order interconnected smoke 

alarms, including where applicable, carbon monoxide detectors; 
(b) Comply with requirements for bedroom window egress; and 
(c) Comply with requirements for access to the accessory unit by the 

Municipality’s Fire Department; 
 

(4) Comply with the British Columbia Building Code to the satisfaction of the 
Municipality’s Chief Building Official for any changes, upgrades or 
improvements made to a building; 

 
(5) Carry on no more than one Residential Accommodation Business at a time, 

per Dwelling Unit. 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023 Document: 2491666-v3 

505A Accessory Bed and Breakfast 
 

Every Person carrying on the Business of or operating an Accessory Bed and 
Breakfast shall: 

 
(1) Only carry on the Business in their Principal Residence; 

 
(2) Obtain the written approval of the property owner and Strata Corporation, 

if applicable and provide evidence of written approval to the City upon 
request; 

 
(3) Provide to the City the contact information for a person who must be able 

to respond to an inquiry or complaint while paying guests are hosted at the 
premises; 

 
(4) Maintain and provide to the City on request a list of the dates, duration, and 

group size of all bookings for the Bed and Breakfast. 
 

505B Accessory Boarding – Long Term 
 

Every Person carrying on the Business of or operating Accessory Boarding – 
Long Term shall: 

 
(1) Only carry on the Business in their Principal Residence; 

 
(2) Obtain the written approval of the property owner and Strata Corporation, 

if applicable and provide evidence of written approval to the City upon 
request. 

 
505C Accessory Boarding – Short Term  

 
Every Person carrying on the Business of or operating Accessory Boarding – 
Short Term shall: 

 
(1) Only carry on the Business in their Principal Residence; 

 
(2) Obtain the written approval of the property owner and Strata Corporation, 

if applicable and provide evidence of written approval to the City upon 
request; 

 
(3) Provide to the City the contact information for a person who must be able 

to respond to an inquiry or complaint while boarders are hosted at the 
premises; 

 
(4) Maintain and provide to the City on request a list of the dates, duration, and 

number of boarders accommodated at the premises. 
 

505D Residential Rentals – Long Term 
 
(1) Every Person carrying on the Business of or operating Residential Rentals- 

Long Term shall obtain the written approval of the property owner and  
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023 Document: 2491666-v3 

Strata Corporation, if applicable and provide evidence of written approval 
to the City upon request; 
 

(2) Any Person who carries on the Business of or operates Non Market Rental 
Housing, or a Residential Rental – Long Term business that is limited to 
one Dwelling Unit, shall be exempt from the requirement to obtain a 
business licence. 

 
505E Residential Rentals – Short Term 
 
Every Person carrying on the Business of or operating Residential Rentals – 
Short Term shall: 

 
(1) Only carry on the Business in their Principal Residence or Dwelling Unit on 

the same legal parcel as their Principal Residence; 
 

(2) Require a separate Licence for the Principal Residence and Dwelling Unit 
on the same legal parcel, if applicable; 

 
(3) Obtain the written approval of the property owner and Strata Corporation, 

if applicable and provide evidence of written approval to the City upon 
request; 

 
(4) Provide to the City the contact information for a person who must be able 

to respond to an inquiry or complaint while paying guests are hosted at the 
premises; 

 
(5) Maintain and provide to the City on request a list of the dates, duration, and 

group size of all bookings for the premises. 
 
C. By deleting the following Licence Types and City Codes from Schedule “A”, NAICS 

Code 53:  
 

Building Rental – Commercial 5310 
Building Rental – Residential 5311 

 
D. By replacing the words “Rooming and Boarding House” with “Accessory Dormitory 

Use” in Schedule “A”, Category Accommodation and Food Service, NAICS Code 72.  
 
E. By adding the following licence types to Schedule “A”: 
 

Real Estate, Rental and 
Leasing 

53 Commercial Rental 53112 

Real Estate, Rental and 
Leasing 

53 Residential Rental – Long Term 531113 

Real Estate, Rental and 
Leasing 

53 Residential Rental – Short Term 531111 

Accommodation and Food 
Service 

72 Accessory Boarding – Long Term 721198 

Accommodation and Food 
Service 

72 Accessory Boarding – Short Term 72131 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9023 Document: 2491666-v3 

F. By adding the following to Schedule “B” Fees: 
 

Business 
Code 

Business Classification Fee or Fee Table (Schedule 
“C”) 

531113 Residential Rental – Long Term $75 per dwelling unit (up to 5); 
$25 for each subsequent unit 

531111 Residential Rental – Short Term $550 
721198 Accessory Boarding – Long Term $122 
72131 Accessory Boarding – Short Term $250 

 
G. By deleting the following from Schedule “C” Fees: 
 

C. Building Rentals 
 
 and replacing it with the following:  
 

C. Commercial Rental 
 
H. By deleting the following from Schedule “C”, Table III - Units: 
 

Apartment House  for each suite   $ 19.00 
Boarding House   for each room  $ 10.50 

 
 

READ a first time on the 22nd day of April, 2024. 

READ a second time on the 22nd day of April, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the 22nd day of April, 
2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
ACTING CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



To: 

From: 

/ ~ M 
Department Di rector CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer 

REPORT 

Subject: 2023 AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Date: April 24, 2024 File No: 05-1680-04-0001/2023 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer, dated April 24, 2024, 
entitled "2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements": 

THAT in accordance with Section 167 of the Community Charter, Council accept 
the City of North Vancouver Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 
ended December 31 , 2023. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

(1) The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended December 31 , 2023 - DRAFT (CityDoc#2484613). 

PURPOSE: 

Under the provisions of the Community Charter, CNV's annual financial statements must 
be presented to and accepted by Council by May 15 of the year following. The attached 
statements have been audited by CNV's appointed auditors , BOO Canada LLP ("BOO"). 
In accordance with the latest recommendations of the Accounting Standards Board , 
signatures by the auditors on the audit report and by the Chief Financial Officer on the 
statements will be added after acceptance of the statements by Council. 

Document Number: 2490980 



REPORT: 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
Date: April 24, 2024 

BACKGROUND: 

CNV's audited consolidated financial statements reflect: 

• All CNV's funds, including the water, sewer & drainage, and the solid waste utilities, 
as well as cemetery operations 

• The North Vancouver City Library 
• CNV's ownership of Lonsdale Energy Corporation ("LEC") 
• CNV's 50% share of the North Vancouver Museum & Archives Commission ("NVMA") 
• CNV's 33.9% share of the North Vancouver Recreation & Culture Commission 

("NVCRC") 

The Cemetery Trust, which is administered by CNV, is not included in the consolidated 
statements, as these funds are only managed by CNV on behalf of other beneficiaries. 

DISCUSSION: 

BOO has recently completed the audit of CNV's financial statements. Its conclusion is as 
follows: 

"The accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of CNV as at December 31, 2023, and its 
consolidated results of operations, its changes in consolidated net financial assets, its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards." 

Local governments in B.C. are not permitted to budget for deficits. Should a deficit occur, 
the resulting deficit must be carried forward to the current year's Financial Plan as an 
expenditure, restricting a government's ability to deliver on its plans. CNV prepares its 
Financial Plans to achieve balanced budgets and manages its financial performance to 
avoid deficits consistent with the Community Charter. 

In 2023, CNV had a surplus of $35.4 million compared to a surplus of $51 .1 million in 
2022, representing 19.0% and 27.1 % of revenues respectively. A summary of these 
surpluses is shown below: 

Category ($ millions) 2023 2022 
Revenues 186.1 188.5 
Expenses 150.7 137.4 
Consolidated Annual Surplus 35.4 51.1 
Surplus as a percentaae of revenues 19% 27% 
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year 681 .7 630.6 
Accumulated Surplus, end of vear 717.1 681.7 

Page 2 of 6 



REPORT: 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
Date: April 24, 2024 

These surpluses can be broken down as follows: 

2023 
Category($ millions) Surplus 
General Operating 1 3.2 
Utilities & Cemetery 11 .1 
Statutory & Capital Reserves 20.6 
Major Agencies 0.5 
Consolidated Annual Surplus 35.4 

2022 2023 YoY $ 
Surplus Change 

7.7 (4.5) 
9.9 1.2 

33.4 (12.8) 
0.1 0.4 

51.1 (15.7) 
1 In accordance with public sector accounting standards, CNV's investment in LEC is accounted for using the modified equity 
method. The interest and dividend income CNV earns from its investment in LEC are included in the General Operating category. 

Overall, CNV's 2023 surpluses were more modest than in 2022, but remained positive 
Additional explanation of the 2023 surpluses is provided below. 

General Operating 

The $3 .2M general operating surplus equals 2% of revenues and is a result of net 
favourable revenues and expenses, with the main drivers summarized below: 

Category($ millions) 2023 Surplus Drivers Comment 
License & Permit Revenues 2.5 Higher permit and fee revenues from 
Fees Revenues 0.8 development and construction activity. 

Interest Revenues 0.9 Higher investment returns from 
increased interest rates. 

Other ( 1.1) 
Total 3.2 

Most of the surplus ($2.8M) has been allocated to rebuild/maintain reserves, including 
non-statutory reserves and accounts established for emergency/unexpected 
expenditures and to fund the Permit Revenue Reserve where surplus permit revenues 
are set aside to cover future costs of processing permit applications. The remaining 
$0.4M remains unallocated and contributes to the annual surplus. 

Utilities and Cemetery 

Utilities and Cemetery are self-funded through related user fees. Cemetery and Utilities 
generated $11.1 M of CNV's total surplus. Most of this surplus ($1 0.0M) was planned for 
in the 2023-2027 Financial Plan and is to fund future asset management work within the 
Water and Sewer & Drainage utilities and to "smooth in" future Metro Vancouver rate 
increases needed to fund the North Shore Waster Water Treatment Plant. The remaining 
$1 .1 M was mainly generated from higher metered water sales to commercial customers. 

Category($ millions) 2023 Surplus Drivers 
Water 5.1 
Sewer & Drainage 5.9 
Cemetery 0.3 
Solid Waste (0.2) 

Total 11.1 

Page 3 of 6 



REPORT: 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
Date: April 24, 2024 

The deficit for Solid Waste was driven mainly by retro pay for the wage contract 
settlement. Annual surpluses are kept within the individual utility/cemetery operating 
funds. 

Statutory and Capital Reserves 

The Statutory and Capital Reserve surplus of $20.6M was behind the majority of CNV's 
total 2023 surplus. This $20.6M surplus primarily resulted from the Growing 
Communities Fund ("GCF") Provincial grant received of $11 .0M and interest earned on 
statutory funds of $9.1 M. 

The GCF was part of the Province of BC's unanticipated one-time $1 billion investment 
in BC's 188 municipalities and regional districts. The objective of the GCF is to support 
communities that are increasing local housing supply make new investments in 
community infrastructure and amenities. CNV received an amount of $10,986,000 and 
fully recognized this amount as revenue in 2023. 

In 2023, the Bank of Canada continued to increase monetary policy interest rates to 5 
percent, which held steady to the end of 2023 , whereas consensus forecasts at the 
beginning of 2023 were expecting rates to drop in the 2nd half of the year. As CNV's 
investment assets matured , they were allocated to high interest bearing savings 
accounts . This resulted in increased interest revenues in 2023. 

Major Agencies 

CNV funds major agencies including the North Vancouver City Library, the North 
Vancouver Museum & Archives Commission and North Vancouver Recreation & 
Culture Commission through grants. The audited results of each agency are 
consolidated with CNV's financial statements at their proportionate share and are 
detailed for 2023 as follows: 

Agency($ millions) 2023 Surplus Drivers 
North Vancouver City Library 0.4 
North Vancouver Museum & Archives Commission 1 0.0 
North Vancouver Recreation & Cultu re Commission 2 0.1 
Total 0.5 

1• 2 NVMA and NVRC are included at CNV's proportionate share of 50% and 33.94% respectively. 

These agencies' 2023 financial performance is generally consistent with approved 
budgets. The Library's surplus is due to a one-time Enhancement Grant of $0.4M 
received from the Province of British Columbia to supplement local government funding , 
support library service enhancement, respond to local service priorities and extend library 
services over three years, that was unanticipated. The full amount of the grant was 
recognized as revenue in 2023. 

Assessment of Financial Condition: 

Assessing the financial health of a regional or local government includes consideration of 
several financial and non-financial elements. The primary financial elements assessed 

Page 4 of 6 



REPORT: 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
Date: April 24, 2024 

by credit rating agencies when analyzing the financial health of a municipality are debt 
burden and liquidity. 

• Debt Burden refers to amount of debt relative to the size of an organization. 
• Liquidity refers to the adequacy of assets readily convertible to cash compared to 

key expenses. 

Debt Burden 

1. Debt Service Payments / Adjusted Operating Revenues 

This metric compares the amount of an organization's interest and principal costs (which 
are correlated with debt levels) to the organization's size, as indicated by general 
revenues (primarily taxes, fees, rents, and from sale of services) . The measure used by 
the Provincial Government to evaluate a municipality's leverage as specified in the 
Municipal Liabilities Regulation is a comparison of debt service obligations to revenues, 
with the maximum permitted ratio being equal to 25%. 

$ thousands, unless otherwise indicated 2023 2022 
Annual Debt Service Costs (A) $0 $170 
Adjusted Operating Revenues (B) $155,564 $139,760 
Ratio (A/8) 0.0% 0.1% 

Given CNV had no drawn debt in 2022, its current debt service ratio is at the top of this 
category. 

Liquidity 

2. Unencumbered Liquid Assets/ Annual Debt Service Costs 

$ thousands unless otherwise indicated 2023 2022 
Unencumbered Liquid Assets (A) $11 ,688 $9,168 
Annual Debt Service Costs (B) $0 $237 
Ratio (A/8) N/A 39:1 

S&P's top performers in this category have ratios greater than 1.2: 1, so CNV again would 
achieve a top rating in this category. 

Future Loans 

CNValso has a committed Municipal Finance Authority loan facility in the amount of $109 
million to support the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre ("HJCRC") capital 
program. This loan is currently undrawn and there were no actual interest charges for 
2023. The HJCRC financial strategy endorsed by Council on January 31, 2022 plans for 
the HJCRC loan to be paid after the completion of the project with the proceeds generated 
from the disposition of the Harry Jerome Neighborhood Lands, so is not anticipated to 
generate future ongoing debt service obligations for CNV. 

Page 5 of 6 



REPORT: 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
Date: April 24, 2024 

CNV has also included new investments in a new North Shore Neighborhood House, 
the Kings Mill Walk Park, and the 1600 Eastern Avenue Park in its 2024-2028 Financial 
Plan that, if eventually approved as provided for in this Financial Plan, would be funded 
by a new $55.7 million debt facility. Should this new debt facility be fully drawn and 
repaid over the long term, staff estimate that CNV's debt service payments to adjusted 
operating revenues ratio would be 2.3%, well below the maximum ratio permitted by 
the Municipal Finance Regulations of 25%. 

$ thousands, unless otherwise indicated 2023 (Adj.)1 

Interest Payments (Al $3,600 
Adjusted Operating Revenues (8) $155,564 
Ratio (A/8) 2.3% 

For further comparison , this leverage ratio for municipalities in BC ranged from 0% to 22% 
in 2022. 

The liquidity ratio of unencumbered liquid assets to annual debt service costs would have 
been 3:1, within the S&P's top rating. 

$ thousands, un less otherwise indicated 2023 (Adj.)1 

Unencumbered Liquid Assets (A) $11 ,688 
Annua l Debt Service Costs (B) $3,600 
Ratio (A/B) 3:1 

1 2023 Adj assumes 2023 actual results , adjusted to assume CNV's $55.7M MFA loan was ful ly drawn 

Overall, even under the assumption that this debt was fully drawn in 2023, CNV's 
financial position would remain strong. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Financial implications have been addressed throughout the report. Overall, CNV's 
financial position is strong. 

INTERDEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS: 

This report and draft statements summarize the financial position of the whole 
organization , including its related entities. CNV's favourable financial position reflects 
CNV departments' and related entities' cooperation and participation in sound financial 
management. 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 

The financial results for 2023 reflect CNV's Corporate Business Plan Outcome of being 
"A Fiscally Responsible Organization". These results also reflect Community Charter 
requirements to manage within a balanced budget framework. 

w 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Larry Sawrenko 
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 6 of 6 



The Corporation of the City of
North Vancouver
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

DR
AF
T

ration of the City ofration of the City of
ancouverncouver

dated Financial StatementsFinancial Statements
he year ended December 31, 2023ded December 31, 2023

sfriesen
FreeText
Attachment 1�



Statement of Management Responsibility

The Council of the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver (“CNV”) has delegated the responsibility
for the integrity and objectivity of the financial information contained in the consolidated financial
statements to the management of CNV. The consolidated financial statements which, in part, are
based on informed judgments and estimates, have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards, which have been applied on a basis consistent with that
of the preceding year.

To assist in carrying out their responsibility, management maintains an accounting system and internal
controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are executed and recorded in accordance
with authorization, and that financial records are reliable for preparation of financial statements.

The Mayor and Council oversee management's responsibilities for the financial reporting and internal
control systems. Council annually reviews and accepts the consolidated financial statements.

CNV’s independent auditors, BDO Canada LLP, are engaged to express an opinion as to whether CNV's

consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position of CNV
as at December 31, 2023, and the results of operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.

The consolidated financial statements have, in management's opinion, been properly prepared within
reasonable limits of materiality and in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Larry Sawrenko

Chief Financial Officer

Date, 2024

ithith
hh thatthat

emem andand internali
eded inin accordanceacc

cialcial statements.stat

ncialncial reportingrepo and internalrnal
financialancial statements.sta

press an opinion asas toto whetherwhether CNV's

l respects the financial positionosition ofo CNV
hangeshanges ini net financial assets andnd cashcash flowsfl

generallynerally acceptedaccepted auditinga standards.

management'snt's opinion,op beenbeen properlyproperly preparedpre withinthin
ance with Canadiandian publicp sectoror accountingaccounting standards.stand

o

ancialancial OfficerOfficer

ate,ate, 20242024



 
 
 
  
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Mayor and Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
and its controlled entities (the “City”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position 
as at December 31, 2023 and the consolidated statement of operations, the consolidated statement of 
changes in net financial assets and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the City as at December 31, 2023, and its consolidated 
results of operations, its changes in consolidated net financial assets, its consolidated cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the City in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.  

Unaudited Information 

We have not audited, reviewed, or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of the 
Schedules A and B of the City's consolidated financial statements. 
 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard. 

 DR
AF
TTn of the City of North Vancouver of the City of North V

ed statement of financial position ed statement of financial p
tions, the consolidated statement of tions, the consolidated statemen

of casof cash flows for the year then ended, h flows for the year then ended
ng a summary of significant accounting ng a summary of significant accounting 

cial statements present fairly, in all materiacial statements present f
ity as at December 31, 202as at December 31, 20 3, and its consolida

et financial assets, its consolidated cash flows al assets, its cons
ublic sector accounting standards.counting stan

e with Canadian generally accepted auditingwith Canadian generally accepted 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsiurther described in the Auditor’s Respo

ements section of our report. We are indepsection of our report. We are indep
uirements that are relevant to our audit of thhat are relevant to our audit of th

e have fulfilled our other ethical responsour other ethical responsibilitieibilitie
that the audit evidence we have obtained is hat the audit evidence we have obtained is 

pinion. pinion. 

onon

ited, reviewed, or otherwise attempted to verited, reviewed, or otherwise attempted 
d Bd B of the City's consolidated financial statemeof the City's consolidated financial state

formationon

agement is responsible for the other informationsible for t
cluded in the Annual luded in the Annual Report but does not iReport 

auditor’s report thereon.auditor’s report ther

Our opinion on the consolidated financialOur opinion on the consolidated finan
not express any assurance conclusion thnot express any assurance conclusion th

In connection with our audit of theur aud
other information and, in doing other information and, in 
with the consolidated financiawith the consolidated finan
to be materially misstatedto be materially misstate

aterial misstatement oaterial misstatement o
port in port in this regardthis regard



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control 
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the City’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the City or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the City’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the City’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the City to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the City to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the City audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

DR
AF
T

internintern
nancial statnancial s

for assessing the City’s for asses
ated to going concern and ted to going co

ends to liquidate the City or ends to liquidate the

City’s financial reporting process. City’s financial reporting process

nancial Statements nancial

hether the consolidated financial statements hether the consolidated financial statements 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’sdue to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarana high level of assurance
an generally accepted auditing standards will arally accepted audi

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error nts can arise f
ggregate, they could reasonably be expected tould reason

e basis of these consolidated financial statemee basis of these consolidated fi

Canadian generally accepted auditing standaCanadian generally accepted auditing
rofessional skepticism throughout the audit. Wsional skepticism throughout the audit

of material misstatement of the consolidateal misstatement of the consolidate
rror, design and perform audit procedures respd perform audit procedures res

at is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bd appropriate to provide a b
terial misstaterial misst tement resulting from fraud is higesulting fro

y involve collusion, forgery, intentional omisy involve collusion, forgery, inte
nal control.nal cont

derstanding of internal control relevant to the derstanding of internal control relevant to
ppropriate in the circumstances, but not for tppropriate in the circumstances, but not for

veness of the City’s internal control.ess of the City’s internal control.

aluate the appropriateness of accounting polappropriateness of accounting pol
estimates and related disclosures made by manlated disclo

Conclude on the appropriateness of manageConclude on the appropriaten
based on the audit evidence obtained, based on the audit evidence ob
conditions that may cast significant dohat may cast significan
conclude that a material uncertainta material uncertaint
to the related disclosdisclo ures in tt
inadequate, to modify our opiodify 
the date of our auditor’s reudito
to continue as a going coto continue as a going 

Evaluate the overall Evaluate the overall
ncluding the disncluding the dis

erlying transerlying trans

suffisuffi

,..... .... ,.. .. -... ~ 

-.... ,6/111/T 

-~ 
~ ... 

-



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Vancouver, British Columbia 
COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE 

DR
AF
T



2023 2022
Restated (note 16)

FINANCIAL ASSETS
     Cash and cash equivalents 237,385$                   201,296$                   
     Investments (note 3) 62,054                       96,217                       
     Investment in Lonsdale Energy Corp. (note 4) 4,829                         4,826                         
     Due from other governments 7,731                         5,087                         
     Accounts receivable 8,773                         10,242                       
     Loan to Lonsdale Energy Corp. (note 5) 26,623                       26,653                       
     Interest receivable 7,182                         6,990                         

354,577                     351,311                     

LIABILITIES
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 30,356                       22,199                       
     Deferred revenue 38,961                       37,607                       
     Deferred lease revenue (note 13) 48,911                       49,421                       
     Deferred development cost charges 27,815                       21,824                       
     Employee future benefits (note 6) 8,334                         8,496                         
     Advances and other liabilities 12,650                       10,188                       

 Asset retirement obligations (note 8) 2,742                         2,649                         
169,769                     152,384                     

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 184,808                     198,927                     

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
     Tangible capital assets (note 7) 528,021                     479,130                     
     Inventories 978                            948                            
     Prepaid expenses 3,316                         2,754                         

532,315                     482,832                     

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (note 9) 717,123$                   681,759$                   

Commitments and contingencies (note 10)

Chief Financial Officer
Larry Sawrenko

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2023 with comparative figures for 2022
(in thousands of dollars)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statementsDDDDDDR
AF
TT

ARADRDRDD

2022
Restated (

201,296201,$                   $                   
96,21796,217                         

829829 4,8264,826                         
7,7317,731  5,087087                         
8,7738,77            10,242                       

26,62326                    26,653                       
7,182                             6,990                               

354,577                                351,311                      

30,35630,356                       22                       
38,961,961                                         
48,9111                                     
27,815                                                  

8,3348,33                                           
12,65012,650                                       

2,742742                                   
169,769                          

1                       

ETS
ets (note 7     

expenses

CCUMULATED SURPLUS (not

Commitments and contingencies (n

al Officer

See accompanying notes to the co

FF
RARARA

TFTFT

D
,;;se, '7) 

.. ATED SUR~ "lte 9) 

'mitments and contingenc 

'ompanying notes to th 

1ote 10) 

nsoli 

,. (note 16) 



2023            
Budget 2023 2022

(notes 2(i) and 15) Restated (note 16)

REVENUE
Property value tax (note 10 (a)) 75,705$  76,274$  72,159$  
Other levies 4,143 4,188 4,002 
Licences and permits 5,436 7,898 7,165 
Fines and fees 5,876 6,854 6,236 
Rent 2,696 3,873 3,689 
Interest, dividends and penalties 4,759 15,156 8,075 
Sale of services 36,079 36,819 33,908 
Rebate and recoveries 85 203 165 
Grants and other 8,280 28,099 13,199 
Developer contributions and other transfers 308 5,948 40,907 
Gain (Loss) on disposition of assets 746 (1,143) 
Lonsdale Energy Corp. income (note 4) 3 213 

143,367 186,061 188,575 

EXPENSES
General government 25,523 28,197 26,326 
Transportation and transit 7,774 10,749 10,771 
Health, social services and housing 3,069 2,984 2,796 
Development services 8,760 9,604 7,716 
Protective services 31,676 32,844 28,248 
Parks, recreation and culture 35,811 37,143 34,396 
Water utilities 12,053 12,378 11,724 
Sewer utilities 12,514 13,054 12,201 
Solid waste 4,098 3,744 3,254 

Total expenses (note 12) 141,278 150,697 137,432 

Annual surplus 2,089 35,364 51,143 

Accumulated surplus beginning of year 681,759 681,759 630,616 

Accumulated surplus end of year 683,848$               717,123$               681,759$  

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
Year ended December 31, 2023 with comparative figures for 2022
(in thousands of dollars)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statementsDR
AF
TTFFTFFTFFTAFF
TFTFAAFAFFAFRA
F

RADR
AA

DRDDD

76,274$  $ $
4,188 

436436 7,898 7, 
5,876 5,876 6,854 6,236 
2,696 2,69 3,873 3,68 
4,759 4 15,156 15 

36,079 36,079 36,819 
85 85 203 

8,280 280 28,099 
308 5,948 

746 
3

143,367 

25,523 
7,774 

using 3,0 

ure

te

Total expe

Ann

Accumulated surplus beginning of year

lated surplus end of year

AFAFRAA
TTT

J cult1.1. 

,,,. 

_,enses (note 12) 

•nual surplus 

'ted surplus beginning of, 

...,lus end of yt> 

202 .. 

Restated (note 1 L 

72,159 

4,002 

7 ,165 

'6 



2023
Budget 2023 2022

(notes 2(i) and 15) Restated (note 16)

     Annual surplus 2,089$  35,364$  51,143$  

     Acquisition of tangible capital assets (76,443) (63,940) (35,674) 
     Non-cash developer contributed assets - (2,094) (1,540) 
     Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets - 1,029 120 
     Depreciation of tangible capital assets 17,700 16,860 17,975 
     Loss on disposition of tangible capital assets - (746) 1,143 

(58,743) (48,891) (17,976) 

     Acquisition of inventories - (1,336) (1,173) 
     Acquisition of prepaid expenses - (3,356) (3,741) 
     Use of inventories - 1,306 971 
     Use of prepaid expenses - 2,794 2,531 

- (592) (1,412) 

     Increase (decrease) in net financial assets (56,654) (14,119) 31,755 

     Net financial assets, beginning of year 198,927 198,927 167,172 

     Net financial assets, end of year 142,273$  184,808$  198,927$  

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
Year ended December 31, 2023 with comparative figures for 2022
(in thousands of dollars)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

DRDRR
AF
TTTFTAF
T

AF
T

RAARAARAARADR
A

35,3644$  $ 51,143$  $

43)43) (63,940) (35,674) 
- - (2,094) (1,540) (1 
- 1,029 120 12 

17,700 17 16,860 17,9 17,9 
- (746) 

(58,743) (58,7 (48,891) 

- - (1,336) 
- - (3,356) 
- 1,306 
- 2
- 

(56,654) 654)

year 198,927 

f year 14$  $

o the consolidated financial statements

FFTAFAF
T

AFAFAFAF
TT

3

RARARA
TFTFT

21.. 

Restated (no, 

, 1ying notes to .cd financial statemt::, ... 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver

2023 2022
Restated (note 16)

Cash provided by (used for):

Operating Transactions
     Annual surplus 35,364$  51,143$  
     Items not involving cash:
          Depreciation expense 16,860 17,975 

Accretion expense 93 89 
          Gain (Loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets (746) 1,143 
          Non-cash developer contributed assets (2,094) (1,540) 
          Lonsdale Energy Corp. income (3) (213) 
     Changes in non-cash operating items:
          Increase in due from other governments (2,644) (1,125) 
          Decrease in accounts receivable 1,469 1,229 
          Change in loan to Lonsdale Energy Corp. 30 390 
          Decrease (increase) in interest receivable (192) 1,730 
          Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,157 (481) 
          Increase in deferred revenue 1,354 3,349 
          Decrease in deferred lease revenue (510) (509) 
          Increase (decrease) in deferred development cost charges 5,991 (248) 
          Increase (decrease) in accrued employee future benefits (162) 110 
          Increase in advances and other liabilities 2,462 111 
          Increase in inventories (30) (202) 
          Increase in prepaid expenses (562) (1,210) 

64,837 71,741 
Capital Transactions
          Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (63,940) (35,674) 
          Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets 1,029 120 

(62,911) (35,554) 
Investing Transactions
          Decrease in investments 34,163 40,423 

34,163 40,423 

Financing Transactions
          Repayment of long-term debt - (237) 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 36,089 76,373 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 201,296 124,923 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 237,385$              201,296$  

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Year ended December 31, 2023 with comparative figures for 2022
(in thousands of dollars)

DDDDDDR
AF
TTTFT

DR

35,364  

16,860 17,975 17,975 
93 3 89 89 

(746) (746) 1,1 
(2,094) (2,094 

(3) 

(2,644) 
1,469 1, 

30 30 
(192) (192) 

and accrued liabilitiesiabilitie 8,157 57
1 1 

ue
ed development cost chargesed development c

crued employee future benefitscrued employee future 
nd other liabilitiesnd other

riesries
paid expensesaid expe

actions
h used to acquire tangible capital assetsgible capital 

roceeds from sale of tangible capital assetsroceeds from sale of tangible capital a

Investing TransactionsInvestin
          Decrease in investments

ancing Transactionsancing Tra

T
epayment of long-term debtepayment of long-term debt

h and cash equ

valen

T
20~. 

Restated (note . 

$ 51,143 

Decrease in investmenti, 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

1. OPERATIONS

The City of North Vancouver (“CNV”) was incorporated in 1907 and operates under the provisions of the Community Charter 
and the Local Government Act of British Columbia.  The City’s principal activity is the provision of local government services to 
residents of the incorporated area.  These services include administrative, protective, transportation, environmental, 
recreational, water and sanitary services. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of CNV have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards, as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”). The significant accounting policies are summarized 
below:  

(a) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all the funds of CNV, the accounts of the North Vancouver City 
Library, which is controlled by CNV, CNV’s 33.94% proportionate share of the operations of the North Vancouver Recreation 
Commission, and CNV’s 50% proportionate share of the operations of the North Vancouver Museum and Archives Commission. 
CNV’s investment in Lonsdale Energy Corporation (“LEC”), a wholly owned government business enterprise, is accounted for 
using the modified equity method.  

CNV has an agreement with the District of North Vancouver in the operation and management of the North Vancouver Recreation 
Commission, and CNV includes its proportionate share in CNV’s consolidated financial statements. The current agreement 
specifies that the operating costs shall be paid 33.94% (2022 – 33.94%) by CNV and 66.06% (2022 – 66.06%) by the District of 
North Vancouver.  Each municipality is responsible for its own facilities and pays 100% of all capital costs relating to 
improvement, expansion and replacement of buildings or facility equipment. 

CNV also has an agreement with the District of North Vancouver in the operation and management of the North Vancouver 
Museum and Archives Commission, and CNV includes its proportionate share in CNV’s consolidated financial statements. The 
current agreement specifies that the operating costs shall be paid 50% (2022 – 50%) by CNV and 50% (2022 – 50%) by the 
District of North Vancouver. Each municipality is responsible for its own facilities and pays 100% of all capital costs relating to 
improvement, expansion and replacement of buildings or facility equipment.  

(b) Basis of Accounting

Revenue is recorded on an accrual basis and recognized when earned.  Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and 
measurable as a result of the receipt of goods and services. 

of the Commuof the C
of local government serof local g

e, transportation, environmee, transporta

n accordance with Canadian public sector accountn accordance with Canadian public sector account
SAB”). The signifiSAB”). T cant accounting policies are summt accoun

accounts of all the funds of CNV, ccounts of all th the accounts of ththe acco
.94% proportionatproportionate share of the operations of e share of the operations of the Nthe

share of the operations of te operations of the North Vancouver Musehe North Vancouver Muse
Corporation (“LEC”), a wholly owned government buC”), a wholly owned government b

he District of North Vancouver inhe District of North Va  the operation and mathe op
ncludes its proportionate share in CNV’sncludes its proportionate share in CNV’s consolidat c

atating costs shall be paid 33.94% (2022 – 33.94%) bying costs shall be paid 33.94% (2022 – 33.94%
 Each municipality is responsible for its owEach municipality is responsible for i n facn fac

expansion and replacement of buildings or facility equon and replacement of buildings or facility eq

so has an agreement with the District of North Vanco has an agreement with the 
eum and Archives Commission, and CNV includes iteum and Archives Commission, and C

urrent agreement specifies turrent agreement specifies that the operating costs hat the operating
District of North Vancouver. Each municipality is rDistrict of North Vancouver. Each municipality is
improvement, expansion and replacement of bimprovement, expansion and replacement of b

b) Basis of Accountingb) Basis 

e is recorded on an acce is recorded on an acc
e as a result of thee as a result of the



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(c) Revenue Recognition  
 

Taxes are recognized as revenue in the year that the taxes are authorized, the taxable event occurs and they are considered 
collectible. Through the British Columbia Assessments appeal process, taxes may be adjusted by way of supplementary roll 
adjustments. The effects of these adjustments on taxes are recognized at the time they are awarded.  Levies imposed for 
Regional District services and other taxing authorities are not included.  
 
Lease revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
  
Charges for sewer, water and solid waste usage are recorded as user fees. Connection fees revenues are recognized when the 
connection has been established. 
 

Sale of service and other revenue are recognized on an accrual basis. 

(d) Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue consists of prepaid property taxes, prepaid business licenses, and fees paid in advance for services yet to be
provided.  

(e) Deferred Lease Revenue 

Deferred lease revenue consists of funds collected in advance of rental periods for long-term prepaid leases, which will be 
recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  

(f) Deferred Development Cost Charges 

Development cost charges collected to pay for future capital projects are deferred upon receipt and recognized as revenue when 
the capital costs for which they were collected are incurred. 

(g) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, highly liquid pooled high interest savings accounts with the Municipal Finance 
Authority. 

(h) Investments 

Investments include bank issued notes and bonds and Provincial bonds and debentures maturing after December 31, 2023 and 
are valued at the lower of cost or market value.  Securities are recorded at their cost and written down to reflect losses in value 
that are other than temporary. 
 
(i) Budget Figures 
 
The budget figures are based on the five year financial plan adopted on April 24th, 2023.   

DR
AF
Tt ot occurs and they are considccurs and

djusted djusted by way of supplementary roby way of s
they are awarded.  Levies imposed for hey are awarded.  Levie

se. se. 

r fees. Connection fees revenues are recognized wher fees. Connection fees reven

crual basis.

y taxes, prepaid busrepaid iness licenses, and fees paid in iness licenses, and fees paid in 

nsists of funds collected in advance nsists of funds collected in advance of rental perioof 
on a straight-lion a stra ne basis over the term of the lease.  is over the term of the lea

velopment Cost Charges ment Cost Charges 

ment cost charges collected to pay for future capital prt cost charges collected to p
apital costs for which they were collected are incurredpital costs for which they were colle

(g) Cash and cash equivalents (g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cashCash and cash equivalents consi
Authority. Authority

vestments vestment

nclude bank include bank i
lowerlower

---- .... --



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(j) Government Transfers 

Unrestricted government transfers are recognized as revenue in the year that the transfer is authorized by the issuing 
government and any eligibility criteria have been met.  Restricted government transfers, in the way of grants or other transfers, 
are recognized as revenue in the year in which any stipulations that create liabilities are met. 
 
(k) Employee Future Benefits 
 
CNV and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan.  As this plan is a multi-employer plan, contributions 
are expensed as incurred. 
 
Sick leave and post-employment benefits also accrue to CNV’s employees.  The liabilities related to these benefits are actuarially 
determined based on services and best estimates of retirement ages and expected future salary and wage increases.  The 
liabilities under these benefits plans are accrued based on projected benefits as the employees render services necessary to 
earn the future benefits. 
 
(l) Long-term Debt 

 
Long-term debt is recorded in the consolidated financial statements net of sinking fund payments and adjustments. 
 
(m) Non-Financial Assets  
   
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision of services.  They may 
have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of business. 
 

(i) Tangible Capital Assets 
 
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, 
construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost less residual value of the tangible capital assets, 
excluding land, is amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

 
Land improvements Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 10 – 100 years 
Parks  Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 10 – 75 years 
Buildings Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 10 – 100 years 
Machinery & equipment Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 3 – 25 years 
Vehicles Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 6 – 25 years 
Infrastructure Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 7 – 100 years 
Library materials Straight-line over useful life of each asset unit 2 – 5 years 
Work in progress Not amortized until put into use  
   

 
 
 

DR
AF
Tsfer issfer is authorized by the iss autho

n the way of grants or other transfern the way of grants o s
e met. met. 

an.  As this plan is a multi-employer plan, contributioan.  As this plan is a multi-employer plan, contributio

s employees.  The liabilities relate  The liabilities re d to these benefits a
rement ages and expected future salary and wageexpected f

ed on projected benefits as the employees render sed on projected benefits as the emp

nsolidated financial statements net of sinking fundatements net of sinking fund papa

re not available to discharge existing liabilities and arre not available to discharge existing liabilities an
xtending beyond the current year and are tending beyond the current year and are not intendentende

Tangible Capital Assetsital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, Tangible capital assets are reco
construction, development or betterment ofconstruction, development or betterm
excluding land, is amortized on a straightis amortized on a straigh

Land improvements nts 
Parks  
Buildings B
Machinery & equipmMachinery & equipm
Vehicles Vehicles

rastructureastructure
y may ma

.. 
• 

• 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(m) Non-Financial Assets (continued) 

(ii) Contributions of Tangible Capital Assets 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions or transfers from developers are recorded at their estimated fair value 
at the date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue. 

(iii) Works of Art and Historic Assets 

CNV and the Museum and Archives Commission manages and controls various works of art and non-operational 
historic assets, including buildings, artifacts, paintings and sculptures located at City sites and public display areas. 

Works of art and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these consolidated financial statements. 
 
(iv) Natural Resources 
 
Horticultural assets such as treed areas, grassy areas and gardens are not recognized as assets in the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
(v) Interest Capitalization 
 
CNV does not capitalize interest costs associated with the construction of a tangible capital asset. 
 
(vi) Leased Tangible Capital Assets 
 
Leases that transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as 
leased tangible capital assets.  All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the payments are charged 
to expenses as incurred. 
 
(vii) Inventories 

 
Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of weighted average cost and replacement cost. 
 

(n) Estimates 
 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Areas requiring 
significant estimation are post-employment benefits, compensated absences and termination benefits, estimated useful life of 
tangible capital assets, asset retirement obligations and measurement of contingent liabilities. Actual results could differ from 
these estimates. 

 
  

DR
AF
Ts are recorded at their estimated fair value re recorded at their estim

es es and controls various works of art and non-operand controls various work
nd sculptures located at City sites and public displayulptures located at City s

as assets in these consoliconsolidated financial statementdat

areas, grassy areas and gardens are not recognizesy areas and gardens are not recognize

ion on 

apitalize interest costs associated wiapitalize interest costs as th the constructioh the c

ed Tangible Capital Assets d Tangible Capital Assets 

ases that transfer substantiallfer substantially all of the benefits andy all of the benefits and
leased tangible capital assets.  All other leases areeased tangible capital assets
to expenses as incurred. to expenses as incurred. 

(vii) Inventories s

Inventories held for consumption aconsu

Estimates Estimate

ation of the consoation of the conso
mounts inmounts in

onon



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(o) Segment Disclosure 
 

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for which it is appropriate to separately 
report financial information related to expenses. See note 12. 
 
(p) Contaminated Sites 
 
A liability for contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use or an unexpected event has occurred and the 
following criteria are met: 

i)   an environmental standard exists; 
ii)   contamination exceeds the environmental standard; 
iii)  CNV is directly responsible or accepts responsibility; 
iv) it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 
v)    a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made 
 

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation, maintenance and 
monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a contaminated site. 
 
(q) Asset Retirement Obligations 
 
On January 1, 2023, CNV adopted public sector accounting standard 3280, Asset Retirement Obligations. This new accounting 
standard addresses the reporting of legal obligations associated with the retirement of certain tangible capital assets. The 
standard was adopted on the modified retrospective basis at the date of adoption. 

A liability is recognized when, as at the financial reporting date: 
i) there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset; 
ii) the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred; 
iii) it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 
iv) a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

 
The resulting costs have been capitalized into the carrying amount of the related tangible capital assets and are being amortized 
on the same basis as the related tangible capital asset. Assumptions used in the calculations are reviewed annually. DR

AF
Twhhich it is appropriate to separich it is appr

ve use or an unexpected event has occurred and tve use or an unexpected event has occurred and he 

;
e given up; and 

made made

estimate of the te of the cost of post-remediation including ocost of post-remediation including
mediation strategy for a contaminated site. strategy for a contaminated site

opted public sector accounting standard 3280, Assetopted public sector accounting standar
reporting of legal oblireporting of legal obligations associated with the regations associated w

on the modified retrospecon the modified retrospective basis at the date of adtive basis at the date o

ognized when, as at the financial reporting date: when, as at the financial reporting date: 
ere is a legal obligation to incur retirementbligation to incur  costs in rein re

the past transaction or event giving rise to the liabilithe past transaction or event g
iii) it is expected that future economic benefits will bii) it is expected that future economi
iv) a reasonable estimate of the amount can beiv) a reasonable estimate of the amount

The resulting costs have been capitalized into tThe resulting costs have been capitalized into t
on the same basis as the related tangible con the same basis as the related ta

•• .. , 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Financial Instruments

CNV adopted public sector accounting standard 3450, Financial Instruments, effective January 1, 2023, on a prospective basis. 
Financial instruments classification is determined upon inception and financial instruments are not reclassified into another 
measurement category for the duration of the period they are held.  Financial assets and financial liabilities, other than hedges, 
equity instruments quoted in an active market, and financial instruments designated at fair value, are measured at cost or 
amortized cost upon inception and subsequent to initial recognition.  Cash and cash equivalents are measured at cost. Accounts 
receivable, investments, other receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities are measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate method to determine interest revenue or expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the 
period it is earned.  Valuation allowances are made when collection is in doubt. Investments include bank issued notes and 
bonds and provincial bonds and debentures maturing after the current year.    Investments are adjusted for any amortization of 
premiums or discounts.  Sales and purchases of investments are recorded on the trade date.  Transaction costs related to the 
acquisition of investments are included in the carrying value of the related investments.  

All financial assets recorded at cost or amortized cost are tested annually for impairment.  When financial assets are impaired, 
impairment losses are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.  A financial liability or its part is de-recognized 
when it is extinguished. 

3. INVESTMENTS

The fair value of investments at December 31, 2023 is $65,962,000 (2022 - $98,214,000). CNV’s investment portfolio consists 
of Provincial and Canadian bank bonds with a cost of $62,054,000 (2022 - $96,217,000).   

Financial instruments maturing between January 2024 to December 2024 range in yield from 2.10% to 3.13% (2023 – 1.05% to 
3.11%). Investments maturing from January 2025 to May 2031 range in yield from 1.30% to 7.52%. 

DR
AF
T

1, 2023, on a prospective1, 2023, 
s are not reclassified into anos are not recla

financial liabilities, other than hedgfinancial liabilities, oth es
ed at fair value,ed at fair  are measured at cost or  measur

h h equivalents are measured at cost. Accounts equivalents are measured at cost. 
d liabilities are measured at amortized cost using d liabilities are measured at amortized cost

e in the Conse in the C olidated Statement of Operations for thetions for t
s in doubt. Investments include bank issued notes s in doubt. Investments include bank issued notes 

ent year.    Investments are nt year.    Investments are adjusted for any amortizad
e recorded on the trade rded on the trade date.  Transaction costs reldate.

of the related investments.  nvestments.  

t are tested annually for impairment.  When financiat are tested annually for impairment.  
ed Statement ofd Statement of Operations.  A financial liability or  Operations.  A financial liaff

at December 31, 2023 is $65,at December 31, 20 962,000 (2022 - $98,21962,000
bank bonds withbank bo  a cost of $62,054,000 a cost of $62,054,000 (2022 - $96,(2

ts maturing between January 2024 to Decembers maturing between January 2024 to December 202 20rr
ents maturing from January 2025 to maturing from January 2025 to May 2031 rangeMay 2031 range

111111111 ... .. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

4. INVESTMENT IN LONSDALE ENERGY CORPORATION (“LEC”)

CNV owns all the issued and outstanding shares of LEC, which was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (British 
Columbia) on July 7, 2003. LEC operates a district energy system providing hydronic energy to residential, institutional and 
commercial buildings in the City of North Vancouver. 

Summarized financial information relating to LEC is as follows: 

2023 2022
Cash and accounts receivable $        4,050 $      3,002 
Plant and equipment  40,969  38,420 
Other assets    732    767 
Total assets $      45,751  $       42,189 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $        3,678   $      2,895 
Deferred contributions    8,621     7,815 
Debt  28,623  26,653 
Total Liabilities $      40,922  $       37,363 

Shareholder’s equity $        4,829  $      4,826 

Total revenue $        9,713 $      9,702 
Total expenses    9,710    9,489 
Net income $        3 $         213 

Included in CNV’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is “Investment in Lonsdale Energy Corp.” in the amount of 
$4,829,000 (2022 - $4,826,000) and a loan receivable in the amount of $26,623,000 (note 5(a)) (2022 – $26,653,000). Also, 
included in accounts receivable in CNV’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position are receivables from LEC in the amount 
of $1,067,000 (2022 - $1,122,000). 

DR
AF
T

ss Corporationsss Corpo
toto residential, institutio reside

20222022
$      3,002 $     

FT 38,420 
   767 7 

51  $       42,189 $       42,189 FTAAF
T

   3,678   $      2,895     2,8
   8,621     7,815    7,815
 28,623  28,623  26,653 6,653 

$      40,922  $       37,363 $      40,922  $       37,363 AAFAAF$        4,829  $      4,826     4,829  $      4,826 

RARAAA
$        9,713 $        9,713 

   9,710 9,710 
$        3 $   3 RAARAAs Consolidated Statement ofConsolidated Statement of Financial PoFinancial Poff sition is “sition is “

022 - $4,826,000) and a loan receivable in the am826,000) and a loan receivable in the am
accounts receivable in CNV’s able in CNV’s Consolidated Statem

67,000 (20267,000 (2022 - $1,122,000). 2 - $1,122,000). 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

5. LOAN TO LONSDALE ENERGY CORPORATION

The loan receivable balance of $26,623,000 (2022 - $26,653,000) consists of the following interest bearing promissory notes: 

On August 1, 2018, CNV converted amounts due from LEC whereby LEC issued a 5 year promissory note to CNV in the amount 
of $33,661,966. On July 15, 2019 and November 17, 2021, CNV’s Council authorized LEC to borrow an additional $1,681,000 
and $290,000 respectively. On August 1, 2023, a five-year demand term loan was issued by CNV to borrow a maximum of 
$35,632,966. This promissory note replaced and nullified all previous promissory notes issued by CNV to LEC. The loan matures 
on August 1, 2028 and bears interest at 3.51% per annum. As at December 31, 2023 an amount of $26,622,804 remains due 
to CNV. During the year, LEC drew $1,050,000 (2022 - $630,000) from this promissory note. After considering the principal 
payments of $4,369,162 made to date, the remaining funding available to LEC under the terms of the agreement is $4,641,000, 
which LEC expects to draw on for future asset construction.  

Interest revenue of $798,000 (2022 - $704,000) and dividend revenue of $45,900 (2022 - $53,900) has been included in the 
Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

At the maturity date of the loan to LEC, CNV may, at its discretion, extend the terms of the loan in whole or in part or LEC may 
repay the loan in whole or in part using either internal or external financing. 

6. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

(a) Sick and Severance

Employees of CNV are entitled to payments related to unused sick leave and severance upon retirement or resignation after ten 
years of service. The amount recorded for these benefits is based on an actuarial valuation done by an independent firm of 
actuaries using a projected benefit actuarial valuation method pro-rated on services. The most recent actuarial valuation of 
CNV’s future benefits was completed as at December 31, 2023. 

DR
AF
T

bearing promissbearing p

missory note to CNV in the ammissory note t
C to borrow an additional $1,681,00C to borrow an addi

ssued by CNV to borrow a maximum of sued by CNV to borrow a
otesotes issued by CNV to LEC. The loan matures  issued by CNV to LEC. The loa

1, 2021, 2023 an amount of $26,622,804 remains due 3 an amount of $26,622,804 remai
his promissory note. Ahis prom fter considering the principal the princ

o LEC undo LEC u er the terms of the agrms o eement is $4,641,00641,00

d revenue of $45,900 (2f $45,900 (2022 - $53,900) has been in022 -

at its discretion, extend the terms t its discretion, e of the loan in whoof the loa
nternal or external financing. or external financing. 

titled to payments retitled to payments related to unused sick leave and slated to unused sick lea
amount recorded amount for these benefits is based on anthese benefits is based on

projected benefrojected it actuarial valuation method pro-ratarial valuation method pro-rat
enefits was completed as at December 31, 2023. was completed as at December 31, 2023. 

--



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

6. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued)

(a) Sick and Severance (continued)

Information regarding CNV’s obligations for these benefits, including 100% of the North Vancouver City Library and its 
proportionate share of the North Vancouver Recreation Commission and North Vancouver Museum and Archives Commission, 
is as follows: 

2023 2022 
Benefit obligation - beginning of the year $      6,944   $      7,906 
Add:    Current service costs 597 731 

  Interest on accrued benefit obligation 322 206 
  Actuarial loss (gain) 1,023 (1,115) 

Less:   Benefits paid (928) (784) 
Benefit obligation - end of the year $      7,958   $      6,944 
Add:    Unamortized actuarial gain 376 1,552 
Benefit liability - end of the year $      8,334   $      8,496 

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring CNV’s accrued benefit liability are as follows: 

2023  2022

Discount rates 4.10% 4.50% 

Future inflation rates 4.5% for 2024 and 2.5% thereafter 2.00% 

Compensation increases, net of 
inflation 

0.00% to 0.50% 2.58% to 4.63% 

The unamortized actuarial gain is amortized over a period equal to the employees’ average remaining service lifetime of eleven 
years for CNV (2022 - 11 years). 

(b) Council Retirement Stipend

Starting 2005, Council Members are entitled to a retirement stipend based on 9.31% of the individual’s total indemnity received 
subsequent to 2002. These amounts are accrued as earned and recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. DR

AF
Th Vancouver City Library anh Vancouver 

r Museum and Archives Commissionr Museum and Arch

022 022 
     7,906      7,9

FT
731 

FF206 FF(1,115) 
28) ) FF(784) 4) 

7,958   

AFAF
$      6,944 $      6,944 FFFT376 

AFAF
1,552 1,552 

    8,334   

AFAF
$      8,496 $      8,49

AFAFAFAFAFAFAFn measurasuring CNV’s accruing CNV’s accrued benefit liability are as foled benefit liability are a

2023

4.10% 4.1

RAA
4.5% for 2024 and 2.5% thereafter for 2024 and 2.5% there

ases, net of ases, ne 0.00% to 0.50% to 0.50

mortized actuarial gain is amortized ortized actuarial gain is amor over a period eq
 for CNV (2022 - 11 years). for CNV (2022 - 11 

(b) Council Retirement Stipend(b) Council Retirement Stipend

Starting 2005, Council Members are entiStarting 2005, Council Members ar
bsequent to 2002. These amountsbsequent to 2002. These amoun



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

7. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

(a) Work in Progress

Work in progress having a cost of $118,468,000 (2022 - $71,212,000) has not been amortized.  Amortization of these assets 
will commence when the asset is in service. 

(b) Developer Contributed Tangible Capital Assets and Other Transfers

Developer contributed tangible capital assets and other transfers of $2,094,000 (2022 - $1,540,000) have been recognized 
during the year.   

2023 Land Land 
Improvements Parks Buildings Machinery & 

 Equipment Vehicles Infrastructure Library 
Materials

Work
 in Progress Total

Costs
Balance beginning of year 46,229$       82,411$      57,695$      149,468$       26,101$       12,718$    277,033$       955$     71,212$      723,822$       

Additions and Adjustments - 12 5,387   3,352  753   3,314    5,726  233   47,256  66,033   
Disposals - - -  -   - 1,528 101  228   - 1,857

Balance end of year 46,229$       82,423$      63,082$      152,820$       26,854$       14,504$    282,658$       960$     118,468$       787,998$       

Accumulated Amortization
Balance beginning of year -$     21,509$     20,113$      77,363$       19,476$       6,309$      99,444$      478$     -$     244,692$       

Amortization and Adjustments - 2,201 2,158   4,496  1,531   917    5,343  214   - 16,860 
Disposals - - -  -   - 1,287 60  228   - 1,575

Balance end of year -$    23,710$     22,271$      81,859$       21,007$       5,939$      104,727$       464$     -$    259,977$       

Net Book Value 46,229$       58,713$      40,811$      70,961$       5,847$      8,565$      177,931$       496$     118,468$       528,021$       

2022 Land Land 
Improvements Parks Buildings

(restated)
Machinery & 
 Equipment Vehicles Infrastructure Library 

Materials
Work

 in Progress Total

Cost
Balance beginning of year 44,909$       82,368$      55,657$      149,690$       24,018$       12,585$    250,762$       942$     71,357$      692,288$       

 Adjustment relating to recognition of 
Asset Retirement Obligation (note 8) 

339  
339   

Balance beginning of year, restated 44,909$       82,368$      55,657$      150,029$       24,018$       12,585$    250,762$       942$     71,357$      692,627$       
Additions 1,320  50   3,160   121  3,243   1,474    27,773   218   (145) 37,214 
Disposals - 7  1,122   682  1,160   1,341    1,502  205   - 6,019

Balance end of year 46,229$       82,411$      57,695$      149,468$       26,101$       12,718$    277,033$       955$     71,212$      723,822$       

Accumulated Amortization
Balance beginning of year -$     19,083$     19,281$      72,475$       18,134$       6,611$      95,150$      467$     -$     231,201$       

 Adjustment relating to recognition of 
Asset Retirement Obligation (note 8) 

272  
272   

Balance beginning of year, restated -$     19,083$     19,281$      72,747$       18,134$       6,611$      95,150$      467$     -$     231,473$       
Amortization expense - 2,433 1,918   4,976  2,502   760    5,170  216   - 17,975 
Disposals - 7  1,086   360  1,160   1,062    876  205   - 4,756

Balance end of year -$     21,509$     20,113$      77,363$       19,476$       6,309$      99,444$      478$     -$     244,692$       

Net Book Value 46,229$       60,902$      37,582$      72,105$       6,625$      6,409$      177,589$       477$     71,212$      479,130$       

DR
A

in Progress

ork in progress having a cost of $118,468,000ork in progress having a cost of $118,468 (2022
will commence when the asset is in service. will commence when the asset is in service. 

(b) Developer Contributed Tangible Capit(b) Developer Contributed Tangi

veloper contributed tangible capitveloper contributed tangible ca
the year.   the year

RA
   19,083- 72,747   

2,433 4,976  
7  360  

$     21,509 $ 7,363 $ 

60,902    37,582$      05 $  RA
72,475$       1$       6,611 $

272  AF695 $  26,101$       12$    277,0AF55,657   150,029$       85 25$       
3,160  121  27,77   
1,122 682 1,160   1,502  AF

Thinery & 
ment Vehicles Infras

12,585FT5,847   $ 77,93 52     FTTFT
6,309  $     

917    -
1,2 -

07 $     259$       T282,658      960   $  TTT
ary 

aterials

3
5,726 2   

101  228   TTTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTAFAFAFAFAARARARARARARARARARA

V, , 

in Prog, 

$ 955 $ 71 ,212 $ 

0 33 47,256 

,d $ 118,468 $ 787,%, 

$ 99,444 $ 478 $ $ 244,692 

5,343 214 16,860 

,L87 60 228 1,575 

5,939 $ 104,727 $ 464 $ ~9,977 

$ 8,565 $ 17' '31 $ 496 $ 118,468 $ 

,QS Mach, 
Vehicle,i, .structure 

Library Work 
,ated) Equipn. Materials in Pror 

$ 149,690 $ 24,018 $ '5 $ 250,762 $ 942 

339 

.. .,g $ 24,018 $ 12,5b '~0,762 $ 

3,243 1,474 ~13 
,,_ "0 1,341 

s,411 $ 57,, 149,468 $ 12,718 $ 2, 

$ 19,083 $ 19,281 72,475 18,134 $ 6,v . 

$ $ 19,281 $ 7 $ 18,134 $ 

1,918 2,502 

1,086 1,1F 

$ 21 $ 20,113 $ 77 , 1r 

$ 46,229 $ - - C:Q? $ 72,10, 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

8. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

CNV owns several buildings known to have asset retirement obligations at their retirement.  Estimated costs have been 
discounted to the present value using a discount rate of 3.5% per annum. 

The transition and recognition of asset retirement obligations involved a change to the buildings tangible capital assets and the 
restatement of prior year figures (see note 16). 

Balances of the asset retirement obligation are as follows: 

2023 Balance at December 
31, 2023 

Balance beginning of year  $     2,649 
Accretion expense  93 

Balance end of year  $     2,742 

2022 Balance at December 
31, 2022 

Balance beginning of year  $       -
Adjustment relating to recognition of 

Asset Retirement Obligation    2,560 
Opening balance, restated  $     2,560 

Accretion expense  89 
Balance end of year  $     2,649 

DR
AF
T

stimated costsstimated

ildings tangible capital assets and tildings tangible capit h

FFecembe F2023 

AFAF
 2,64 FAFAF

  93

AAFAF
 742

AFAAAFAFAAFAAAFAFRRAARA
FAFBalance at December 

RA
F022 

RRRARARARA
 $    

RARARR
on of 

RARARARARR
on  

RARARARARR
ed 

RARARARA
 $   

RARARRe RARARARARRar RARARARA$    RARARA
,er 

$ ~49 

$ 2,i-

'3alance ... ·-.,.r 
31, 20· 

? 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

9.  ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
2023 2022

Restated (note 16) 
General funds – general, water and sewer & drainage (a) $        64,868  $        55,002   
Reserve fund (b) 99,206  124,527 
Capital fund (c)  553,049  502,230 
Accumulated surplus, end of year $      717,123  $      681,759 

(a) General funds – general, water and sewer
2023 2022 

Appropriated: 
  General fund $        23,071 $        21,867 
  Water fund 7,105 4,112 
  Sewer & Drainage fund 14,220 14,049 

Unappropriated:
  General fund 11,688  9,094 
  Water fund 4,212 3,478 
  Sewer & Drainage fund 3,743 690   

General funds – COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant 829 1,712 
$        64,868   $        55,002 

(b) Reserve Funds 

Balance Contributions Earnings Expenditures Balance
December 31, 2022 & Transfers December 31, 2023

Machinery and Equipment
  Engineering 3,220$       -$    291$     868$          2,643$      
  Fire 367   233     42      214      428    
  General 52     -    7    38    21   
  Computer 96     38    5    96    43   

Building 141   -    -   67    74   
Local Improvements 802   1      54      2   855    
Affordable Housing 10,626     509     618    3,605   8,148    
Tax Sale Lands 35,066     - 2,515 796      36,785      
Waterworks 4,935    -    336    - 5,271 
Parking 6    -    -   -     6     
Civic Amenity 64,256     10,435   6,455    53,599    27,547      
Justice Administration Accommodation 72     -    -   16    56   
Streets DCC -  1,041 3    1,044   -   
Parks DCC -      121  -   121      -   
Lower Lonsdale Amenity 8    -    -   8   -   
Lower Lonsdale Legacy 2,672    -    179    88    2,763    
Infrastructure 831   -    638    55    1,414    
Public Art 635   85    45      36    729    
Sustainable Transportation 190   88    14      48    244    
Carbon Fund 552   301     45      80    818    
Growing Communities Fund -  10,986 375    - 11,361  
Total 124,527$      23,838$       11,622$       60,781$        99,206$        DR

AF
T

6) 6) 
5,002   5,002   

T 124,527  124,527 
 502,230  502,230 

$      681,759 $      TT2022 

FFT23,071 $        21,867 23,071 $        21
7,105 7,105 4,112 

14,220 220 14,049 

11,688   9,094 
4,212 3,478 
3,743 690   

829 1,712
$        64,868   $        55,0$        64,868   $        55AFAFAFAFRARADR
A

DRD
Bala ontributions

December 31, 2022 & Transfers

3,    
233     

52        
96     

141
ments

ousing
Landsnds

worksorks
kingking

Civic AmenityCivic Amen 64,256      
Justice Administration AccommodationJustice Administration Accommodation
Streets DCCStree
Parks DCCPa
Lower Lonsdale AmenityLowe
Lower Lonsdale LegacyLower L
InfrastructureInfrastructu

blic Artblic Art
inable Transportationinable Tran

FundFund
ommunities Fundommunities

RARA
~~1ance Ct •ti• Earnings 

• , 2022 &", 

$ ,220 $ $ 
367 1 . .., 

802 
10,626 
35,066 
4,935 

6 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

9. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (continued)

(c) Capital Fund
2023 2022 

Restated (note 16) 
Invested in tangible capital assets $      525,280 $      476,481 
Appropriated capital funds 27,769 25,749 

$      553,049 $      502,230 

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) Property Taxes

CNV is obliged to levy, collect and remit property taxes on behalf of, and to finance the arrears of property taxes of, other bodies 
as follows: 

2023 2022 

Tax collected  $     133,575    $     127,265 

Less collections for and remittances to other bodies: 
Provincial Government - Schools $       42,797   $       41,153 
Greater Vancouver Regional District 2,187 2,029 
Greater Vancouver Transportation Authority 10,214 9,878 
British Columbia Assessment Authority 1,595 1,538 
Municipal Finance Authority 8 8 
BIA Lower Lonsdale Society 500 500 

$      57,301   $      55,106 

Property Value Tax $      76,274   $      72,159   

(b) Pension Liability

CNV and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension plan). The board of trustees, 
representing plan members and employers, is responsible for administering the plan, including investment of assets and 
administration of benefits. The plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a 
formula. As at December 31, 2022, the plan has about 240,000 active members and approximately 124,000 retired members. 
Active members include approximately 43,000 contributors from local governments. 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and adequacy of plan funding. 
The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’s 
calculated contribution rate is based on the entry age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and 
employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan.  This rate may be adjusted for the 
amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability. 

DR
AF
T749 49

502,230 502,230 TFTbehalf of, and to finance the arrears of property taxesance the af

20232023 2022 022 

 $     133,575    $     127,265 133,575    $     127,265 AFAFs to other bodies: 
s s $       42,797   $  $       42

al District al District 2,187 
nsportation Authority nsportation Authority 10,214 1

sessmentsessmen  Authority 1,591,
ce Authority Authority 

onsdale Society ociety Rerty Value Tax erty Value Tax 

(b) Pension Liability(b) Pen

CNV and its employees contribute to the CNV and its employees contribut
representing plan members and emplorepresenting plan members and e

ministration of benefits.ministratio  The plan The pla
a. As at December 31, 202a. As at December 31, 202

mbers include apprombers include appro

s, an as, an a



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(b) Pension Liability (continued)

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2021, indicated a $3,761 million funding 
surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  CNV paid $5,143,000 (2022 - $4,851,000) for employer 
contributions to the plan in fiscal 2023.  The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2024. 

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions made during the fiscal
year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for 
the plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual 
employers participating in the plan.   

(c) Contingent Liabilities

CNV is currently engaged in or party to certain legal actions, assessment appeals and other existing conditions involving 
uncertainty, which may result in material loss. A reasonable estimate of these future liabilities has been made where possible 
and is recorded in the financial statements as a liability. Where the outcomes or amounts or losses are uncertain, management 
has determined that there are no potential material amounts involved. 

(d) E-Comm

CNV is a member of Emergency Communications for British Columbia, Incorporated (“E-Comm”), an organization comprised 
predominately of member municipalities, for the purpose of providing emergency dispatch services.  CNV is represented on the 
board and as a class “A” shareholder has voting rights should the organization want to incur additional debt. 

The E-Comm facility was constructed using debt as a financing mechanism and members are liable for a proportionate share of 
that debt. This debt is repaid by members through annual fees charged by E-Comm.  Should E-Comm dissolve, the members 
would be liable for a proportionate share of any residual debt.  Alternatively, should members choose to opt out of E-Comm, 
they would be liable for a proportionate share of debt at the time of withdrawal.   

CNV holds 2 class “A” shares and one class “B” share. 

(e) Contractual Obligations

As at December 31, 2023 CNV had entered into various construction contracts for a total outstanding value of $140,300,000. 

11. TRUST FUNDS

Certain assets have been conveyed or assigned to CNV to be administered as directed by an agreement or statute. CNV holds 
the assets for the benefit of, and stands in a fiduciary relationship to, the beneficiary. The Cemetery Trust Fund, totaling 
$3,810,000 (2022 - $3,648,000), which is administered by CNV, has not been included with CNV’s accounts. 

DR
AF
Tindicated a $3,761 million funindicated a $

0 (2022 - $4,851,000) for employe0 (2022 - $4,851,0
2024. 024. 

of employer contributions made during the fiscalof employer contributions made during th
an recoan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets fords accrued liabilities and accrued assets r

allocating tallocatin he obligation, assets and cost to individtion, assets and cost to individ

al acal actions, assessment appeals and other existing tions, assessment appeals an
easonable esasonable estimate of these future liabilities has beetimate of these future liabilitie

a liability. Wherty. Where the outcomes or amounts or loe the outcomes or amounts or losses sse
material amounts involved. ounts involved. 

ency Communications for British ency Communications for British Columbia, IncorporColum
municipalities, fomunicip r the purpose of providing emergenthe purpose of providing 

A” shareholder has voting rights should the organizaA” shareholder has voting rights should the orga

acility was constructed using debt as a financing mecas constructed using debt as a financing mec
his debt is repaid by members aid by members through annual fees fees

e liable for a proportionate share of any residual deliable for a proportionate sha
would be liable for a proportionate share of debt at twould be liable for a proportionate sha

CNV holds 2 class “A” shares and one class “B” sCNV holds 2 class “A” shares and one class “B” 

(e)(e) Contractual ObligationsCo

t December 31, 2023 CNV had t December 31, 2023 CNV ha

UNDSUNDS

.... 

.. .. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

12. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

CNV is a diversified municipal government entity in the Province of British Columbia that provides a wide range of services to 
its citizens.  Certain functional areas have been combined and separately disclosed in the segmented information.  The segments
and the services they provide are as follows: 

General Government 
General Government provides the administrative and legislative services that support the various sectors of CNV.  Functions 
include financial planning and reporting, economic development and legislative services. 

Transportation and Transit 
The Transportation and Transit division aims to provide enhanced access to public transit, safe pedestrian and cyclist routes, 
accessible transportation for people with limited mobility and maintain existing infrastructure.  These goals are achieved through 
street design, traffic signals and signs, street lighting and road maintenance activities. 

Health, Social Services and Housing 
Health, Social Services and Housing encompasses a wide variety of City funded initiatives aimed at supporting the social 
structure and sustainability of the community.  Included are cemetery operations, youth and family support services, seniors 
programs and homeless prevention initiatives. 

Development Services 
Development Services’ focus is community planning, which includes land use guidelines, the management of City owned lands, 
heritage planning and development of CNV’s official community plan. 

Protective Services 
Protective Services is comprised of the North Vancouver RCMP detachment, the North Vancouver City Fire Department and 
bylaw enforcement.  The North Vancouver RCMP detachment plays an integral role in the protection of North Vancouver 
residents and their property through crime prevention and detection, emergency response and victim services.  The North  
Vancouver City Fire Department is responsible for providing fire suppression service, fire prevention services and fire safety 
education.  Bylaw Services is responsible for the enforcement and education of the City’s bylaws and conflict resolution. 

Parks, Recreation and Culture 
Parks, Recreation and Culture provides access to recreation facilities, the operation and maintenance of CNV’s many parks and 
trails, the North Vancouver City Library and CNV’s participation in the North Vancouver Museum and Archives and the North 
Vancouver Recreation and Culture Commission. 

Water Utilities 
The Water Utility, in conjunction with Metro Vancouver, provides safe, clean, reliable water to the residents and businesses of 
the City of North Vancouver.   

Sewer & Drainage Utilities 
The Sewer & Drainage Utility collects waste water and transports it to trunk water mains and wastewater treatment plants 
operated by Metro Vancouver.  In addition to the collection of wastewater, the Sewer Utility also manages CNV’s 150km storm 
drainage system which diverts rainfall runoff with an emphasis on flood prevention. 

DR
AF
T

a wide range ofa wide ra
ted information.  The seted inform

pport the various pport th sectors of CNV.  Functions of CNV. 
 services.  services

access to public transit, safe pedestrian and cyclist raccess to public transit, safe 
ntain existing infrastructure.  These goals are achieveexisting infrastructure.  T

d maintenance activities.ce activities.

es a wide variets a wide variety of City funded initiatives aimed y of City funded initiative
 Included are cemetery operatided are cemetery oper ons, youth and famih and fam

es. 

community planning, which includes land use guidelinommunity planning, which includes la
pment of CNV’s official community plan. pment of CNV’s official community pla

s is comprised of tis comp he North Vancouver RCMP detacNorth Vancouver RCMP detac
ment.  The North Vancouver RCMP detachment plThe North Vancouver RCMP detachment p

nd their property through crime prevention and detey through crime prevention and detecc
ver City Fire Department is responsible for providinger City Fire Department is res

cation.  Bylaw Services is responsible for the enforceation.  Bylaw Services is responsible f

Parks, Recreation and CultureParks, Recreation and Culture
Parks, Recreation and Culture prParks, Recreation and Culture provides accessovides access
trails, the North Vancouver City Library antrails, the North Vancouver City Li
Vancouver Recreation and Culture ComVancouver Recreation and Culture

UtilitiesUtilities
Utility, in conjunctUtility, in conjunct

th Vancouvth Vancouv

._ .. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

12.   SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continued) 

Solid Waste 
The Solid Waste Utility provides curbside garbage, recycling and yard trimmings collection to the residents of the City of North 
Vancouver. 
 
The Consolidated Statement of Operations by segment and services is as follows: 
 

 
 
13.  DEFERRED LEASE REVENUE 
 
In 2020, CNV entered into an agreement for the Harry Jerome Neighborhood Lands for a lease term of 99 years.  Included in 
deferred revenue is $48,911,000 (2022 - $49,421,000) in relation to this lease. 
 
14.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
CNV has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. CNV has 
identified its major risks and ensures that management monitors and controls them.  
 
(a) Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to CNV if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations. Such risks arise principally from accounts receivable made up of property tax and utilities and other non-property 
tax related balances. 
 
For property tax and utility balances, outstanding amounts are transferred to the property tax account associated with the 
invoiced real property at the end of each fiscal year and form all or part of the tax arrears for the property. CNV is required by 
the Local Government Act to conduct an annual tax sale by offering for sale by public auction each parcel of real property on 
which taxes are delinquent. Registered charge holders have the full right to redeem the property. To redeem the property, the 
charge holder must remit the full upset price, plus interest on the purchase price at a rate set by the Province, within one year 
of the tax sale. 
 
For other account receivable balances, CNV maintains allowances for potential credit losses, with results to date within CNV’s 
expectations. In making estimates in respect of the allowance for doubtful accounts, current economic conditions, historical 
information, reasons for the accounts being past due, and operational nature of invoices are all considered in the determination  

Revenues Wages & Benefits Goods & Supplies Services Amortization Capitalized Total
Annual Surplus 

(Deficit)

General government 113,398$                 20,268$              5,298$                4,508$                4,052$                (5,929)$               28,197$              85,201$              
Transportation and transit 6,863                       3,494                  838                     10,387                3,784                  (7,754)                 10,749                (3,886)                 
Health, social services and housing 469                          473                     90                       2,419                  2                         -                      2,984                  (2,515)                 
Development services 10,654                     7,115                  36                       2,453                  -                      -                      9,604                  1,050                  
Protective services 2,272                       21,081                918                     10,194                826                     (175)                    32,844                (30,572)
Parks, recreation and culture 13,054                     18,783                1,805                  56,558                6,450                  (46,453)               37,143                (24,089)               
Water utilities 16,663                     2,047                  8,887                  1,864                  827                     (1,247)                 12,378                4,285                  
Sewer utilities 19,163                     2,087                  454                     11,682                979                     (2,148)                 13,054                6,109                  
Solid waste 3,525                       1,900                  81                       1,723                  40                       -                      3,744                  (219)                    
2023 186,061$                 77,248$              18,407$              101,788$            16,960$              (63,706)$             150,697$            35,364$              

2022 (Restated) 188,575$                 68,358$              17,660$              68,797$              18,062$              (35,445)$             137,432$            51,143$              

Expenses

DR
AFeement for the Harry Jerome Neement for the Harry Jerome Neighborhood Lands foighbo

0 (2022 - $40 (2022 - $49,421,000) in relation to this lease. 9,421,000) in relation to t

MANAGEMENT MANAGE

re to the following risks from its use of financiao the following risks from its use of financial instrul instru
major risks and ensures that and ensures that management monitors amanagement monitors a

edit risk edit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to CNV if a cuCredit risk is the risk of financial loss to CNV if 
obligations. Such risks arise principally from accobligations. Such risks arise principally from acc
tax related balances. tax r

r property tax and utility balancesr property tax and utility balanc
ed real property at the end oed real property at the end 

Government Act to cGovernment Act to c
are delinquentare delinquent

ust remust rem

AF17,66017,6608,3588 $              68,797$              17,66017,660 $              18,062$              18,06268,797 $              (35,44518,062062 (35,445AFAAFAFAAFAF
$              101,78818,407 $            16,960101,788 $              (63,706)    16,96016,960 (63,706)

AF
T

e residents of the City e residen

FTFTT
Amortiz

Annua
(Defic

4,052508508 $                (5,929)4,052 28,197(5,929) $              85,20185,228,197
  10,38710,387                   (7,754)                  3,784 (7,754)                 (3(310,749

2,4192,41 22,4192,419                          2                                      -                   2,984
2,4532,453 -2,4532,45                       -                       9,604               -                   9,604

10,19410,19410,19410,194                      (175)                     826826 (175)                 32,844
56,5586 8805                 56,55856,558                   (46,453)                  6,4506,450 (46,453)                 37,143

 1,8648648,887 1,864864                      (1,247)                     827827 12,37(1,247) 12,37
         11,682454 11,682                      (2,148)                     9799 13(2,148) 13

                 1,72381 401,723 40                       -               

s

FTFTFTFTTTAFAFAFAFAFAFAF
.,zation 

$ 

$ 

$ $ 

Capitalized Total 

$ 

qi Surplus 
'cit) 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

14.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

of when to record allowances for past due accounts. The same factors are considered when determining whether to write off 
amounts charged to the allowance account against amounts receivable.  
 
(b) Market risk 
 
Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. The objective 
of market risk management is to control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return on risk, 
The market risks to which CNV is exposed are foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. 
 

(i) Foreign exchange risk 
 
Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments, or future cash flows associated with 
the instruments, will fluctuate in Canadian dollar value due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 
 
The functional currency of CNV is the Canadian dollar. CNV receives some US dollar payments and incurs some US 
dollar operating and capital costs. These US dollar transactions represent an insignificant volume and value of total 
overall transactions, resulting in minimal risk.  
 
(ii) Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in the market interest rates. CNV manages such risk by adoption of an investment policy and adherence to 
this policy and the Community Charter. Investments are in pooled funds with the Municipal Finance Authority in a 
diversified portfolio in accordance with CNV’s investment policy, which include preservation of capital, minimization of 
default and interest rate risk, sufficient liquidity to meet operating and capital requirements, and generation of a stable 
return on investments. Investments include GICs and High Interest Savings Accounts not subject to market fluctuations. 
It is management’s opinion that CNV is not exposed to significant market risk arising from its financial instruments.  

 
(c) Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that CNV will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. For its accounts 
payables, CNV manages liquidity risk by holding assets that can be readily converted into cash and by continually monitoring 
actual and forecasted cash flows from operations and anticipated investing and financing activities to ensure, as far as 
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to CNV’s reputation.DR

AF
T

mining whethermining w

ult of changes in market prices. The obult of changes in market prices. The jective 
e parameters while optimizing the return on risk,e parameters while optimizing the return o

nterest rate risks. nterest r

value of financial instruments, or future cash flows asncial instruments, 
value due to changes in foreign exchange rates. es in foreig

nadian dollar. CNVadian dollar. CN  receives some US dollar paymee US dolla
ese US dollar transactiS dollar transactions represent an insignificanons represent an insignific

inimal risk.  

he risk that the fahe risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a ir value or future ca
market interest rates. CNV manages suchmarket interest rates. CNV manages such risk by ad r

nd the Community Charter.nd the Community Charter. Investments are in poolare in 
d portfolio in accordance with CNV’s investment poportfolio in accordance with CNV’s investment policlic

t and interest rate risk, sufficient terest rate risk, sufficient liquidity to meet opeliquidity to meet ope
urn on investments. Investments include GICs and Hients. Investments include GICs and H

It is management’s opinion that CNV is not exposedt is management’s opinion tha

c) Liquidity risk c) Liquid

Liquidity risk is the risk that CNV will not be abLiquidity risk is the risk that CNV will not be ab
payables, CNV manages liquidity risk by hopayables, CNV manages liquidity r
actual and forecasted cash flows from oactual and forecasted cash flows fr

sible, that it will always have sufsible, that it will always have s
incurring unacceptable loincurring unacceptable l

.. .. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

15. BUDGET FIGURES

The budget figures presented in these consolidated financial statements include 100% of the North Vancouver City Library and 
CNV’s proportionate share of the North Vancouver Recreation Commission and North Vancouver Museum and Archives 
Commission. The financial plan was approved by Council as the Financial Plan for the Years 2023 to 2027 Bylaw, 2023, No. 
8962 April 24th, 2023. The table below reconciles the approved budget to the budget figures reported. 

Financial Plan 
Bylaw 

Revenue per Statement of Operations $     143,367 
Less: 

Budget adjustments for consolidation (137)  
Transfers from reserve (2,894)  
Interagency funds (6,573) 

(9,604) 
Revenue per Financial Plan Bylaw $     133,763 

Expenses per Statement of Operations 141,278 
Adjustments: 

Decrease for capital expenditures (7,918) 
Increase for non-capital projects 2,748 
Budget adjustments for consolidation  5,123 
Decrease for interagency payments (6,573) 

(6,620) 
Expenses per Financial Plan Bylaw  $     134,658 

Deficit for the year (895) 

Reserves and capital: 
Capital expenditures (76,443) 
Depreciation 17,700 
Equity (19,525) 
Transfers from reserves 50,444 
External contributions 28,719 

Annual budgeted surplus per Financial Plan Bylaw $     -DRDDR
ARARARA
FT

Vancouver City Vancouv
ouver Museum and ouver M

rs 2023 to 2027 Bylaw, 2023rs 2023 to 20
res reported. res reported. 

FTFT
ancial P

FT
Bylaw

FFTFTFTFFFTFT$ FFTFF  (137) FTAFAF
  94) 

AF
T

AFAF
)

AF
T

AFAAAFAFAFAF
(9

AFAFAAAFAFAFAF
$     133,7

AFAFAAAFAFAFAFAFAAAFAFAFAF 1,278AAAFAFRARARA
F

RA
,918) AFRARARARA
2,748ARARA

r consolidat

RARA
 5,ARARAARARA

agency payments 

RARAAARARAAARARAAl Plan B RARAARAARRRARARARARARRRARARARADRDRDR
A

DRR
ARDRDRRRDDRDR

Capital expenditures RRDDDRDR
Depreciation 

DD
Equity 

DRDRDDDRDRrom reseDDDRDRibutionsDRDAAnnual budgeted surplus per FinaDR

· Plan 
.J.W 

$ 143,367 

(2,8!::. 

{6,573) 

<9,604) 

$ 763 

141,. 

.Jres (7/' 

0jects ,8 
r ··~"ltion J,123 

{6,573) 

dylaw 

. .-

.t1d capital: 
r-,,nit<1I expenditurt. 

Transfers fr1.. ~rves 
External contriL s 

-inual budgeted surplus pc ancial Pl;-



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

16.  PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

On January 1, 2023, CNV adopted public sector accounting standard 3280, Asset Retirement Obligations.  This new accounting 
standard addresses the reporting of legal obligations associated with the retirement of certain tangible capital assets.  The 
standard was adopted on the modified retrospective basis at the date of adoption. 

The impact of the prior period adjustment on the December 31, 2022 comparative amounts is as follows: 

 As Previously 
Reported 

 Increase / 
(Decrease) 

 
As Restated 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position      
Asset retirement obligation liability $               -   $        2,649   $        2,649  
Tangible capital assets - cost 723,483   339  723,822  
Tangible capital assets - accumulated amortization 244,414   278  244,692  
Accumulated surplus 684,347  (2,588)  681,759 
      
Consolidated Statement of Operations      
General government expense  26,231   95   26,326  
Annual surplus 51,238   (95)  51,143  
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 633,109  (2,493)  630,616 
Accumulated surplus, end of year  684,347   (2,588)  681,759  
      
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets      
Annual surplus 51,238  (95)  51,143 
Depreciation of tangible capital assets 17,969  6  17,975 
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets 31,844  (89)  31,755 
Net financial assets, beginning of year 169,732  (2,560)  167,172 
Net financial assets, end of year 201,576  (2,649)  198,927 
      
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows      
Annual surplus 51,238  (95)  51,143 
Depreciation expense 17,969  6  17,975 
Accretion expense -  89  89 
      
Note 9 - Accumulated Surplus      
(c) Capital fund 504,818  (2,588)  502,230 
Invested in tangible capital assets 479,069  (2,588)  476,481 

 
 
17.  COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 
 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation.  These reclassifications 
had no effect on the reported results of operations. 

DR
AF
T

tions.  This newtions.  Th
n tangible capital assen tangible

ounts is as follows: nts is as follows: 

FF
iously 

F
ported 

FTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFT
s Restat

FFFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFFTFTFTFTFFF$  FTFTFTFT$       FTFTFTFTAFAAFAF
7

AF
TFTAF
TFTFTFTFTFTAFAAFAF

  244,414 

AF
T

AF
T

AF
TFTFTFTFTFTAFAAFAF

684,347 

AFAFAFFFFFAFAAFAFAFAFAFFFAFAAFAFAFAFAFFAFAAFAFAFAFAFFAFAAFAF  51,238 AFAFAFFRARAAA
33,109 AAARARAAAARARAAARARA

t of Changes in Net Financial Assets AARARAAARARAgible ca AARARAn net financial assets A
DRDR

nning of year 

DRDR
ncial assets, end of year 

DRDRDRDR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

DRDRAAnn DRDRDe DDAAccret DDDDe 9 - Accumulated SurplusDDal fund DDangible capit

.anges in I\ 

:apital assets 

.,ase) ir, ,ancial ar 

.. , assets, begir, ·f · 

.,1ri-1 ---0 ts, end of y1:, 

Jlidated State,. 

,nual surplus 

•epreciation expense 

"ltion expense 

fCash h 

~umulated S· , .. 

, 

inancial Ass, 

723,483 

. 4' 

b, 

26,231 

63-i, . 

684,347 

Increase/ As. 'ted (Decrease) 

2,649 $ 2r 

339 T 

278 

(2,588) 



DR
AF
T



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
Schedule A & B - Unaudited  
Year ended December 31, 2023 
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) 

Schedule A: COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant 
2023 

2022 Grant Funding Balance  $      1,712  
Grant Expenditures: 
    Business Continuity    (128) 
    Community Resiliency & Recovery    (223) 
    City Services    (521) 
    Response & Emerging Issues   (11) 
2023 Grant Funding Balance, December 31, 2023  $     829  

Schedule B: Growing Communities Fund 
2023 

2023 Grant Funding Balance $       10,986 
Interest Earned 375 
Grant Expenditures - 
2023 Grant Funding Balance, December 31, 2023  $       11,361 

DR
AF
T2023 

$       10,986 

AF
375 

- 
023  $       11,361  $       11,36AFAF



To: 

From: 

Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Matthew Menzel, Planner 3 

REPORT 

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 120-128 EAST 14TH STREET (THREE 
SHORES MANAGEMENT, CD-760) AND TEXT AMENDMENT: 

Date: 

CENTENNIAL THEATRE, 2300 LONSDALE AVENUE, 116 EAST 23Ro 
STREET AND NORSEMAN PARK (HJNL, CD-165) 

April 24, 2024 File No: 08-3400-20-0075/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 3, dated April 24, 2024, entitled 
"Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, 
CD-760) and Text Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 
116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165)": 

THAT the application submitted by Three Shores Management to rezone the 
property located at 120-128 East 14th Street from a C-1 B Zone to a 
Comprehensive Development Zone and to amend the CD-165 Zone to facilitate a 
density transfer, be considered with no Public Hearing held, in accordance with 
the Local Government Act, section 464(3) [public hearing prohibited]; 

THAT "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960" 
(Three Shores Management, 120-128 East 14th Street, CD-760 (the Density 
Receiver Site)) and Text Amendment to Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale 
Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-165) be 
considered for first, second and third readings with no Public Hearing held, in 
accordance with the Local Government Act, section 464(3) [public hearing 
prohibited]; 

THAT the community benefits listed in the report section "Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits" be secured through agreements at the applicant's expense 
and to the satisfaction of staff; 

Document Number: 2303369 V4 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the required 
legal agreements including an encroachment agreement to permit solar shades, 
which are permanently affixed to the proposed building and encroach over City 
property, and any other necessary documentation to give effect to the motion. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Context Map (CityDocs #2332844) 
2. Architectural Plans, dated May 26, 2023 (CityDocs 2487429) 
3. Landscape Plans, dated May 26, 2023 (CityDocs 2372519) 
4. Advisory Design Panel Resolution, dated November 26, 2021 (CityDocs #2164065) 
5. Integrated Transportation Committee Resolution , dated February 2, 2022 (CityDocs 

#2169119) 
6. Developer Information Session Summary (CityDocs #2174121 ) 
7. Updated Public Notification Report (CityDocs 2478328) 
8. Overview of Variances to Zoning and Parking Provisioning (CityDocs #2376274) 
9. "Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960" (CityDocs 

#2332897) 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of this report is to present a rezoning application for the property located at 
120-128 East 14th Street (the "subject site") to amend the Zoning Bylaw to permit a 21-
storey mixed-use commercial and residential development. The proposal would replace 
the existing commercial buildings. 

Also included in the proposal is a transfer of density from the CD-165 zone in respect of 
the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre Lands to the subject site to facil itate 
the redevelopment. 

Table 1. Project Information 

Applicant: Three Shores Management 
Architect: lntegra Architecture 
Official Community Plan Mixed Use Level 4B (MU4B) 
Designation: 
Existing Zoning: Central Lonsdale Mixed Use B (C-1 B) Zone 
Applicable Guidelines: N/A 

DISCUSSION 

Site and Surrounding Uses 

This 1,457 square metre (15,691 square foot) site is located mid-block along the 100 
block of East 14th Street, with a frontage of 34 metres (111.5 feet) along East 14th 

Street. Surrounding uses are provided in Table 2. 

Page 2 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

Table 2. Surrounding Uses 

Direction Address Zonin Description OCP 
1440-1460 

1 to 3-storey Mixed Use - Level 48 
Lonsdale Ave & Commercial (C-1A & 

commercial (High Density) 
North 121-137 E 15th C-18) 

Max. 3.0 FSR with 1.0 
(across St Comprehensive 

16 & 23-
storey mixed- FSR bonus density 

lane) 143 E 15th St & Development (CD-
1441 St Georges 691) 

use (rental Max. Height 68m 

Ave 
residential) (approx. 22 storeys) 

Commercial (C-1A) 
Mixed Use - Level 48 

1318-1356 Comprehensive 1 to 3-storey 
(High Density) 

South Lonsdale Ave & Development (CD- commercial 

(across E 109-111 E 14th St 631) 24-storey 
Max. 3.0 FSR with 1.0 

14th St) 119-127 E 14th St Comprehensive mixed-use 
FSR bonus density 

147 E 14th St Development (CD- 3-storey civic 
Max. Height 68m 

0166) 
(approx. 22 storeys) 

Mixed Use - Level 48 
140 E 14th St Commercial (C-18) 12-storey (High Density) 

East 150-160 E 14th St Comprehensive mixed-use Max. 3.0 FSR with 1.0 
& 1401-1419 St Development (CD- 11-storey FSR bonus density 
Georges Ave 079) mixed-use Max. Height 37m 

(approx. 12 storeys) 

Mixed Use - Level 48 

West 108-116 E 14th St 
(High Density) 

(across & 1400-1434 Commercial (C-1A) 
10-storey Max. 3.0 FSR with 1.0 

lane) Lonsdale Ave 
mixed-use FSR bonus density 

Max. Height 68m 
(approx. 22 storeys) 

Proposal 

The application proposes a 21-storey mixed-use building, with two levels of commercial 
uses, including retail and services at ground level, office commercial uses at level 2, 
and 19 levels of strata residential units within the upper levels. Parking access is 
provided off the rear lane to the north. Table 3 provides an overview of the proposed 
development. 

Table 3. Development Proposal Overview 

Element Proposal 

Density 9.98 FSR 

Commercial Retail A total of 1,371 square metres (14,759 square feet) or 0.94 
& Office Space FSR. 

Unit Mix 164 residential strata units, including: 

• 18 studio units; 

• 71 one-bed units; 

Page 3 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

Element Proposal 

• 54 two-bed units; and 

• 21 three-bed units (12.8%) . 
Adaptable Units 41, Level 2 adaptable units (25%), comprised of: 

• 6 studio units; 

• 18 one-bed units; and 

• 17 two-bed units . 
Residential Indoor - 219.6 sq. m. or 2,364 sq. ft.; and 
Amenity Outdoor - approx. 255 sq. m. or 2,750 sq. ft. 

Policy Context and Planning Analysis 

The subject site is designated Mixed Use Level 48 (High Density) in the Official 
Community Plan (OCP). A maximum height of 68 metres (approximately 22 storeys) is 
permitted. 

This designation allows for a mix of higher density multi-family and commercial uses 
with a maximum density of 4.0 FSR (including 1.0 bonus FSR). Consistent with section 
2.3 of the OCP, City Council may authorize a density transfer between properties, which 
permits an additional density above the maximum, to facilitate a preferable form of 
development. The proposal will involve a density transfer, which is discussed further 
below. 

Land Use 
The proposed mix of commercial and residential uses are appropriate along the Central 
Lonsdale corridor, which is envisioned as a key growth corridor in the City. 

The ground floor retail space, as well as second floor office commercial uses, are 
supported , as they would contribute to the vibrancy and economic development of 
Central Lonsdale. 

The proposed strata residential use meets the policy objective of increasing diverse 
housing stock within the City. The proposed mix of unit types meets directions of the 
Housing Action Plan, including delivery of a minimum of 10% as three-bedroom units to 
support families. The proposal also meets the Zoning Bylaw minimum requirement for 
25% of units designed to Level 2 Adaptable Design. 

Built Form & Urban Design 
The proposed built form is consistent with the character of the neighbourhood. The 
proposed height at 68 metres (21 storeys) complies with the OCP and ensures the 
building integrates with existing and future developments on nearby lots, as well as 
establishes an appropriate commercial podium wall along East 14th Street. 

Tower positioning has been considered to ensure that the project will meet the minimum 
24.4 metre (80 feet) building separation to surrounding towers within proximity to the 
subject site. 

Page 4 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

Extensive glazing treatments within the design of ground floor retail and commercial 
uses will activate the streetscape (both along East 14th Street and the north-south 
laneway). The development will also deliver a publicly accessible courtyard along the 
laneway to provide a gathering place for the community. This courtyard, along with a 
publicly accessible sidewalk, will be secured for public use through statutory rights of 
way (SRW) agreements. 

The proposal will also involve an encroachment into the East 14th Street road right of 
way, for an architectural building feature which will function as a solar shade and 
weather protection for pedestrians using the City's footpath network. The encroachment 
will be authorized by an encroachment agreement. 

A high level of laneway activation and casual surveillance is also achieved through: 
incorporating glazing treatments to the western elevation of the retail corner; inclusion of 
the publicly accessible courtyard adjacent to the laneway; orientation of windows from 
the level two office tenancies to the west; positioning of the short term bicycle spaces 
adjacent to the laneway; and orientating the communal outdoor amenity area towards 
the laneway. 

View Impacts and Tower Separation 
The tower positioning and floor plate have been designed to minimize potential impacts 
on view corridors to the fullest extent possible. This is addressed through floorplates 
that have a narrow width of 19.8 metres (65 feet) to the northern and southern 
elevations, which is less than the 30.48 metres (100 feet) prescribed for the C-1 B zone. 

It is important to consider that any decrease in building height would result in a wider 
floorplate, causing more adverse impacts on view corridors. The slender tower format is 
deemed appropriate as it will lessen impacts on view corridors for surrounding 
residents. 

While there is likely to be some impact on existing views, the OCP does not guarantee 
that views will be preserved through redevelopment that is anticipated in the City. This 
is especially true in the Regional City Centre that is envisaged to accommodate 
regional-scale employment, services, business and commercial activities, along with 
high density housing. 

Density 
The proposed density is 9.98 FSR and consists of two components: 

1. The OCP permits a maximum density of 4.0 FSR (including 1.0 FSR bonus 
density) for the Mixed Use Level 48 land use designation; and 

2. A density transfer is proposed to add an additional 8,710 square metres (93,754 
square feet) of density, being 5.98 FSR. 

In accordance with Section 2.3 of the OCP, City Council may authorize a density 
transfer between properties, which permits additional density above the maximum 
specified in the OCP being achieved on a site, where the building height limits are not 

Page 5 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

exceeded. This process does not require an OCP amendment, as such transfers do not 
involve an increase in the total development potential in the City, but rather the 
relocation of density allowance from one parcel to another. 

The transferred density is from the CD-165 zone in respect of the lands being 
developed for the City's new Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre, and will 
allow for the delivery of new employment generating uses and residential strata units, 
which would contribute to economic growth along the Lonsdale Corridor and provide 
new housing stock in the City. 

There are few locations in the City's Mixed Use Level 4B (Medium Density) land use 
designations that can accommodate additional (i .e. transfer) density without the 
resultant building forms exceeding the height limits established in the OCP. The subject 
site is one of those few locations. The OCP allows for a maximum of 68 metres 
(approximately 22 storeys) on the subject site. The proposed increase in density will not 
result in an increase in building height beyond what is permitted by the OCP. 

In summary, based on staff support of the built form and urban design of the proposal, 
the total proposed density on the site is also supported. The proposed density transfer 
is discussed in greater depth below. 

Zoning Variances 
The proposed Comprehensive Development Zone will be based off of the Central 
Lonsdale Mixed Use B (C-1 B) Zone, and is consistent with the current zoning of the 
subject site and surrounding land. To allow the massing, the proposed bylaw would 
include the modifications to the C-1 B zone base density, building height, lot coverage, 
flanking lane siting , rear boundary setback and building width. A table summary and 
overview of the proposed zoning changes is included as Attachment 8 to this report. 

Transporlation, Parking and Loading 
The site is located in the Lonsdale Regional City Centre, with shops and amenities 
within a short walking distance. Transit access is provided on two Frequent Transit 
Routes providing strong connections along Lonsdale Avenue, to Lynn Valley Centre and 
to Downtown Vancouver. 

The application proposes vehicle access to the underground parkade from the northern 
lane. Three loading bays are also provided adjacent to this lane. The loading design 
would ensure that all commercial and residential loading would be undertaken on-site 
and would not impact the functionality of the surrounding road network. 

Table 4 provides a summary and overview of the proposed car parking provisioning 
associated with the project: 

Page 6 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

Table 4. Proposed Vehicle and Bicycle Parking 
Car Provided 
Parking Total of 184 spaces, comprised of: 

Bicycle 
Parking 

Loading 
Spaces 

• 153 resident parking spaces 
(including 8 disability spaces); 

o 0.93 spaces per unit; 
• 13 residential visitor spaces; 
• 15 commercial spaces (including 

one disability spaces); 
• 3 shared residential visitor/ 

commercial spaces. 
Provided 
Residential : 
• Secure - 246 spaces; 
• Short Term -16 spaces. 

Note: 
o 47 of the secure bicycle spaces 

are provided in the P2 level. 
o 31 of the 246 secure spaces 

have been provided for larger 
cargo bikes. 

Commercial: 
• Secure - 6 spaces; 
• Short Term - 8 spaces. 
3 at-grade loading spaces, comprised 
of: 
• One full sized loading space (i.e. 

2.7m x 9.15m); and 
• 2 smaller passenger vehicle sized 

loading spaces (i.e. 2.7m x 5.5m). 

Required by Zoning Bylaw 
• 172 resident spaces, 

including 16 visitor 
parking spaces (156 
resident spaces 
excluding visitor spaces); 

• 18 commercial spaces. 

Required by Zoning Bylaw 
Residential: 
• Secure - 246 spaces; 
• Short Term - 16 spaces. 

Commercial: 
• Secure - 6 spaces; 
• Short Term - 8 spaces. 

Required by Zoning Bylaw 
One loading space. 

Overall, the application generally meets the parking and loading requirements of the 
Zoning Bylaw apart from some minor variances to resident, commercial and visitor 
parking. These variances are supported by staff. An overview of the proposed parking 
variances are included as part of Attachment 8 to this report. 

Traffic Impacts 
A Transportation Study was completed for the proposed development and 
demonstrates that the surrounding road network and intersections can accommodate 
the future traffic from the development with minimal additional delay. Traffic in the lane 
specifically will increase, since the proposed development will have increased parking 
accessed from the lane. The development will generate approximately 86 and 95 
vehicle trips during the AM and PM peak hours respectively, however, with this 
additional traffic, the lane will still function as intended. 

Page 7 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 141h Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

Off-Site Works and Infrastructure Upgrades 
The proposed development will provide off-site streetscape upgrades, consistent with 
the City's Subdivision and Development Control Bylaw. This includes the reconstruction 
of the frontage works along East 14th Street with new sidewalk, street lighting, street 
furnishings , and a seating area. Existing street trees will be retained and additional 
street trees will be provided . The development will also repave East 14th Street and the 
adjoining laneways to the northern and western boundaries. 

In addition to the bylaw required infrastructure upgrades, the applicant will complete the 
design and construction of a full traffic signal at the intersection of East 14th Street and 
St. Georges Avenue, and has agreed to make a financial contribution of $59,621.00 
towards future upgrades to the sanitary sewer main on East 14th Street. 

These requirements will be secured through a Servicing Agreement with the City. 

Density Bonus and Community Benefits 

In accordance with the Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, the application is 
eligible for density bonuses up to 4.0 FSR, in exchange for a community benefit 
contribution (CBC). The estimated value of the CBC is shown in Table 5. 

Table 5. Estimated Value of Community Benefits through Density Bonusing 

Density Value Calculation Value 

Density Bonus to 3.0 FSR / OCP Density(@ $25 /sq . ft.) $156,910.00 

Density Bonus to 4.0 FSR Max Bonus (@ $190 I sq. ft.) $2 ,981 ,290.00 

Total Value of Community Benefits $3,138,200.00 

Density Transfer 
As mentioned previously, this project includes the proposed purchase of transfer density 
from the new Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre portion of the Harry Jerome 
Neighbourhood Lands as the density donor site (2300 Lonsdale Avenue and 116 East 
23rd Street, CD-165), in accordance with Section 2.3 of the OCP. Such transfers 
reallocate density from one site to another and do not increase the overall density 
contemplated by the OCP. 

The applicant is proposing to purchase 5.98 FSR (8,710 square metres or 93,754 
square feet) of additional density from the City at the current market value of $195 per 
buildable square foot. This will result in an estimated cash contribution of $18,282,030 
to be allocated towards the Civic Amenity Reserve Fund. The final contribution amount 
will be confirmed prior to final adoption of this rezoning based on the current market 
value rate. 

The total monetary value that this project would generate, including CBC and density 
transfer purchase is $21,420,230 as outlined in Table 6 below (including allocations). 

Page 8 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 141h Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

T, bl 6 T, t I P . t M t C t 'b t' d All t' 

Community Density Transfer Total 
Benefits 

Civic Amenity Reserve $2,510,560 $18,282,030 $20,792,590 
Fund Contribution 

Affordable Housing $627,640 - $627,640 
Reserve Fund 
Contribution 

Total $3,138,200.00 $18 ,282,030 $21,420,230 

The following items would also be secured as additional benefits to the community 
through this application: 

• Public art with a value of $395,000.00 (approximately 1 % of the construction 
costs); 

• Design and construction of a full traffic signal upgrade at the intersection of East 
14th Street and St. Georges Avenue; 

• Financial contribution of $59,621 .00 towards upgrading the sanitary main on 
East 14th Street; 

• Relocation of existing utility pole at E/W lane and St. Georges Avenue; 
• Public access right-of-way along the western boundary to provide safe public 

thoroughfare along the north-south laneway; and 
• Public access right-of-way over the courtyard adjacent to the western laneway, 

providing a public gathering place for the community. 

Legal Agreements 

The following agreements would be secured as conditions of this rezoning: 

• Development Covenant (with Public Art provisions) ; 
• Servicing Agreement; 
• Shoring and Crane Swing Agreement; 
• Flooding Covenant; 
• Community Energy Agreement; 
• Statutory Right of Way for Sidewalk and Pedestrian access; 
• Statutory Right of Way for Courtyard ; 
• Community Good Neighbour Agreement; and 
• Encroachment Agreement for solar shades. 

ADVISORY BODY INPUT 

Advisory Design Panel 

The application was reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel (ADP) on March 16, 2022. 
The Panel recommended approval of the proposal subject to addressing the following 
issues to the satisfaction of staff: 

Page 9 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

• Further design development of the ground floor residential lobby relative to the 
public realm and mixing of commercial and residential uses with particular 
attention to CPTED for security and safety concerns; and 

• Further design development for bike parking within the public realm for enhanced 
visibility, eyes on the street and accessibility. 

Revised designs were subsequently submitted that address the above concerns to the 
satisfaction of staff. 

Integrated Transportation Committee 

The application was reviewed by the Integrated Transpiration Committee (ITC) on April 
6, 2022. The Panel unanimously supported the proposal and made the following 
recommendations: 

• That the developer include larger bike parking facilities to accommodate cargo 
bikes, including bikes with trailers; 

• That the developer ensure security measures are in place to reduce bicycle theft; 
• That City staff investigate the north-south lane and ensure an effort is made to 

minimize the conflicts between cars and pedestrians; 
• That the Committee expresses their concern about the potential for increased 

congestion at the east-west lane at the St. George's intersection; and, 
• That the Committee are concerned about the impending rise in traffic congestion 

along Central Lonsdale as a result of planned and future developments. 

Revised designs were subsequently submitted that address the above concerns to the 
satisfaction of City staff. This includes the provision of 31 cargo bike spaces within the 
P1 Level, and ensuring appropriate security measures are in place to prevent access to 
bicycle rooms within the parkade levels. 

Further, the 1.8 metre SRW over the western boundary has also been provided to 
enhance safety for pedestrians accessing the laneway. 

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 

A Developer's Information Session was held on March 30, 2022 and was attended by 
46 members of the public. A total of 45 comment forms were submitted and nine emails 
were received; 28 indicated support for the project; 22 were opposed; two indicated 
conditional support; and two did not specify either support or opposition. 

A subsequent Public Notification mail-out was delivered to the nearby residents on 
February 13, 2024 to provide an update of the project, and allow a further opportunity 
for comments to be submitted. A total of eight emails were received; two indicated 
support for the project; six were opposed. 

Page 10 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 14th Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

The main reasons for support were: 
• Provision of new housing supply in the City to address current undersupply; 
• New office and retail opportunities; 
• New housing to support local workforce; 
• The building design; and 
• Densification providing better use of infrastructure and more sustainable use of 

resources. 

The main concerns were: 
• Building height; 
• Tower separation; 
• View impacts; 
• Density; 
• Traffic and parking impacts; and 
• Construction impacts. 

A summary of the public consultation, as prepared by the applicant, is available in 
Attachment 6 and Attachment 7. It is the opinion of staff that the comments raised 
during the community consultation have satisfactorily been addressed. 

NO PUBLIC HEARING FOR OCP COMPLIANT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

Pursuant to recent Provincial amendments to Section 464 of the Local Government Act, 
which came into force on November 30, 2023, the City must not hold a public hearing 
on a proposed rezoning bylaw if: an OCP is in place for the subject site; the bylaw is 
consistent with the OCP; the purpose of the bylaw is to permit a development that is 
residential; and that residential component is at least half of the gross floor area for the 
development. Since all of these factors apply to this development, no public hearing will 
be held and notices have been published prior to First Reading of the Bylaw, as 
required by the Local Government Act. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

As discussed under the Density Bonus and Community Benefits section, this 
application, if approved, would generate the following monetary benefits for the City: 

• Cash community benefit contribution: $3, 138,200; and 
• Purchase of transfer density from the City estimated at $18,282,030. 

This combines to a total monetary contribution (sum of the above two items) of 
approximately $21,420,230. 

Any deviation from the 93,754 sq. ft. of transfer density proposed would result in a 
change of the density transfer payment by the agreed upon $195 per buildable square 
foot of FSR area. 

Page 11 of 12 



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 120-128 East 141h Street (Three Shores Management, CD-760) and Text 
Amendment: Centennial Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165) 
Date: April 24, 2024 

These financial benefits are in addition to other City requirements, such as development 
cost charges (DCCs), utility upgrades, intersection upgrades and public art. 

CONCLUSION 

This application has been assessed and is in alignment with the goals and objectives of 
the Regional Growth Strategy (Metro 2040), OCP and Council Strategic Plan to intensify 
employment generating uses, and to increase and diversify the residential housing 
stock within the Lonsdale Regional City Centre. The proposal will also contribute funds 
to support community amenities and enhancements through the Capital Plan process. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Matthew Menzel 
Planner 3 

Page 12 of 12 



Lo
ns

da
le

 A
ve

St
. G

e o
rg

es
A

ve

E 14th St

E 15th St

E 13th StW 13th St

W 15th St

2

1
3

5

1
2

0

1 5 0 0

1
2

1

1
3

3

1 4 5 2

1 3 5 0

1 4 4 1

1 4 7

1
2

81
4

0
0

1 1 9

1 5 2

1 4 1 51 4 0

1 4 4 5

4
5

1 3 4 4

1
2

1

0

1
4

3
3

0

1
3

2

1 3 5 7

1 4 0 1

2

1 3 1 8

2

1 6 5

1 4 5 3

1
3

3

1 4 4 0

1
3

0
1

1
3

7

2

1
2

1

1
4

1

1 3 0 8

Context Map: 120-128 East 14th Street Legal_Parcels~1!Y 
vancouver 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

jpeters
FreeText
Attachment 2�



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

II 
- f-- lntegra - f--

- f--

- f--
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

1111111111111111111111111 1 I=~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~ 111111 l' !T!'l 11111~~~~~~~~ 
==================================================================~-~~~~~~~~~~~~ , .. \\-;_;~~·~~;,,,t, 

I I I 11 I I I I I ==================================================================~ t}j:•~ i 
______ \,,\~ ... :<~,/ 

'i,,,:1;;.~,1~r~_,, .. 
---1-----1 I I I I I I I 
---1-----1 I I I I I I I 
- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f-- I I I I I I 
- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--

- f--



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

"':"'m,t ~ ....... ~~ ....... _ .. 
• ~~--=-
... OCI' ...... ....., -av,~o;,,~ --1DM OC,.IM'llli,.. 

--· --· . ,.___~..., 
• ...__..~. 
• ---~I 
• ----~· --"""'Lo,o,,1 1 
. ... v.i..-,,,1, 
. ...... U.L.wo,111 

• --u.~ .... • Mat.Ju..~• 

• :::=-qt,IIJ,Nl,lllj --· --.a-; .. .__ 
• -
• ---,_ ........ ,_,._ _, .. 
-=--= ....... ..... ~i. • ~u..e..--
- ~·--La-. - --------_ ... -----,.. _ 

'I 

" . 'lh!H!!!iUi.! 

J l 1. ! 

l 
• I --~ 

·• 
- ·- •·1 

1~----'=---....:::;:::=::=;:::i~ =::::ii:======= ' ~ !, 
-,: f: 

" 
" 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

--- --- ____ _ j 
! 

________ _j ___________ j_ __________ i _________ _ 
I--

I 

r-~~~~~-~-n-,~~~r-----------T ---------------------
1 i 

! 

l 

---~-----\ I r-----------:~~:_-_-_-_-_-_-_-~---~---------~------- ------------

i 
! 
I 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

~"'fl 

, - 0 [ 
~ •. . .. 

. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

,- - - -
' ' ' ' ' 
' ' ' ' l •--=; 

~" 
'\, ::,,._, 

'\, ~- x" .. ,, .. 

- • 

=·-

w•-L ____ _ 

~ --::-----,,. ~ 
~ ... 

'\. Z.,,";' --,,,,,~~=~''=5 ~=ss"~=~~§i.?,•r1 

,, 

• • 

:;:., ~ ; 
~ ~ ~ ~~~h' ~·.,"'F·..,..~ ==,~" =~~ " 

Ill 

tt 1l ~=-
@':::;-,: 

____ _L ____________ ,,, ______ _ 
----/ -------------..,,_,;. __________ ,; 

.==· 
::.=.Ql 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

,, 

,,, 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

I : r 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

i 

i 

i 

-l-t---..-1---'il-rn,o!r-=~--1---1-.--r-4-m ~$11-
____ l ____ J __ l __ M~IJ§ll,~~,, 

4-

------..-t 
~-------- "- I - - - -----'-------

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

L
O

N
D

S
D

A
L
E
 A

V
E
N

U
E

LANE

E 14th ST.

L
A

N
E

LANE

E 14th ST.

L
A

N
E

LANE

E 14th ST.

L
A

N
E

LANE

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

0 -

I 
I 

9~ 99 
' : ' ' 

9~9 
' : ' 

9 9 9 
I I I I I I II 

~~~l~.-~=·· ~~: ~ i ~~~, ~~>-+-~ ___,~= ___,= 11 ~, ~I i ___ = 1 r~/ r-rr<:· -----------------T·-- I ntegra 
I I I I 

I 
I 

j ij _;_ l ~ ~· o ARCHITECTURE INC. 

- ---

7

~ ~ -------·~.!-'" . ..++-
0-+:-+-· -• --+j +-+~-+-[p'-,~_ ++--, .... -~ .-< .... -.. -.: _~: ___ • __ :;-+~-• --- +-- -· • --+f W+''n I li 11 - -

!,2==~' ~!Uf:~ i ~ -~ i : i i 

I\ : :·-r-~ ~ : i ·-n 
n===:::::::::::i1=!=t=l[ \ · I ~ i i • , r,-+--..-+=, ~~--+-+--+-c1--+-• --cc•c-+--~ • 

,F~~~~n--+-, ~\ -j-!1-J-:::-tv.-----'h , ~- t'--l 

• 

• 
i 

• i 

• : i\ • I : I • i ~ hl==c=hl~ =cl=i ~ _.I 

0 - - ---~~+-~ µ!\ r 7 <:·\ ~ +-...l=it=•=±;==li_ __ -0 
• : I Id l 1· I I 

----t".' i::::::i .( __ .. •· .. -· • I 

0 ~ I --0 I· i 

. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -J B -------• ·I-_- _- _ - _ -- - -• --j- r-+ - + -~ i, - ; /·I.' - - - - - - - - - -fr t- ---
!~~~ ~ !---:-:-+-+-1' -fr! . ~ ~! 1; 

---------------------------' 

• I 

I ~ r 1 Ill:- ! i ] J' : tp=cl 
0 -- - · ~ - --~--+-- ~t- · f- -- -- _, _. , , , . 1 

n I ttne i ~ • nl ' In 1r [ j I V W i 

ut-- -- -0 C 

0 -

ii~~ 
·-T • 

• i 

'-

• 1 

ol 
i 

I·: k;~ : • !0 • ~ : [ tJ [] - ~ / T~ 

. ~ ~~p -+-{O: - ~[I . _JI ··~··~ n ' r•c::::cil-1-} i-tlF~±IF!l::FF=li- - -0 
! fl/ I I 

~~=--~: -*"-= -~;:.t.v~--~, ~--,..i~-~-~ --~ ·=at;.1· ~-.... ~~i~_,..._ ~ --~--~ -~-..... ~ --~ .;t,..i_~ _..,_·.::.1'·1------~--- ---------------L--
: i 

0 0 00 0 :o 0 0 0 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

< I 
I 

? 9 ~ 9 9 ?~? 9 9 9 
I I I I I I I I I I II 

~!';!, ~1 ~ ·-~>, ·~ ,~ : ~ i~~~:~=f-+-~-----,~~~ n=I ~i =1 =~r-rr1:· -----------------T--- lntegra 

o- - - ~ J~i1~u~.• -•--~-~•- ,-~--~ iij1 •~ - -0 
~ - 1<;, · ' ~..c- ' e-+'- ---+-----!Hn=:':~~====H ==t· fl.., = . ~ - - '':° ... .. ............. ......... / • 

r : ~ i : i i -1/ 1---+-1 
__ ,. 

• :·-r~ I ~ I ·-·-r7 / • i 

• I i I~~ V • I 

I ~ 0 l_Jn;Y0 vf~ 
• I I}: -~ I T'.l==~hlc=~1' - ~ • 

o- - -- 0 ~~ -+- ~l- ~ < ," J~ + ---'l=lr==
0 

;=• =Ii,_ __ -o 
-- I ~ 1!1 1 

I 

LLU_ I ~t ~ / 1 ,-!<-------;-• 1----H 

- i 1------f 1: !=!:==+= 1' ==II 

_________________ Jt;t ------ -:; -} - - --j- r=-=-= ~ le --- - --o-t---- --- _____________________ _. ___ _ 
_ :_ _,\_ i_: ~ I f-+ ; 

, - - · ~ 
1 l-UJ+:[;Z::::=~ t ll i: , 

-- ~ \ - I .., ' r----t ,7 _1, 
-- • \ 1~ 1 l jg 

0 - -- I I -~ -:- ~ I I/ i I ~ I 
n =?, . ,(n j ~ ,- n 

-- [/ : i L i :j j i 

: I'\, ~ ~ -1- 1 : 1 - f 
, ' /\: I i i : i i 

l -tj,_ .. L--1, I I I 

0 0 00 0 :o 0 

I 

• I 

I 

-u t-- -- -0 

I • 

• I 

i 
I 

ci 
I '-. [ 

0 0 

ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

0 -

0 -

of-------

------------·-··T··-

i 
i 
i 
i 
i 
i 
i 

0 I 

1- - - - - - - - - - - - - -
I 

jc 
I 
I 
I 

i 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

~ r-;: -~ -~ -~-~ ~-~~~-;;;~~:;;;;,;;-;;;;,•~=-;;;;=~t~ft5~[li~~fll~~~:__-4-_.....,..~-----------------T·-

0 

I 
0 - -1 

:I 

I ,I 

ii B -------:~ 
I 
:I 
I .I ,, 

0 -

- t 
I: 

I I, 

I i 
I , i ----1 - -

i 

i 

O " "iFD Hl-+---111 

0 

0 

l!---'-"---m1--,,..-........ -,......__,_...-. .......... -= ........ --................ --....._.:: __ ~ -0 ---- --------- ____ l __ _ 
I 

0 0 00 0 :o 0 0 0 

l ntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

? ~..:--~~=~~=~4-=~==+--+--•-,-,,-,(.- -----------------T---
lntegra 

0 ARCHITECTURE INC. 

0 

0 

0 0 00 0 :o 0 0 0 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

---.i=!====;,1 7 I nteg ra 
0 -;-n--,~~~~ ~ ~ ~ ~:f=~ ARCHITECTURE INC. 

0 0 00 0 :o 0 0 0 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

--------------------------' 

I 
I 

? t<) if It= T f l 

0 0 00 0 :o 0 0 0 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

9 
I 

I 
I 

~ 
I 

~ 
I 

~::::::::::::::::;::::::::,:::::+:::i:::~:::::::::;:::::r, +:::::::::.:::~1~:::::::..:::::::.::::::::+--~-~- ·----------------T--

j r-----L--~- J __ L ____ J __ ~L------L------- 7 I 
0 

--L- ' I ' ' ' I ' ' I ___ J __ 

---o -1~1 
·I I i I 
.I I 
'i I A I, I -- ~ -------~-t- ---- --
1 I 
:I I I I ,I I 

I ' 

: I 
I ' 
I 

+--t-lh~= 

i ~SU 

i 

i 

t----
i 

i i : i 
' ' I ' 

- +I 
I: 

I I, 

ii ---+--
1 
I: 
I I. 

0 

0 ,, I ~ ~ ~--- -t --r -- ,----t~, -~=;J- ---- - + 0 
: i 
I ' 

I : ! 

I ' 

: I 

: i 
I ' 

: I 

0 - , , • ' I ~--- , -t 
_____ l ____ J __ l ____ J __ ~L ______ L _______ J l 

()cc -L-- ---L -~-L-L -- -L~r.L - -- J= -- - . _ j___ G-------------------L. 
i ' : ' ' ' I ' ' i 

0 0 00 0 :o 0 0 0 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

ll 

j [ 
~ 

I 

G
e:= 
~ 

= = }-
lntegra 
'"'""~ru~'" lntegra 

ARCHITECTURE INC. 

ll 
~111.M--~ 

_ lL 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

r··---------------------
r------------------

r··---------------------
r------------------

~ 

D 
• r··----------------------

r------------------

~ 

D 

L----~----~--~ 

r··----------------------
r------------------

I 
L-----------------~ 

_ lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

• • lntegra lntegra 
AACHITECTUREINC ARCHITECTURE INC. 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

• lntegra 
NICHITECT\JREINC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

-;; 
::;_ 
::;_ 
::;_ ; II I ; 
::'. I 
~ 
~ I 

~ I I 
~ 
;; I 
;; I I 
::;_ 
;; I 
;; I 
::;_ 
::;_ I 
::;_ 
::'. 
~ 

I - I 
~ 

I '-

I I 

- l 
:: 
~ 
,:; 
::;_ 
:: 
~ 

11 -- :- , ----
~ 

- ~ 

I r 

t 
I 
I-·~ L 

~ 
I 

F r El 

~ 
L 

I I 

~ -

11 I ____________ . 

.T t•••••••••• T•••••• ~ =============--j---====== 
~ 
~ 
~ 
~ : 

Ill 

I 

==-----~ ,- ------- ----ff ---------------
1- ---------

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

~ I - - - - - - - - - - -·- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ~ - - - - - - - Pr, - - - I - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - I - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

t=======================t==================== ,-----------------------,--------------------

1=======================1==================== 
- - -C 

lntegra 
- - ") 
- - -", 
- - ' ] 

- -----w,--: -----,1_ ---------- =======~=J=~==~==~== -i 

~ I = = = = = = = = = = - -= = = = = = :::=++----, r-+~ :=+--+-+::= = ~ = = ~ - - ~~ 
~ 1 • ••••••••••••• j •••.•••••.•• jj : •: ili======~I ~=~:::'.!:::'.'.:!=-:;:!:;"-l.-r ~ • J ••••••••••••••••••••• 
~ I ~[JJ FJi11"'n.,.11 n~ ~ 11Bi11111---......_1 ____ .,,.......,. II ,....--=;-----,.---......_--~ 

--------<.;;:"'---'1-----------------------------j-- --- I ------- • ------------------- ~ • - ...J _________________ ~ 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1~n- - - - - -
---------- I ---

ARCHITECTURE INC. 

i:----------
--,-----------

+ 

====================~ --------------------~ -~----+--------------------~ 

- -id----------- ~----------------~--! ------------f-----------------------f--------------------~ 

I I I I 
- -1 ------~---------------~-- - _________ L ___ ---------~- ----~-----------~--• 

=========~ -¾-+=--~-~-=--~-~-~-~--,,+,,_ --------------- ---------------~--
---------, 

- ~ ======= ===============j== =========t ---------------------------------- _________ ,_ 

- ~ =======t===============j== =========trt----+----++----------------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ----------------------------- ---------------

------,,,___,=======~=============== 

- ~ -=======t===============j==t===============j=========t=============== 
__________ j__ 

--- - --------; --------------- ~--~--------------- ~---------; ---------------
__________ _,_ __ _ 

______ I 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

Colour Manufacturer Product (to match) Finish (to match) Location

1.0

1.1 White N/A Aluminum Composite Panel Smooth Exterior Walls
1.2 Black Walnut N/A Aluminum Composite Panel Smooth Exterior Walls

2.0

2.1 Dark Gray N/A Elastomeric Paint Balcony 
2.2 White N/A Elastomeric Paint Balcony 

3.0

3.1 White N/A Window Wall system Residential Windows 

3.2 Black N/A Window Wall system Storefront Windows & Doors 

4.0

4.1 Clear N/A Low E double glazed Window Wall 
4.2 Spandrel N/A Shadow Gray Spandrel 

5.0

5.1 Charcoal N/A Pre-Finished Aluminum Frame + Clear Saftey Glass Clear / Charcoal Railings @ Entry Stairs, Balconies, Roof Decks
5.2 White N/A Pre-Finished Aluminum Frame + Clear Saftey Glass Clear / Charcoal Railings @ Entry Stairs, Balconies, Roof Decks

6.0

6.1 Light Grey Architectural Exposed Concrete Concrete Cast-in-place and Landscape Retaining Walls

G  L  A  S  S    

R  A  I  L  I  N  G  S    

S  T  R  U  C  T  U  R  E   

M a t e r i a l   a n d   C o l o u r   L e g e n d  

 A  L  U  M  I N  U  M    C  L  A  D  D  I  N  G    

S  O  F  F  I  T / F A S C I A 

W  I  N  D  O  W  S     F  R  A  M  E        

? ? ? ?? ff ? i i I 

r----+--+-_____J___\----1, __ I I _ _ _ I _ L _I _____ L __ _ 

---[ --·trr-·-'.1-·-- • • • • • • • · • • • • • • • lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

- ~ --1-----~ --------------------
~~~~ - -,--~----r-------------------

:J::~::::[::::::::::::: 
- -1--~----~--------------------~ ---=y---------------------

_________.,.___ _~~ -~-~~ ---! ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
•1:j::~:::~~~~~~~---------------

-1- t ----,-------- I- ----------
------<A---------_ __,,__ ________ ---- r---------------- : ~: :j::::: ~:::: :'::::::::::::::: 

- -,--~----r-------------------
:J::~::::[::::::::: ::::::::: 

' . ' 
' - -,-- - - - ~ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

_,_ - - - - L 

I 
--~ - --------------- ---------

-~-~--~~---~---------l ____ JJ _____ _ 
I 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

Colour Manufacturer Product (to match) Finish (to match) Location

1.0

1.1 White N/A Aluminum Composite Panel Smooth Exterior Walls
1.2 Black Walnut N/A Aluminum Composite Panel Smooth Exterior Walls

2.0

2.1 Dark Gray N/A Elastomeric Paint Balcony 
2.2 White N/A Elastomeric Paint Balcony 

3.0

3.1 White N/A Window Wall system Residential Windows 

3.2 Black N/A Window Wall system Storefront Windows & Doors 

4.0

4.1 Clear N/A Low E double glazed Window Wall 
4.2 Spandrel N/A Shadow Gray Spandrel 

5.0

5.1 Charcoal N/A Pre-Finished Aluminum Frame + Clear Saftey Glass Clear / Charcoal Railings @ Entry Stairs, Balconies, Roof Decks
5.2 White N/A Pre-Finished Aluminum Frame + Clear Saftey Glass Clear / Charcoal Railings @ Entry Stairs, Balconies, Roof Decks

6.0

6.1 Light Grey Architectural Exposed Concrete Concrete Cast-in-place and Landscape Retaining Walls

G  L  A  S  S    

R  A  I  L  I  N  G  S    

S  T  R  U  C  T  U  R  E   

M a t e r i a l   a n d   C o l o u r   L e g e n d  

 A  L  U  M  I N  U  M    C  L  A  D  D  I  N  G    

S  O  F  F  I  T / F A S C I A 

W  I  N  D  O  W  S     F  R  A  M  E        

I 

- ~ ----------------1 ___ _ 
_ n.___ :: :- ------------+- -------~ --: _ ~ -~x~,-~~ ~~------

r: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ::::t~~· 
lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

- ~~-- ~~~~~--~~~~ ~~!~~::::::::::: ::::I~ • 
- - ---------- -- --- -! __ ::::::::::: ::::t~ ~~ 
- ~ :::::::---------t------------- -- ~ - ~~~I 

- ~~-------:::::::::r- ::::t~~· 
----------------+------------- --~-~~~· 

----0>--- ~ ----- ::r:::::::------ --~-t 
- -~----------------t-------:::::: ::::r~~I 
- -""---~• ~~~~~~ ~~~~~-!~~~~~~~~----- ~~ i ~ I ~~ 
- ~ ----------------t------------- --~-~ 

----------------r -- ~ - 1 -----
~ - -_ - - - - - - - - ------------ -



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

Colour Manufacturer Product (to match) Finish (to match) Location

1.0

1.1 White N/A Aluminum Composite Panel Smooth Exterior Walls
1.2 Black Walnut N/A Aluminum Composite Panel Smooth Exterior Walls

2.0

2.1 Dark Gray N/A Elastomeric Paint Balcony 
2.2 White N/A Elastomeric Paint Balcony 

3.0

3.1 White N/A Window Wall system Residential Windows 

3.2 Black N/A Window Wall system Storefront Windows & Doors 

4.0

4.1 Clear N/A Low E double glazed Window Wall 
4.2 Spandrel N/A Shadow Gray Spandrel 

5.0

5.1 Charcoal N/A Pre-Finished Aluminum Frame + Clear Saftey Glass Clear / Charcoal Railings @ Entry Stairs, Balconies, Roof Decks
5.2 White N/A Pre-Finished Aluminum Frame + Clear Saftey Glass Clear / Charcoal Railings @ Entry Stairs, Balconies, Roof Decks

6.0

6.1 Light Grey Architectural Exposed Concrete Concrete Cast-in-place and Landscape Retaining Walls

G  L  A  S  S    

R  A  I  L  I  N  G  S    

S  T  R  U  C  T  U  R  E   

M a t e r i a l   a n d   C o l o u r   L e g e n d  

 A  L  U  M  I N  U  M    C  L  A  D  D  I  N  G    

S  O  F  F  I  T / F A S C I A 

W  I  N  D  O  W  S     F  R  A  M  E        

I 

____________ L 
-~ -

______,,,_ ---------------------r 
---1-

------'J~ ---------------------~ 

- ;/";- ---------------------~ 

---------------------r 
------'J~ ------------------ I 

- ---,,,- ---------------------~ 

- ---,,,- ---------------------, 
________ .._ 

- - _L 

- -'1";- ---------------------r 
-------- --- ---------, 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

- ~ ---------------------

:j::::::: ____________ _ 
- ~ --------------------- ~ --- ---



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

Colour Manufacturer Product (to match) Finish (to match) Location

1.0

1.1 White N/A Aluminum Composite Panel Smooth Exterior Walls
1.2 Black Walnut N/A Aluminum Composite Panel Smooth Exterior Walls

2.0

2.1 Dark Gray N/A Elastomeric Paint Balcony 
2.2 White N/A Elastomeric Paint Balcony 

3.0

3.1 White N/A Window Wall system Residential Windows 

3.2 Black N/A Window Wall system Storefront Windows & Doors 

4.0

4.1 Clear N/A Low E double glazed Window Wall 
4.2 Spandrel N/A Shadow Gray Spandrel 

5.0

5.1 Charcoal N/A Pre-Finished Aluminum Frame + Clear Saftey Glass Clear / Charcoal Railings @ Entry Stairs, Balconies, Roof Decks
5.2 White N/A Pre-Finished Aluminum Frame + Clear Saftey Glass Clear / Charcoal Railings @ Entry Stairs, Balconies, Roof Decks

6.0

6.1 Light Grey Architectural Exposed Concrete Concrete Cast-in-place and Landscape Retaining Walls

G  L  A  S  S    

R  A  I  L  I  N  G  S    

S  T  R  U  C  T  U  R  E   

M a t e r i a l   a n d   C o l o u r   L e g e n d  

 A  L  U  M  I N  U  M    C  L  A  D  D  I  N  G    

S  O  F  F  I  T / F A S C I A 

W  I  N  D  O  W  S     F  R  A  M  E        

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

- ---0,-- ----------~---- -

---"'- ---------

---1,'1---- ---------

-~~::::::::::J::::1: 
- ~ ----------~---- f-

. : ----------7---- l-
---- ----------~---- 1 -

__ _____.,.__ ________ _ 

---- ----------
__ _____.,.__ ________ _ 

-: j: __ :::::::::::::::J::: 
----------- ~------------------4---. ' 

------- ~------------------1---



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

o, 0 
I . I 

I I 
_ ,,,____ _ _ _____,._ -J ---- . --+-+--- _r-:::v=on__. -:.::..:----=-.l -=-=- ----=-=--= --=----:-=-.:--=.=--=-- - - -

--r-- -,---
_ _______ _______,, --1 -- : t : : : : __ 
_ __,.__________,, --~ -- -1----

--r-- -1---- -
_ ______,,,__----+:j:: :r::: ----

--~-- -f---- -~~ 

- -----------------+ : ] : : : r : : : ---
_ _______ _______,, --~ -- -I ----
- ------r---------- :J:: J:::: : ___ 1 

- ~ ----j----------- - ~ - - -!----
--,-- -,---- -

__ __.,._ __ + +---0. _,_ __ ----111 

- ---OJ'>--------l-+-------< : j : : : I : : : : -~-
-1----
:r--- -

I I --,-- -, 
-- ___ ,.. ____ -

~ 

;_ 

;_ 

;_ 

;_ 

~ 

--------

00 Q Q QO 
: I I 

! . . i I I 

: I I I : • 

----i-----------t --------i- -----------~ ----t -
' t I I • 

---- ~-----------t--------i------------ ~----1-
----1-----------t --------i- -----------i----t -
----1-----------r --------1- -----------i----, -
: : : : 1::::::::::: t::::::: +::::::::::: ~:::: i: 
: : : : j::::::::::: 1::::::: I::::::::::: j:::: r: 
____ J ___________ 1 _______ J ____________ J ____ 1_ 

: : : : ! : : : : : : : : : : : t::::::: t::::::::::: j:::: 
I fll:, H :1 -=h ., I 
~~J!LutlJJ i i i II L I I 

-ll==l====a=!!e=-,=iib;,====;1;=/b==o=°!,==l,=iM ----,-

rnkl I I In -~- ,_.,... . 

I ~ IHIU1 i fr:,-1 
IKT> -+-
~ 

I r I 
~ ---r 

I ft I 
~ -+-

I ft i r ....;--

I 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

00 0 0 00 
I I I ii 

I I! I I ! I 
: I ' , 

- ;,,-----". ~ ,f-=- ~- i-------_ ---~ t-- -- )--- -r· ----1=-~~-~~=-~J~ 
;:, ---- - i- I. •.. 1-- ~----t-

- --- ____ : t ->-- · 1- ~-t :::r 
- ---= ---- - i,--o----1'- --1----+-

I : - ---- -1- :J::::I: -~:-:::: : r-----•-1 --1----!-

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

- ---- - ( -P---- -1- ---t-
-~=--- ---- : 1. :----1'-~ :t :::r I , 

_____....,__ ---- - i ------9 --1----t -
: : L-l!-------,1-- -1---- ------ -~--P---u . •1 .· 

=_ -=:---,~:.,.,_ • • • • • j H : is,-.---,n-j i . 
~ - ---- - i - -~----

: -r 11 =-J----r 
_ _,,,_ - 1- . I 1----l-

- - ~~•=~F======tJ-

! J 11 I r--- t 
------ i-- ----t,1,;;_;;1;_;;;;_;;J-;.;;-=_t_::1_=_=_ti_""""_-rr .... :::._,::;:.~~~l -~ - - - - -

- I 
- I -
--

l 
i 

- - - -.-- - - - - - - -

- - - R- - - - - - - - -

- - - -.- - - - - - -1- -



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

lntegra 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

11 11 1111 1111 I I I I 1 1 111111 I I I 

11 I I I I I I 11111 1 

- -

- -

- -



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

i 
Ii 

--41 ,, 

lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 

---+ 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

CJ 

I 
• 1 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
d 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

d 

CJ Cl 

------------------T·----------------------------------
~ I i 

I 
lntegra 
ARCHITECTURE INC. 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

9 99 9 9 9 9 9 
' ' ' ' . .. 

o - - - ;, ·r ··---+--+--- ~+- + - +--~ - - ~---r- -o----
i /; · i i i · i i j: lntegra 
,/ ~ i . . i . . . o- __ r~ I ___ _______ _ __ _____ 0 ARCHITECTURE INC. 

I ~ 

I ! ! I 

0-- --t nu · 
- -~ 

I tfl 
I J+ 

o--t- i i - --o 
Cr - ~~--..____-14-i -'-------!- --t -•t '----41 --------i - --ii- ----G----__ 

6 6 66 6 6 ~ 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

I ! ! I 

,' 

' ' ' I ' - -- -+- - -+-+- -
!1 

1: 

--- -- +- - -o 

----, ---- - -- 1--- -0 

~ - + - __L__-+-----l---~==!a=i =Fi a-----+---+-i - i- - -0 

C)cc - 11=--= -=---=ta-===a-a=---=--= --L -.L-- __ , i- ---G---
ii i i i i i i ii 
6 6 66 6 6 6 6 o 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

I ! ! I 

? 9 99 9 9 9 9 9 
o~·-·~1'-~---_-_-i_- _- _- _- -'--+------"--+ _- _ -+------'--_ -______t-_____:r-- -+-f - ·· t ii -e-· 

r--~-~ee==~~=eee==±i==~I- _J_ - -0 ~~H!~T~~~ 

i 

i 

0 ---: ---1-------------+--i - - • --- --- +- - -o 

~-+----- - -- 1-- -0 

o---: _ __L__-+----~F====!a=i ==!=ri =;====!====4--i -11-- -0 
()cc - ~-, ________ .....,,....._........._..,_L~-·. -.-. _____ · ___ i'---0 -· 

e-----+----+---+-- i i ~---+----+'----,' 
6 6 66 6 6 6 6 o 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

I ! ! I 

--- ' ----- --- +- - -o 

' 

0---t- - --,-- '-----------+----- - - - 1- - -0 
' 

0- --1- . . . . . . - ,·-- -o I I I I I I I I 

()cc-- L --- -- L --- -c L-L---L -.L-- -- J __ - ---L-- - -L---0----
ii i i i i i i i ii 

6 6 66 6 6 6 6 o 



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

? 9 99 9 9 9 9 9 o~·-·~, ,_ + +-· · +- f · t ii -e-· o--+-,-1---,-i _ 1 ___ 1 ___ 1 __ i __ J __ -0 ~~H!~T~~~ 

I ! ! I 

·-· . ·-·-· --- +. - -o 

' 

0---t- - --,-- '----r-t-·-·- - - - 1- - -0 
' 

0- --1- . 1 1 . . . - ,·-- -o I I I I I I I I 

()cc·- L ··- ·-L··- -c L·L-TL . .L._ ._ J·--·-·h--- - -L-·-0-· 
ii i i i i i i i ii 

6 6 66 6 6 6 6 o 



Attachment 3

DRAWING LIST 

"°""°""'"'"'" 
L.t ,C L£'VEl.l • ISITE P~ 
L-1. tl.EVEL I -IRRIIQA~ ~ 
L-1.:J LEVEL31 -BITE f'UiH 
l,,1 ,1!1 t..E'lia2'I • SfTEPI.J,N 
1,-141 ~LOYl&IAOOF-!IITEF'U-N' 
L,2..(J DETAILS 
L-2., DE'TAlt.s 

LANDSCAPE NOTES 

l,U D£TM.O 
L..-2.:t DETN\..S 
L-U DETAII.B 

W..0 SECTl0N8 

I NiwcwlcNl,,.-.ori11:CM01N1r...,,......~ .. d'MIOll'Vttdlion01rht 
Cll'lldi.-'I~~ 

2. ~~#IICl--«ICOl'Uinlt~..,.iN:«nloclllOOcl'dhOIIOU.~~ 
Q.ridatdcJrrftEdlloo:t. F-or0lll'lilllhlrdlM• '3 inawn•r, pWlll•fnl INlbloM...,.... =:=l==~~t:r::.~·~~~= 

3. ~'t~~~Wld~.-:ie:~hlUW..~oll!kliet,~ 

~ ~~·=-::=~-:.~=~~~~~••-::: :=4~~, 11: . lldf¥~ il'Olll~Ol ~:::'tN"1 .,..,..GI 

s. =~=~..::.,~~~Ul\:~=~~b!IJ~~p'.I) 
7. FCIAI Ul\ng01"1 ... WV!mt&r'ld1V,....,."1'ft!Ol•,-•to..,,...)l-dl'Wnll'lng&. 

I. ~~~~~n:,ct.,.--~~-::or-~~ 
:::=::=::-,~a:~==.=.~~mo.., 

IRRIGATION NOTES 

I. Al~"Sol'tl.l~Attu'.-.10bilolntgaltd__,~rq,ual'l6'klrrlglltlilH'I 
.,..,.Llncl.ld"GlfWllfl'ltOfl. DIIA8C9_,.. 

2. ~t°c:=•~blb~..Ubl~IIIO..:Nlllcal..-.cl~ 

~ =-=:i!~~CO'(rfda'~~~llrlQ.-ioft~IAkW 
.._ No~lnig1110n..,_w4'bl ..... 

IS. Allfm!jlltlarll~ll:IN~witrlq,ad!ODUflliln. 

e.. lni!illtlmtJlftltll.-llJbalx.r.olnrr.:iti.w:alromn 

IRRIGATION 

TREE PROTECTION 

LIGHTING 

TREf:Pll0~0NRNC8rilQ 
tfl.tt110CCIHVUN~c»(IIII 

TIIIH:CRmC.U.11.DOT lOKE 
u:tl,-ofcrlicllll IOtif.mr. (o:r:)OUl.wi Ill•• pn:ucfa'lmnL 

K<,j ~ 

WM.L UOHT 

HARO LANDSCAPE 

_.., D-pllon 

cnva,i CO,CIIIETE PAVHi 

brooffllnlanw1n.-out11 •~CoHJ 111n1Wcll 

COHc:1lfll! ll'AvtNQ PAn'l!RN (,-lnoNlta) 
.... ~mllQI.-Ufltl!Ml 

COHCRETI!! UNU.RPA'tEA jgCIU"ld ....... Oti.tn 
$NIWIOPlll.-n ·01 

CCIHCAfll!! UNl!.lRPA ... l!Jll tglll.m .,,,..Ofltfl 
Pll'<tflOpatlM!o·C2 

CON(:AEII!! P.IYI NO P,1ffl:i'Dil 

~ llllr.ti Jlw.t - diatoo.111 

ruw<UUJ!ffl'I!, ..... , .... 

ll'Mlcl-clt!lfU:111"' 
ln'llN:11 • 2'1' 

~e-r 

OVERALL PLANT LIST 

"""' .. - -~ ....,...,.,.. .......,...,.. 

--- _ ... __ 

-- .SCV--Eld:M;MIO 

~•..-nw11ti.,......ii-.~ 

-,,_ •• -"- CCltl!l'l'IOl'll\•rM 

G .. Col!k-.MiloH'IC.....,.. K...,.d'olitlllfoo;.ocid" . ,, -- -§ " ~Mgllff..~tta:ol• ......,,_, .. --- Du.....,..,Oll9DOII~ 

" -- W•!-~""'1' 

" -- -8 " ---~-.~·----.. , t._.: ..... H,,:W --• -- "'--ORCOHDCOVERS • OAA8SES .. - ~ -"- --! 
, .. -- -.. r--~'tJt.,,CJWl)t,-t.._. . " ............. ....... 

'! • --- _ ... 
IZI ---- __ ,, 

PLANT LIST • ROOF GARDEN PLOTS 
....... , J.MoCWUAO ,,_ 

~ .... ·-- -·-.... -- .... .... -- -.... ,_,, _ _ .,. 

- ..... 
---... _ ... ... 

... ...... .... ...... .. .. ... ... 
""' ..... .... ... .. .. .. ,~ ... .. .. ,,.._ .... ... ... 
)'.crt• ... ... .. .. ... ... 
... ..... .. .. '110(1 .. .. ,r ... .. .. ... ... .. .. ... ... .. .. ,r .._ 

--

--- ... ... 
··-

dk 
D\IRANtf IOllfJIC L1'0. LAHDEAn AIIICMfffCn • .• .,, ...,.,..,._,,. ,._.c. ....... , .. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th llreel 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. - .. -. 
--
cover sheet 

-21075 -.... 

L-0.0 

jpeters
FreeText
Attachment 3�



lane 

east 14th street 

Cl) 
C 
.!!! 

~ LEVEL 1 · PLANTING ENLAR_GMENT OFFSITE.~---------------------~ - -tlr.,,q- -

N 

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtf IOllfJIC L1'0. LAHDEAn AIIICMfffCn •.. .,, ...,.,..,._,,. ,._.c. ....... , .. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th 111'881 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. 
--
level 1 - site plen 

-21075 -.... 

L-1.0 



Cl) 
C 
..! 

OFFSITE IRRIGATION LEGEND 

• 

• 

~VU;Mi 10 Dt,Reln Bltd"PEB-
&M Clly Dotdl, zontl IO be oonfinned. 

TOff.l Sontinol Comoller-
Pwt riun>bet: S0-12-PSl •U, Con!COIOr 10 bl, powerea from I Cit)' ICCetllblO metorld klotk. 
Cit)' 11D OOtlfirm. Tbe ~oeatlil'9l lihal tie~ and wiltet procf, 

~~:W~~l~~ .. 0-::.,lng, 
l.ayl)UI lhOWn 11 SCMm• IIC ONlY • C0ndtm exac1 piping~ Ol'l II&, 
Conttat10r 10 ptOYido eitMiP drfM'IOII IOoonlltm. la)'OIJt and plpl lkk'l.a, 

~~=-~.::tor1Cprowklahopdrawlnps10c:ookmla)'DIAandplJ>eslDQ. 

:r=~~t~tql.ll~t.°aoi~mklOrp~ 
i 'l'Plcal Sloovina; Provtdei -.vlng undo! d p&vedl IIUl"t'IOOl ti toibwt: 
Sch_.. 1!10 ~C ANW81 alted IO rectlwi Iha required niOO,llon Jru end ooncrol w•q. =•~~,:•=~(ctp)oona·e'° ~pavlngMflON 

lntltalt to NI on 9118 ~ 14:,out. Sl'eew,g to be :2)( the clune(er ~ Iha lmg,allon P'Dlng nalde • 

Btlllble,: Rai'bln:IAWSS-1402.Soedfydetd• 

IRRIGATION LEGEND: RAINBIRD PROOUCTS OR APPROVED EQUAL 

'=~"='-,·--
f't..NffiH)l!IEDSPflAVHEAIJ!I RANB~DIIIXISmet1111r~ppt!IIHd11QUhWHElll"--ul!ll~nd~ctNoltll~ 

.... ~-CE..• &::r- :r i:::::, ~ ~ 

'"" 1Cl~HE,'Ult ..,.,._ ...... " ' 
.,, , .. 1,,. 

I 

'"" •OS.-Hi-\tJW Q"rTr•ll:lf'tl .,,,..,, 
" . .. , , .. .... 

, ... ,ciis.-k~_,,, i:tr,...af-.nrl ,,...,, 
" • ..,, , .. .... 

, ... ,ag...H~'I.~ i;:zr'Tl-.. arl) ...... " I , ... , ... .... 
.... __ .... .. ....., ..... ...... ...... .... """' =-

L __ ..,.,....,,_, 

!:!'it - l(.,t,~(1,i ... .. ~-l'OClll-tl "'" 
... ., :a,,~°"" ==pur-..,..,._ rni:: 

N 

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtf IOllfJIC L1'0. LAHDEAn AIIICMfffCn • .• .,, ...,.,..,._,,. ,._,c. ....... , .. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th llreel 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. 
--
level 1 • Irrigation 
plan 

-21075 -.... 

L-1.1 



N 

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtf IOllfJIC L1'0. LAHDEAn AIIICMfffCn •.• .,, ...,.,..,._,,. ,._.c. ....... , .. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th 111'881 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. 
--
level 3 - site plan 

-21075 -.... 

L-1.2 



i 1 
i -..- i 
. ,----- ~~~~- i 

i 
i 

··- L 

(;-'\ LEVEL 21 • PLAN11NQ ENLARGMENT NORTH 
~ &;.Ji; • 

-··--··--··-·-··--··-·-··--··--··- ·- ·- ·- ·-··-·- ··--··--··-·- '--

(2\ LEVEL 21 • PLANTING ENLARGMENT SOUTH 
~ l;cali: • 

N 

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtf IOllfJIC L1'0. LAHDEAn AIIICMfffCn •.• .,, ...,.,..,._,,. ,._.c. ....... , .. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th 111'881 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. 
--
level 21 - site plan 

-21075 -.... 

L-1.3 



i 
I 
! 

i I i 

I 

-- -- -- _--_ -- , 

I I 

I I 

I 

I 

I"=",;; I 
... ~ " 

1- ... ---=-> "" .. 
I __ __J 

i 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
L__ __ 

N 

--- ... ... . ··-

--

dk 
D\IRANtf IOllfJIC L1'0. LAHDEAn AIIICMfffCn • .• .,, ...,.,..,._,,. ,._.c. ....... , .. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th 111'881 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. 

--
level lower roof- site 
plan 

-21075 -.... 

L-1.4 



aixtWGE CURa~ l"l'f'.LOCATE IN 
COHM1ATIOt,IY11fNCQ,VRlU'1<1H(Jt,i1"A1"fl/l 

,co 10 150 ~ R'N8I ltQOII TVP 

200 1.UN.10 -4~ MIN,. Ot,11 ~D R/'JeR R00< T0 
iRttAM-l~GJICMl ~..-DIUM 

o.n.r .. Ho4-.i 
• Ufll&illll,O..,, ...... Jll'ld~--,o. :::c,r;,.,,--.. ll~OI 

. ~ ........ .,..,..,, ......... --.:1. 

~ ... ------~ IJl'0N_....DQ" ... ~ 
llloblllm,Q,r-a,:,1,,...,i,.,,...l!X,l)IJwn'
aooc,,,,,, ,..., ""1.....:i~
ON....--... .... llllll.alob----~ "'~------.,,111~ c.,a..., 
.......__..So,t-.,.(IS)QO-C.flol ...... ~-• ~IIAllof: 
e.--,,.'Tl'fl!CT,..WI,_.. 
~~___.. •• a.,.!1.'Vlo 
--~l'ldol!O.~ 
Mti.c.-c~10n 
C:....~r>---,__.,. 

• fNlril 111• -=- ~111_,._...,, .... .., 
~ .... #'lgl...il'f...-lldill:O -PLAN: WI™ CURB CUT 

l',b..-,:i ___ _ 

~-----------NAN'1t41f.0A."lO<JROM'-H) ~t«otlJM 

~----------~=-=~~~ro 

SECTION: STANOARO CURB ~: WITH CURB CUT 

Concrete Planter Curb --
ST•01 

fta""p 1h'ak11,1•s 111,,a l] ~ ~ ,. rram 0.20m cl 
,oe~ af ci 1,,1 rb 10 o., Om ct tircc=lt ar l'Clmp, 

Cu,b . Ci1,,1m. , 
C4 11'4'' MMCO,. 
('VP.) 

(N. r.s.) 
SECTI ON A- A CURB RAMP 

LA NE 

MET RIC 
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

LAN E CURB RAMP DESIGN DETAIL 
DWC.No, 

1-=-~---~=~--~=~=~=~~-.---~~~----1 SA1-000 
~'Mil: N, Wo~ 'il' Ctt[C,,<El •. .., • .-..... DAT't: NOV,2012 3 Of 3 

Q CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVE TYPICAL DETAIL 
~ --6la:.n.LL 

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtflOllfJICLTO LNIIISCN'f.AJICHIIIICTI .. .. .,, ...,.,..,._ ,._.c. .....,,,. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th 111'881 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. ---
details 

-21075 -.... 

L-2.0 

.. -. 



@ 

,------------''"~fSC:..lr, 

AUBER SURFACING • ON SLAB 
IW=i-1'-0' 

~c:cria.-.. ~..., 
..,.ltlQI\NIM"1ol.01 b 
""'•nclllllWl'}lll'.'I~ 
e"'OlipOl~)Ml• --
~t.M~o,, 
FIJlot•CDffoeCtlld~IM 
illlt:l"W'O(_rwltrib 
~ 1"'1)111111 

_.._ 

_,_ ..... , 
O"li.llttdNktaolilrn.N 
O"lfa•liltltte 
0t1MMlcturlltlUN.lp 

,------------r~Qf,,.,..i:ort1i-.-
rn.A:ftj!'l:tC~pwila 
1ttnolbl.Ndtl'rl'l'UCIII 

(l'lrihn!tl!"(45(tTnl) 
,:ii,j0illfTl'fl'4'II~ -......... Mdpdmlhli~ .. _ 
-~ 

,-----------~•~clllCNCbl 
Plm;JaCo,gQP.....,_ 
~{l'a'r LCI L..(llbf 
lnillhlnc:1!»1:91'1'1)~ 
rQl'"toClwl~b 
~-~Df.ldn. 
frc5IC)Dlcl:r•··l'l'lftl1 
~baM~on 
~tD1Jlacwd.lllbi,IIII! 
LCIIKt.F'D(Mlllt~ 
~llll rtJPQlll]I 
IIP.PIIU-. 

@--~~Y."!tt,;~cig_co CRETE• ON S_hA8~------------

@ CONCRETI: SI.AS PAVER • ON SLAB 

.... 
I I E1'6iA'O alWO't'v.illl'IFIO'kcdfOOI rona IOOe-000';'.UIOtod W\111'1 

Wf'"'111,g~I ,t ~ 0, ,('alonl mo'orinl an'lt, urk11 01~0C.COflllild bt" 
can1Lt1,ngatl:lc'lr'hr 

, t l'lncGl'r.-1 end 1p0cng ol oJnnt moJorial to boo, pa, amw-"9l, 
IJl"lleu minor od!u,wnon,, reQUfiod lo ovoia rruclruOI rooll.. 

:.1 flcndtoolt l;'IIO'Nltd'W\thln t".rl'lc:ei--f0Ct ~,... nm 
'I "'\;f'llmb'o m,;cr.,,Son Irita oxl1MQ r;roa111- oY 'ObrllriQ r,11i,-t1 1...,0,"'"' 

opot~ 
l l C:ttormuk't:JCCMllinggrOUl'ICMXl,,,,.lOlogl,. 

W _ POCKET PU.NTINQ IN TllEE PROTECTION ZONE 

~-~ 

N,i;i .. : 
~liQcatlaftJoriti,aJ:lon11> 
~~ldoy~ --

LJL'\ LANOSCAPE 80UUIER PLACEMENT· ON llAAOE 
~ --~1~ ... , @ --~,!Ill~ ,t 80UUIER PLACEME -ON GRADE 

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtflOllfJICLTO LNIIISCN'f.AJICHIIIICTI •.• .,, ...,.,..,._ ,._.c. ....., ,,. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th llreel 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. 
--
details 

-21075 -.... 

L-2.1 



~-----------,illl~d'MI~ 
rnJch (~ IMiN ,:iLIIU 
nrlQlbunedltJJ'~l 

l)tlrnlfllfflla'l'J30"(5a.f!fti.,t' 
'fypeml7'C'#lnorHIIIIUIIII 

... -or,ol",dJ-,nJIX 
Ml~r.MIJ 

~--------&--"""'""' .. 

~~t.1~;ij1~rJt~:-1,' -~i.J.•t~tl.~\1¥ - ~ 

""'4/r.Nlll~ICI 
9',ilCIMfOCIICl'OW!l'I 

:.....UwodiNIQiwDnhMlilPN:ililldan 
IIOtf'd1Dti1at!IICl'INbrf'lrtctbdar'ld .,._.,.,._ 

LL:'t_TREE PLANTING• ON SLA~~B ____________ _ ~ a..:-,-.,~ -

PLAN -

ELEVATION 

~------------~--.-'11'1111~ 

~.L __ .. ,,,1,,1,c., _ _.....,__"' .. 

~[l'QW-111W11•11&arltl 
... ~fN(t.lt,,mA;n) 

onll\ll'llfn,,n,18"C•60rnffll 
4"Ktllld~Pti •II~ -.. -OIi '"'111dLf9:IIIUlldllp 

~ 

'..,.IJl'IQ'lc bitl::,wOnhnl~ 
boOnlDtiltpdfldti,o~V'(I -~ 

~-----~-----

~----··-
!(-Alwmbllo"ll'Draimlllr.'Pft:l'IICtli:wl 

~to-~b'wNChllillcl•'td --
r----1. .,_,, 
'\/ O"l3"<tllinl'OO. .,,_ 

Cl"l~b~l.9 

----~ ~lirrigiiiCIM" .. -l& ----tillck~~M~• -rl:---...... p&w,.•on1hlMOI' 
..,...blllli;ar,l~IJ"lde 
P'Ml.l.~l'llnw..l 
'11r.1Wb11Nr.DI'~ 
_,d~lba"°°"" 

~IJwi;rk ~C)-•hn!IIH"r~ 
~IJlt.lll)lldl'adbyM::'li-t...t 
~CUliluUNi 

LL',_____METAL PLANTER• ON=~S~LAB= '----------
~ !lool<•~ -

@- ~T~~,.TN-==BER==B=ENC= H~------------------------------------------------------------

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtflOllfJICLTO LNIIISCN'f.AJICHIIIICTI •.• .,, ...,.,..,._ ,._.c. .....,,,. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th llreel 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. 
--
details 

-21075 

L-2.2 



; ~:!=ll'llilUQMdfQf'~I\INSIM 

Tatni)ltp<'IXll4Mlill\nt,I 
,in....-.n~~ 
rranlbd~ .... I twntw .... lDDlllmU 
•~hll:iMCllllltflllorl ...,~,nc:1~ --1-----,--.,--+--,-------,, ---

G ATTAC MENT • ON SLAB 

( 

finis~: copper I 

Q__SITE FURNISHING· WEBER GENESIS II E·330 GAS GfUU 
~ .:n. 

~---------T....-..W~Mlllllhg 
Ml'O... • tupglledl tr,-.. - . ttam-. 'IO~ b'lg •~n 
11:iNClftlif...,.IMI~ 
~ntoOOflC.TIIW'»N-

finish: powde< coaled black 

w__SITE FURNISHING· METAL PLANTER 
~ I . ft.IL. 

lcall~baall~ ..... 
..-tr;JJ ...... ~l!dril .. 
~ WflallhwldllllJplllllldntll,r.'I al • ictN)Ndllafal 
IIJPPIIW. IIClf'ln\l'Nlllilllell)I~ 

conlllCtdR'w r. t 80,U36.A8'2 

J...~~~1§~!;;,,...,=====""'!'l==--==""";..=,,,.,~m~i:c:--::i::-~. 
IB'~ C(llftl•OIM ... , .. 

size: 5 bicycles 
finish : blacl< 

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtflOllfJICLTO LNIIISCN'f.AJICHIIIICTI • .. .,, ...,.,..,,_ ,._.c. ....., ,,. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th 111'881 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. 
--
details 

-21075 -.... 

L-2.3 



WOBBLE BOARD · LEAF 
Intended user age : 5·12 

PRODUCT INFORMATION ASTM F1487 

11H, Leal Wobble Board Is, ... ,satilo tah on rocking Plil'/llfOUAd equipment th,!,,,."''" sitormnd w1111, wobbling. n,, 
Lelli shilpe is of ton an ,pproprlato th,matlc choice tor, natur1I playground. Tho flal ba~ncillfl surtace lor kirn,llc play is 
sui;iported by thrtia springs 1or muJtidirectional rocldng, 

Ma, lmum height: 1"-3 " 
fall height : 1"·3" 
Area of Saloty Surlaclng: 240 11• 

rt,1 J11gr:i11L dntg111ui:, p1aiv suruct 
ud 11>o1ce 1111111r1rf art ac.cordlnQ I" 
A.SHA F-1.t1117 A Dulf• I i• 11u::1uo•, 
1n 1n1 l.tll nu,, 10 ac.c:oul lar 
hbru::1t10n •nd m11arifll v-.u1nt101111, 

Anll11nt11i1ly111rl1cmr if; flQIUrtd 
wlt111n 1111 ran lOJil DI tqulpllltfll 

II y1HJ U-¥11 qut:ll11'tll lbO<JI Uri 
t11u1pm1n1 ci, ,'l!11111r1 :llllu;es. 
pf• IH CG'111CI i:::n1bc1p1 JI 
t-!71·26M9fl. 

///I 

J( 

/ 
/ 

I 
b 
' [n 

\ 

~ 

15'-3"-- /. 

~- --/ 
' \ 

\ 

I 
I 

_, I N ,, 
/ ..,,. 

JUNIOR FORM · ROUND SMALL 
lnlended user age : 4+ 

PRODUCT INFORMATION ASTM F1487 

ls it a meteor? A e.11,:rplll:ar? A r.i in bow? A planet? The Roon cf iunlor l0rm Is a vemalJ~ playground sculplure. The Round 
form a.re hilly climbable but they can also !unction as a smilll hut where chlldren can meet and g,afher inside. Both the: inside 
and outside of Ille Flound lorm provides climbing with ~pped cladding or chmbing tlolds, 

Ma,tmum heigh!: 4"2' 
Fall heigh! , 4'2" 
A,ea of Salety Sulfating: 264 fl1 

User Capaclt:,i . 4 

Tri, D1orio111 c1HltJOl111J ~l•Y UIUCI 
1ml ,i:i~u 11qu1riH1 u• 1c«u~111g tg
ASTM F,-487. A tiuiru IS 01~lu1J.-d 
jp 1ht flll un, lo l:C:Gunl IOr 
hbtltJ[(Oll • ild mtll• riJI v.arinlu;1111 

Rn?ltut lJ1fli1'f lUll&cirro II UQUIIIG 
'llflltlin. 1111 ran l<UU al ,uuqnn.1111 . 

II ycu '11VI Qvt,!]Otli tr11u1r IU 
111ul1u .. nl a, f,tlJllllt Ch.lllt,lltJ , 
olust J:Olltatl E,!11\n-..eag1 II 
l•t7MU•n72. 

I 
I 
\ 
\ 

✓ 

...... 

' \I 
'? 
(0 

I 
I 

/ ..,, 
- - - - ~ ~ ----~<. 

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtf IOllfJIC L1'0. LAHDEAn AIIICMfffCn • .• .,, ...,.,..,._,,. ,._.c. ....... , .. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 Hit 14th llreel 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. ---
details 

-21075 -.... 

L-2.4 

.. -. 



......... 
LL"t_LOOKING EAST ALONG EAST 1'TH • RAIN GAIIOEN 
~-Beu~.-.-

•,<-----,,,--"'--...;,.-- -"'"' 

..,_ 
w_LOOKING EAST ALONG EAST 14TH • OECK 
~ - SolillTV4"• 

(--- h -

.. ,jij,, .... 

ri°"\ .LEVEL3- .L=FOO= K=ING= EA= S~T~-----------------------------------------------------
~ Scu-1U".T' ... 

LEVEL 3 • LOOKING EAST 
bli-l'I...-., 

l - J 

concrwt.plma,i.W. ~===-~ 
2"4• MQll~~Ml"WI 

C\ _ LEVEL 21 • DRAINAGE STRIP ADJACENT TO PLANTER 
~ Sclls' or-.f'.o 

--

dk 

--- ... ... 
··-

D\IRANtflOllfJICLTO LNIIISCN'f.AJICHIIIICTI •.. .,, ...,.,..,._ ,._.c. ....., ,,. 

Three Shores 

-120-128 east 14th 
street 

120-128 ea1t 14th 1treet 
North Vancouver1 BC 

-..- .. -.. 
--
sections 

-21075 -.... 

L-3.0 



Document Number: 2163872-v1 

March 29, 2022 

VIA EMAIL: rhysl@integra-arch.com  

Rhys Leitch, Integra Architecture Inc. 
200 Granville Street Unit 2330 
Vancouver, BC V6C 1S4 

Dear Mr. Leitch: 

Re: 120 East 14th Street (Rezoning Application) 

This will confirm that at their meeting on March 16, 2022, the Advisory Design Panel 
reviewed the above application and endorsed the following resolution: 

“THAT the Advisory Design Panel has reviewed the Rezoning Application for 120 
East 14th Street and recommends approval subject to addressing the following 
issues to the satisfaction of the Development Planner: 

Further design development of the ground floor residential lobby relative to
the public realm and mixing of commercial and residential uses with
particular attention to CPTED for security and safety concerns; and
Further design development for bike parking within the public realm for
enhanced visibility, eyes on the street and accessibility;

AND THAT the Panel wishes to thank the applicant for their presentation.” 

The recommendations of the Advisory Design Panel pertain only to site-specific design 
and site planning considerations and do not, in any way, represent Council and staff 
approval or rejection of this project. 

Yours truly, 

T. Huckell
Committee Clerk-Secretary

Cc: M. Menzel, Planner 2, Planning and Development 
E. Chow, Planner 2, Planning and Development
B. Savage, Three Shores Development

~1,ty 
vancouver 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL 

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUV ER 

141 W EST 14TH STR EET 

NO RTH VANCOUV ER 

BC/ CA NADA/ V7M 1 H9 

T 604 985 7761 

F 604 985 94 17 

INF O@C NV.ORG 

CNV.ORG 



Document Number: 2166827 

April 13, 2022 

Barry Savage 
Principal 
Three Shores Management 

Dear Barry, 

Re:  Rezoning application for 120 East 14th Street 

At their regular committee meeting on April 6, 2022, the Integrated Transportation Committee 
received a presentation from Three Shores Management, Integra Architecture and IBI Group 
regarding the above mentioned.  Following review and discussion, the following motion was 
made: 

THAT the Integrated Transportation Committee has reviewed the Rezoning application 
for 120 East 14th Street and supports the project.

The Committee makes the following additional comments: 

That the developer include larger bike parking facilities to accommodate cargo
bikes, including bikes with trailers;
That the developer ensure security measures are in place to reduce bicycle theft;
That City staff investigate the north-south lane and ensure an effort is made to
minimize the conflicts between cars and pedestrians;
That the Committee expresses their concern about the potential for increased
congestion at the east-west lane at the St. George’s intersection; and,
That the Committee are worried about the impending rise in traffic congestion in
Central Lonsdale as a result of planned and future developments.

CARRIED 

The recommendations of the Integrated Transportation Committee do not, in any way, represent 
Council and/or staff approval or rejection of this proposal. 

Yours truly, 

Hayley van Gelderen 
Committee Clerk/Secretary 

c. E. Chow, Planner 2, City of North Vancouver
D. Watson, Transportation Planner, City of North Vancouver
K. Graham, Corporate Officer, City of North Vancouver

~1,ty 
vancouver 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING 

CI TY O F NORTH VANCOUVER 

141 WEST 14TH STREET 

NORTH VANCOUVER 

BC/ CANADA / V7M 1 H9 

T 604 983 7357 

F 604 985 05 76 

PLANN I NG@CNV.ORG 

CNV.ORG 



•

•



•
•
•

•
•



•
•
•



A38 I MEWS wr <n~u.w1cmr XlD north shore news ~om 

Sl'l::tlAl. lill'lll(I 

Investigation Into daughter's death points to gaps In ER care 
JANE SEYD ---A etiP\1ne moth•r ~ • roport 
hy R.(:.' Cntl'1!" ol Phy 1<1 n nd 

?lrCOns Into the care her d.nu&titer 
rec:el<ed al Uo115 Cale Hooplllll'a 
em f'IOD<y ward bu don Uttl lo 
pro>1d •=•u~•~lllll' for " IJ.l 11<: r 
doughier died. 

Ann fcwry'Ji 29yr.a.r old d:u1!lhll'f 
'bt;tSJ-i.a Forry citied 1n Octnb" 2'020, 

" ltw, a 
r omplPl~ 
cullaJ1Nt1 uf t·arf" 
for atasba ... 
Twenty-nine
,·ear-olds don 't 
Jns l cl ie likP 
this." 
/,Ht~ lwt<V 

..tflN;a.s;m;:iJI 

lo.I llvll eut 
wlde<e<:ledb 
doclurt unlll 
w,tl altertl bad 
dMo--eloped lntn 
wldaJinratlsr.-p
llcshodllW 
w:assfiulll~ 

dul<ohet Inlet· 
Balo 

••vIT)' W\!Dl 
tnlJnn,; C',-atP 
Hoo!'l'>lfnur 
llmesbdwe«i 

A· I;; cant drop" In Fony', • rum
;a-lbumrn'"- whl<h r.an hrllr-atr ;i M'tlCMtli 
In ·11nn- w.:as;il:i;n "11nr11't".appr IN"t" 
..,-nntlng In 1hr "'llfJffl 

n11e CUhJI lilt null'\t lb dudur ~ 
tl'e A).._i:c.J lu lll&..e µa,t Ill tuJ lulet'-'leW lu 
dboct~ Uuac l"OOCl'I 1..-s '"u.cuJ 1 .. )L'a.119 ul 
enhan~ tM c e or future patients " 

But fa bltl romlortto Nataeh•"• 

~OMl'U: I L CUlL<\l '!>L O•' CAJU:' 
... tbe1e·s nv IU5llt.'e lor me.· h.e s:tl<L 

'"lt .a compl ., coll~ 0, c e m, 
, .. h l?!>-)·• <>Id& d~n I .,,. • 

forry saW tbr l"W"tlls k•adlr1!J up lu hl'I' 
d ~•~•s dmilh ill Ut:11'5 C"..ale Hmptt.al 
t vu.ldbeoletlfl mlue\ /Olleoolb 
North :,!Jore. 

"fhl• wit I m prubleoc • she said. 

L 2 am.I 12, 202U, llf!f c.:und llun t1i,'otR1:1 

• l'.!t wllb o;arb '-Ual ~Ir' was lit! ., givn& 
A111Jblolk1 but was senl home "1lll piln 
medlclllloo . unUI her lmah1 I wben 
abe wu ru bed to lbe tnleruitve are u.nu 

.w1n~ c11tfir1 lty hrr~11h1nu. 

al..,,. fonycied lnOctober2020at NorlliVanoou,,.,.,t.,onsCa&e llosc>ILilafter
c.saa thr ER h::atr tirnl:5. ~ mothC'r gys lhcrt-is~~lity lcr tfK'trumn,l 
shtll!CEl'Yed. «unmWi f:JIIN' 

fnrry•ru~ <),.. 11>n<1i:t,1 hrr ~•nJ?hlrr 
"'"' In tJ,,, bN!I (11¥r po .. 1bl wt,,, •ho 
ttpe.1lnlly we d tu Uuus Gal .. M cm• 
'A--a51ru~lh1!j u,~lle .. 151.IIL.al." :sh s..Jll "II 
CUil al · daugbl~r ht-:1 I.Jlc. .. 

Tho l~'e report lrom Ill< loq 
<OOllllfttee delllled ill t\'eDlJ leadlll,I 

~ilot~ fltrrl l.:itrr lh-ll ~y 
A rqM.Jtl l«'t!lltly iJfotlUCet.J b) 

1tuq.ultycocwuillL't!'ol Uw1.--o 

enm.tnitd I.he lll..Uoos vi eli;.bt doctors 
••t- ~ N.1t;u;h:1 ;it l,00111 Ci tr Hr--.JJllt.il 
finrttng ltlnlt wtth only oo~ nf t l,i-nMI pl 
s..claus. UII t:IUl:!f ocy IOUW lJl1)'S!diU1 

• Im s.JW Furty ut1 l1t"f LLlttJ ,•1~11 lu ti.Jc 

VIRTUAL DEVELOPER'S 
INFORMATION SESSION 

Thret Shores Mam19eme.nt h.ts submltted a rezoning .tpplic.ation 
to the City of North Vancouver lot 120 • 128 East 14th Sue..t to 
support the- development of a 21 storey reslde.ntfa l and c.ommerclal 
(ra tail and office) mind use building. lnlere>led memlx," of the 
public ,e ir'IViled 10 aner.J Virlwl De,elopt:r"> Information Ses,ion 
with the ppl nt r an e rly opponunaty to reolew the pro1 ~ ask 
questions. and submit a comment fOfm.. 

How to l•.l rtk tpate: 
Please register In advance at: 
\w.'W.1 :,,0C.asz 14th.com 
or contact the applicant 

Dare &Tlm• ~ 
Wednesday Man:h JtJ, JO I 
6:00 PM 6· 15 PM Prcsontltkln 
<,I PM-7:lOPM -Oft. A 

Applicant Cont.Kt 
BJrry savago 
Three Shcx .. M.:Jnagement 
ec bsavage,fd\ree<hore<.ca 
,. ns. J66.1J61 

Ctty of North v~ncouve.r Contact 
mima Chow 
Dev pme111 Pl...nln9 
~ echow@I cnv.OJg 
t:604 9182 3919 

IIOTHR E 
llililSHORES 

PIS"~t,t,gts~b,~Oy Nrw,h 
Wttl l !,IOU 

DI. Th• report trom the, e·11nqulf)' 
rnrnmlllN' lnmwt HWry'.s vtt.a:1 ,;j~ Wl'C'rr 
nn4 dt«k:Ni ;incf don1mM1trd tollnw1ng 
lrc.alJt ·td~ whld1 ll Lil In,, • jJIU\llth..--d. 
ab lm.th.•aJ..luu ul llt!r wur~cullai, cuut.lltJ«u 

up h) tuh• forr 's d alb. ~\ccordt 1 

In thrn-pofl , n Ort 2 20?1) lhrynu 
•nm;111 ,11,nm I P .-mr,ernry (lrpi:i-rtnir-11 
_, tit .DU lul«l~ I Ill I ·r ~l'fk UU!ta. 

G,t,tu1Ut.41Jo,1~E 

Development Proposal 

115 uml~ 

spacos 

rl<.ngs ccs 

Que.stlons? 
Mom~w Cheng M; thew C,hgrtgArChlt9Ct lrt(. 

mattM'l!I mca1ca / 604•7J.1.·30.1.2 



ARE YOU BUYING OR 
SELLING YOUR HOME? 

CAU KEN SPONG 

~1 ... . .. 
~.r- .. ~~ . . 1~-: ... -
~ 

604-315-8000 

RE/MAX 

kenspong.com 
Sflll NG RI Al ISTA TI SIN CI 1989 

VIRTUAL DEVELOPER'S 
INFORMATION SESSION 

Three Shores Management has subm itted a rezoning application 
to th• City of North Vancouv•r for 120 - 128 EHt 14th Str•tt to 
support th•developmont of a 21 storey resld ntlal and commorcl I 
fr•tall and offic•I mixed uu bulldlng. lnrffl'<ted membe" of rhe 
publK an, invited lo aucnd a Virtual Developer, lnFormalJon Scrnon 
with the "l)pUc..,nl (o, an early opportunity to rev"'w the prupoS.J~ a,k 
qu~sUou,. dl'ld ~ul>tnll a <01 1111><:rll fo,11 

How lo P•r1kip11t~: 
Pl.t.,w ft.'!91_.. inadv.-.crat: 
i;,ww.1 Mt14th.com 
Of t.0nl«l lhe .tpphc..snL 

Date liTime: 
Wodr-•y M..r<h 30. 2021 
6.-00 PM- 6:15 PM -PresenG>tlon 
6·1~PM-7~PM - Q&A 

A.pplk•nt Cont-.ct 
Bar,y Savage 
ThrH- <ihc'We~ M,'lnl'N)PfflPn 
e bsa _ eeshofes.c.i 
t:nB1U7'167 

City of North VancouvRr ContKt 
tnvwthow 
o.v.lopm,nt Plannmg 
e: echow _ mv.01g 
L:604-982-3919 

-,t,,ok~h,~flt'tri~~ ._.M r'Qfffll 

"'' -

Iranian Olympian Involved with club 
Cbu MJdJ lur1 ~ :J1 
Nldlhatbei:re,<uplnduba elhe 
11,orth !,lio~ \\'re tllog Club, and II m:lled 
to br1 bl there. notlog tbe OJJ110r-
111t1111rs th;LJ •--rrslhne r.i:n nflrr 1hm11gh 
Mfv1l;m;h1rs 1n ,..-., srni ry rrt,.-.111100 

'IJndlhmkt~ thrm..irrmrilN!! 
~slllllllles l ruw U!J kl u smull cl.Jb In 
Mioc.,,e Jaw.~. ti !110' ltMll, aml Wt: ~ 

l:.atl luw 01)' 4'Law1 c ulJt uf UL.al t:lub, 
bee.awe ID our «immll ty. wre: tltru.; wn 
ID tmpor11nl lhtn1:: Nld Alldou. 

lllOI r I Ilic• H1:11r.,.·ho bu 
lrlpmJ out ;d th c-lub b lmnwr 

lr.uu,an n;iJK'fn.al ..-rr.sllln_g coach Monsma 
lbnrpt An Ofymrlr •1tv" tllNblltd and 
""otld dWJJplu lM:' I been brl Lllg 
ILIJ gr;UJLl9ull II kw coac.bl V..'t ti 
Ii t~ 111Uun.al spor1 U, It.an. a.HJ t1uld1 
r t can ... --. 1n U~ lranl.ul C.:&IUdlaa 

co Ulllty "'1th 8an.(1:MC~rrylllJ:ltllU6 
1m1111~ the wmtllns: Cnrnmtlll l ty 

-V.'™'n I wrNlil'd o U• ru.11ooill tflam 

.a_1PUJ1sl hb &up wro-1 lcr-s. H~·, ;a Wtt!Slliny. 

I!! d. 11 d be u.n tor IDt! l'"'"" l>o 
arolDld him and ma pk.t up ,ome 

lur my 0~11 team ... 
AMnu rnml"lml 11>""1:>r In hnrkr,• 

fmt-1• 111xh ..- Rnbby Orr, C"10rdl4'1 Hnwr, 
•""W"11 G~. Ml<tl•=•h••hi,l>n'$
t!11tr cut.ld ~ilJI) lncr121t: ti t1u1~bt!r 
ul lr-~wu1-C.u..tb1n tl~ •.i:td tu ru11~ uul 
aod put LI Ir kith la wresll,ng tu C.1Ulla. 

Spe Jo lb Norlb Shore w 

tl1ru~h a lnwsl.J.lur, 1'3 .MJll Mi11lDW', 
M«J100l' o.r"'I: eipre 5ed the Impor-
t cool I good roach .. d ed about 
how Import I wreatJlni: 11 to him and hll 
rh litrrn 

L11 hfor hrhrYl"S 1h.lt hr sh nld 
111tcl lh fll"'W ~lltlQ Ill th rtdU w;iy 
tu tu1t..l Ulelt µwpo~ 11ud lit! 11 ~~ lbCIIJ
lkt uf U...elr t.'Ull 1.1J1Llly,~ silk! M41ll.u 
Bolla Uw aft ~died 1"-lw ••dtJJ'-4~ 
W>l fW!I uport for """'1, 11 '• e<hl<rij 
th t hold> i:re lltlj)OIUII«! lo lb 

Jly •od c a,unlty. and 11w they were 
eJO:lled lo 111.& II "1111 the people i i the 
dub 

11r ~ar1h Shorr \\'tT!Sl11t1g rtub nuu 
rm!.'r.um Im rk-rnt' .1t)·..a_wd du1cb 
li~h SdlOoj stuk.-11t1, a.Dd adult cl.lsses 

J ulk!.rs .1. plal..-e lur Wfl?Sllu I Oii lL~ 
NOIUJ ~Ult! tu lt IWl lll lht! ulJ-i.ta»UIL b 
11 na11 all )1'or loo!: Thom iil8fl mt' ed 
th•t th•ro II.Iv,, IH,,cJ oo n, l<'d C0\10 

MM!<liil f'd with wrt'3l In 8 C 
"'You clm'I ored lo wrestle )'OIU'SCII lo 

bn11!y1110 kid Uu.-rc Yo1::t kid docsu ·t mX"CI 
lu Iii .a t..T r1.al u• NJI I, body lypr ur 

>d., ill IL ue y aspue 10, 
)1lody. • said ·11tom. ·w,. Uta ts alt • 

,purl "h"" peuple elld up that Just 0001 
f: t 1n •mywhrn- f"IM- V..'r'w t,il ;in fJfW'l1 
rlnnr fnr ,.._, flMpl, • 

TIWtcl11bo,Jf'ratN:outo(C'Jnn.a 0.. 
lut •• rh11r.-h >I 1110 Gl>dwtn Drl\'PIO 
Nutlh \~111:uuv11 ~~1w,etl1"! 
cum (IOrlJ., .tntwr'lf'.n-..M!1t lur a 1ur1:• a1•• 
a1~,a or (llN' n.•~r.aliuu dd.als 

Development Proposal 

rl11n C S 

Questions? 
M.aHhlirW C,,Ang'. "1atttw:M ChA:nS An:hltKt Inc. 

n,annew • mc,a.l.c.a / 604-731.J012 



Trail grooming machines damage Mount Seymour's trees 
BRENT RICHTER 

\ orth \anron, flr lr11II nM"r I 
ra lllne ""' \11 <;oi-,i10 11r n~ m· P•l't<3 oner.._,, cootrortol'8 ,-1 ~t••'l' 
macllln<>ry 10 eroom a r8J'ely used 
trol~ taklnir 001 or damairlnir a .,..,,th 
or t~es tn the process. 

11.c ,._.1bct1 uaus.1 :s11uwsl1t1e 11,til, 
awl.ed 1h t Tratl 111d aho blown a, 
lheC-OUg,M Tr.Ill, 11,-_1thlo the resort', 
bolaldarl , but u u.all) roped oil, said 
M H,n, 

H wa,; ;1,eh.wt ,-.i)m ,r-nAoNJ 
ontn tfi(\ tr;itf rrc tly ;i,llfi ww tr¥kJ [rom 
.II SIIUW !IJUC.UIIL'r.. 

"I dldu'l JU 'lt'f)' l.u am.I I s.iw .al IL~ 
11:IIJ a dozen lu .a i.hY~u tft.'C•s ti · I IJ:W 
bcn1 ~ ,,._.,. dcT.Dpll .ilrd ur dur~'ll UII 

the aides. l'arll o l ti ,. . ., Jusl lopped 
ofi b~ tllb ~at maclllDe, 0 he o;r::Jl 
thett WllS tree ID Ule "">'· boom. l 
•ml rt,:111 CM'T Wll<'1l' the)· wrr,, IT} 
10 5QllN'lfl brt:W'{"('Jl r ~- th("J' 
,-.1 r mod 11 lh tlK-r d d>m-
"l:('d bl~rtroe• Thal ' lo .... "' ""' 
._ll".xrta.11.ble.• 

Hryut>d las offi IOUS ( .'UllC"115 aboul I he 
C'ln,ranmenil:al dam; . 1-b:g_fin qucst_...ts 
the •'l>dom of flXllll1nll Ule l froll • l all. 
u IL Jl&rU <,ul qwte tame but beeoJDM 
hlgW t."11 • " Uutei!p!M!\:tktW 

all<! <n"k crnomi:, By """'"''OJ: I . 
Hanam ""«Tk:'$ n W1 won 1n AK•WJhoerli 

wtlu llffll1 prepared iur llle bocl«ounlr)' 
coodlUom, 

4 t't. ont an .1rr.a whrrr, ~ whn 
.,...,·, M<f)(Tll'nC'Nl •rwl N'fUlpp,cl ,Ji.,.,1,t 
br \TffiUf'1flj? ITIIO,. hft ~iJtd 

Hilnrllm ._'TIMP t hi~ C'OOf'('ffl.< In Mr 
St.-ymuur Reorts 111:at~fK'nt .a.al to U 
l\tlnblty Envlnlflmc..111 anti Clt111.l1.C Cbmige 
Str.atc..v, -11k:ll tn'l'tsl'\:S BC l':arb .u.i 
!!)'ADIi ML Seymoor 11.et<,c Ill licence lo 
opo • In Ule prOVln<IM part. It's oot the 
lint um lhls t_,ro. he ooted. 
h \,n• 1.1km thr mt~nytn til,;k H"f r1;1m-
1t~f Ul)t IMtrrN&"onthrM~lt1 tr,unt ..,,_,,In> rn21)2() 

Ro,y \lnnr ¥1, outdoor Nlur>tlna 
121auasc, fllN' Mt !)'Jlllklt Rcsor-Ls, wroll:. 
I.J;d lo Hanafin ,., March I ti 

"'Cc• Ulll!f lhc d.1111.~'CI I rL't.."'S >'•· 
Oi»eo'tdw1.thtntbeaklat - · 
bolll Ule ML Se)'100UJ' Trad and 
Cougar lI I? oot I.he st.andlfd we 
w.v,t tn uphnkl whrn pm\1d~ rocf"

i11t<lnal 6f01rf:1; • wrotr "'"5 t1 w.Rllt 
~""111 bf- rnn•~oIru:: om rMJl"ldlatlon 
wn,t ,Jr...r,~ up I d•'llai:od t""" Mid 
pmvil: l! tmlnlMDUC'r It> U.r- Inds '" ;m 

;apprupn;iitc :and t..1lVimnlbL1l l:llly M'tu.llh"'r 
dU.Cllll!t In ;w;o•1m1CN:lalc .,111.er .IC'Cl!U 

Furthennore,"' wW retrllln trum m>om
lng .c ti unlll lieI)t snowp.ac.t 

W-t!l ll)fl 1111 I ttuU)ef' b- U 

""'f1"11"' from the r co Tor ~ 1,try 
"4Fn,1mnmmt cbd rrk-aM> a ,;tiK<fll('1ll tn 
tho North .I N9w> 

Pal'lt.1 wurks dost.of)' -.,1 h .Ml 
)'lnutll Relurts ld n•1 lhe !fflUlnins 

lo U1 ded!P'l.l cd mttlllr- a11 u~ Scyrno._. 
MOfaTraJl.toa,'Okld to, otkJn.· 
the~ read. .. ,,&rt: t rs 
larlypalrultlle 1°""" d ur.apoeledw 
report at))' d"1aUoo 1Yoo1 Ule ~ ~=-- ~ny damal."' obom'l.'d. 

-.11hou1 fkk'nt rauoni,l,pnrJustt6ci'ltl• 
f1Ul' mmh tn mforrrmcnl ¥tlrm Alen 
,IIlderrtw Pm'"' · 

1-bn:tfln s.ald lhc- pn.lYllln' l.nlu:-s far lno 
11ad1 ur .a h:mdsc,lf ;apf• u;:idt tu lltc p.uk. 

•11.._~fs JtL1l a sl:ind:utl boJINplate 
lho mfnlsll)' Ju.I putsoul a rapollM!! ldld 
h<ip< R IW• .And lhal fJ l)'pkally 
J1uw th Oiln.btr cleafJ ~1UJ JUst a.buul 
E'V\.>f)'lfllng. as IM u l\'-e !I M be sald. 
• rar I ;vm'I AC'OO Ml" accoumabtllty" 

VIRTUAL DEVELOPER'S 
INFORMATION SESSION 

Thr" Shor• s Manag• m nt has submitted a r• z.on ng application 
to th• City of North Vancouvor for 120 • 128 East 14th StrHt to 
support the development of a 21 storey residential and commercial 
(retail and offi<el mi><ed use buildin51, lntcn,,tcd mcmbc~ of the 
puuli< arc nw,tc:d lo alle11d • Vrrtu.il Dc:vdop,:r'> 111/ormation So>OCXl 
with the pphcam [o, .in earty ovportun,cy to, view 1tic, p,o~L ask 
questions, and submit a comment orm. 

How lo Pattldpue: 
PIC!4'1.e tcgt!.l.cr in .tdva~ e1t: 
,. w 1 120!:J:..t .,.· (!;;'l l 

01 <.0r1ldd ti~ ppliwnL 

Duell Time: 
w.dn,,,d.,yMOfth 30, 202 1 
6:00 PM-6.15 PM - Presentation 
6:15 PM - /:30PM ·Q& A 

Applicant Co"111n 
Barry Savage 
Thrt:."t?- Shote~ M~ent 
e:fu 11=: ~b ,-,... f5i....: --1 
LI /8-366-136/ 

City of North V•ncouve, Cont.act 
~nw11Jehow 
~opnwn.t Plnnning 

e:fu uw u 1""0f J 



ISITHREE 
rmfilSHORES 



Three Shores M.nacement has submltad a re.zonlnc af)plkiltlon to the. City of 

North Vancouver for 120 - 121 East tilth Strttt to support the. de.velopment of 

a 21 st0<ey resldentl.al and commercial (retal"J .wtd office) rnixe.d use building. 

Interested members of lhe pubhc are invrted to attend a Virtual Developer's 

Information Session with the apphan1 for an earty opponunity to review the 

proposal, ~ quesbon5, and submit a comment form_ 

Applkant Contm 

Sany Savage 

Three Shores Management 

E: bsavap ~hreuhores.ca 

T: »8-366-2367 

City of North Vancouver Cont.let 

Emma Chow 

Development Planning 

E: echow@licnv.org 

T: 604-982-3919 

BITHREE 
l!ill.!I SHOR ES 



Attendee Details
  

Attended User Name (Original Name) Email

1 Dennis & Estela
 

2 Kshitij Chawla
 

3 Nav
 

4 bahar
 

5 Cynthia
 

6 Halle Jackson (Proje Ventures)
 

7 Maryam
 

8 Justin

9 Roberta
 

10 Garry Nishimura
 

11 Cross
 

12 John Ribalkin
 

13 822841
 

14 Suzi O
 

15 frozan
 

16 Chris Meadowcroft
 

17 Hamidreza Marashi
 

18 KJ
 

19 Amir
 

20 nbookani

21 Pat Conway
 

22 mikeross
 

23 Lynda B
 

24 Ian
 

25 Laila DV
 

26 Jennifer
 

27 adrian beruschi
 

28 Adriano Cusano
 

29 Jenn
 

30 Mehdi Shokri
 

31 Patrick

32 Nazanin Bookani
 

33 Connie & Justin
 

34 gianritacelotti
 

35 Jason Boudreau
 

36 Jamie da Silva
 



37 andy
 

38 Judy
 

39 Mitch Cramp
 

40 961484  Jessica Chen
 

41 Kelly Morris
 

42 Najam Mian
 

43 Ian Whitchelo
 

44 Estela Frias
 

45 Sandy Reid
 

46 Connie
 



120-128 East 14th St, North Vancouver - Rezoning Application
Updated Notification Report

Delivery Date: Tuesday February 13, 2024 

Comments: 8 emails were submitted following the delivery of the Information flyers. 

Notification Purpose: 1) To update the community on the status of the development application 
2) To provide an opportunity for the community to comment on the proposal

Notification: 
In accordance with City of North Vancouver policies: 

Information Flyers 
Information flyers were delivered to 894 addresses within a 40m radius of the site, provided by the City 
of North Vancouver. The flyers were mailed on February 13, 2024.  The purpose of the information 
flyer was to inform the neighbouring residents that Three Shores Management has responded to all of 
the outstanding items and that this project is ready to move to the next step of the development 
process. Appendix A: Notification includes a copy of this material. 

Background: 
The first Developer Information Session was held on Wednesday March 30, 2022 as part of the development 
process.  46 members of the public attended the virtual meeting.  Following the meeting, 45 comment forms 
and 9 emails were submitted. 31 of the responses were in support and 20 were opposed to the proposed 
project.  

Overview: 
The key themes of the responses to the Information Flyer were the height and density of the project along 
with concern over traffic.  

Regarding the height and density for the site and the increasing density in Central Lonsdale, it should be 
noted that the height complies with the OCP for the area, and that density is being purchased from the City 
for this site from a donor site (the Harry Jerome Lands). The site is located in a major focal node of Lonsdale 
City Centre, identified as a priority location for higher density development. 

Comments regarding the impact on traffic that this project would have to an already congested area, 
particularly along the lanes to the west and north of the property. As previously noted by our traffic 
consultant, the width of the lane meets City requirements and should allow two vehicles to pass one 
another. The traffic consultant also noted that commercial use of the lane, such as for loading, would 
diminish in the evenings when residential traffic typically increases.  The introduction of intersection 
improvements at 14th Street and St. Georges and along the back lanes has help alleviate some of the traffic 
and congestion concerns. 



 

 

 

Comment Sheet and Email Summary: 
Residents were invited to submit comments on the application.  8 emails were submitted following the 
delivery of the Information flyers. 2 of the responses were in support and 6 were opposed to the 
proposed project. These are submitted as a separate Appendix B: Public Comments. 

 
Those in favour of the project noted support for the building design, the need for new housing, and for 
the need for new commercial space. 

 
Those opposed to the project noted concern over the amount of density in Central Lonsdale, and the 
impacts of this density including increased traffic, parking challenges and noise and disruption from 
ongoing construction in the area. 

 

Conclusion: 
The purpose of this Updated Notification was to make the community aware that this rezoning application 
was progressing through the rezoning process and that it would be coming before City Council in the next 
few months.  It provided the community with an opportunity to provide comments on the application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix A: Notification 
Notification Flyer 

 
 

 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION 
120 -128 East 14th Street 

Three Shores Management has applied for a Zoning Bylaw Amendment application to rezone the 
property from existing C-1B Zone to new Comprehensive Development Zone to allow for a 21-
storey residential and commercial building with 177 strata units. The proposal includes 184 vehicle 
parking stalls and 252 secure bicycle parking stalls . 

PROPOSED BUILDING LOCATION 

PROJECT UPDATE & NEXT STEPS 

Three Shores Management has submitted a revised application based on the 
comments received by the City and the public . Three Shores Management 
has responded to all of the outstanding items and that this project is ready to move to 
the next step of the development process . It is anticipated that this Zoning Bylaw 
Amendment will be advanced to City Council in the next month or so . 

TO LEARN MORE & PROVIDE FEEDBACK 

COMMENTS TO APPLICANT: 
Please submit your comments to Three Shores Management for review and response. Your comments will be 
shared with City staff for consideration . 

Three Shores Management 
38 Fell Ave #400, 
North Vancouver, BC V7P 3S2 
in.fQ@threeshores.ca 

cnv .org/Applications 
Search by property address 

APPLICANT CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

Barry Savage 
Three Shores Management 
38Fe11Ave#400, 
North Vancouver, BC V7P 3S2 
info@threeshores.ca 
778-366-2367 

Matthew Menzel 
Planning & Development 
141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver 
planning@cnv.org 
604-982-9675 



   

Overview of Variances to Zoning and Parking Provisioning  
 
The following provides a summary and overview of the proposed variances to zoning and car 
parking provisioning associated with the project at 120-128 East 14th Street:  
 
Table 1. Summary of Proposed Zoning Changes 
 BASE C-1B ZONE PROPOSED CD-749 ZONE 
Permitted 
Principal 
Uses 

Retail-Service Group 1 
Accessory Residential and 
Parking Uses 

Retail-Service Group 1A at 
ground level 
Retail-Service Group 1 at second 
level  
Accessory Residential Uses  
Accessory Parking Uses 

Density 
Maximum 

2.6 FSR  9.98 FSR 

Lot Coverage 
Maximum 

90%, reduced to 35% above the 
second storey 

100 percent, reduced to 47 
percent above the second level  

Height 
Maximum 

36.6 metres (120 feet) 68 metres (as per the OCP) 

Siting 3.048 metres (10 feet) from the 
flanking lane 

0 metres to podium level  
3.048 metres (10 feet) to tower 

6.096 metres (20 feet) from the 
rear lot line 

Up to Level 2 (podium level) 
0 metres  
 
Level 3 to 21 (tower levels) 
3.65 metres (12 feet) to the 
principal building.  
2.13 metres (7 feet) to an 
unenclosed balcony.   

Building 
Width & 
Length 

Shall not exceed a horizontal 
width or length of 51.816 metres 
(170 feet) above the second 
storey and 30.48 metres (100 
feet) above third storey 

36 metres (approx. 118 feet) to 
the eastern and western 
elevations of the tower levels.  
 

 
Lot Coverage 
The application seeks a variation to the Lot Coverage requirements set for the C-2 
zone, specifically being 90%, reduced to 35% above the second storey.  
 
The application proposes a Lot Coverage of 100%, reduced to 47% above the second 
storey.   
 
The building has been designed with a commercial podium level, which is appropriate 
given the site’s Mixed Use Level 4B land use designation in the OCP. The proposed lot 
coverage at the ground level is required in order to meet operational functions of the 
building, including for example vehicle and bicycle parking, loading and garbage 
storage/staging, and to establish active commercial retail units along the full frontage of 

Attachment 8



   

the East 14th Street. The proposed Lot Coverage is therefore determined to result in an 
appropriate form and intensity for the mixed use location.  
 
The site has been designed with appropriate landscaping treatments within the 
streetscape and podium level to soften the built form elements and enhance amenity for 
residents.  
 
Flanking Lane Setback 
The C-1B zone requires a minimum setback of 3.048 metres (10 feet) from the flanking 
lane (western boundary). The application proposes a 2 metre (6.6 feet) setback at 
ground floor and 0 metres on the second floor.  
 
As discussed, the development achieves excellent laneway activation through 
positioning of commercial uses and pedestrian amenities at grade level. The second 
floor office spaces that will overlook the laneway are also strongly supported.  
 
The second floor overhangs over the ground level along the western boundary. Staff 
support this minor variation to the setback, as it helps to establish an appropriate 
commercial podium and will contribute to the overall laneway activation strategy. The 
overhang will create a covered area at grade, providing weather protection for 
pedestrians and the short-term bicycle parking spaces. 
 
Rear Boundary Setback 
The proposed development will result in a variation to the siting requirements for the C-
1B zone, specifically from the rear lot line, being the northern boundary adjacent to the 
laneway. The C-1B zone requires a minimum setback 6.096 metres (20 feet) from the 
rear lot line.  
 
The proposed development results in the following minimum setbacks on the existing 
northern boundary (rear lot line):  

• Podium Level – 0 metres; 
• Tower element:  

o to wall – 3.65 metres (12 feet); and 
o to balcony – 2.14 metres (7 feet). 

 
The reduction in the rear boundary setback will have minimal impacts with respect to 
overshadowing of existing adjoining dwellings, and will ensure that residents achieve an 
adequate level of access to sunlight and prevailing breezes.  
 
As demonstrated in the Context Site Plan prepared by the applicant’s architect, the 
proposed rear boundary setback will ensure that a 24.4 metre (80 foot) separation can 
be achieved to a potential future tower on the land to the north. On this basis, it is 
determined that the proposed rear boundary setback will not jeopardize the 
development outcomes on nearby parcels, and will be able to appropriately mitigate 
potential overlooking impacts to future residents.  
 
  



   

Building Width and Length 
The building is composed of a 2-storey podium and 19 storeys of tower. The proposed 
development will result in a variation to the building width and length requirements set 
for the C-1B zone, specifically being 30.48 metres (100 feet) for the tower element.  
 
The proposed development results in a maximum building width of 35.9 metres (118 
feet) above the podium level, specifically along the eastern and western elevations.  
 
It is firstly important to acknowledge that the northern and southern elevations have 
been designed with slender tower width of only approximately 19.8 metres (65 feet), 
which is significantly less than the 30.48 metres (100 feet) prescribed by the C-1B zone. 
The design of the tower has mitigated view impacts of nearby residents towards the 
north to the full extent possible.  
 
Further, the Context Site Plan prepared by the applicant’s architect has demonstrated 
that the proposed building design will ensure that a 24.4 metre (80 foot) separation can 
be achieved to a potential future tower on the land to the north. On this basis, it is 
determined that the proposed tower width will not jeopardize the development outcome 
on nearby parcels.  
 
The proposed elevations have been designed with appropriate articulation along the 
length of the building, including steps in the building line, and inclusion of recessed 
balconies. The building also adopts a contemporary design that utilizes a variety of 
façade materials and strong roof line. These built form elements appropriately break up 
the form of the building and reduce the perceived building bulk, despite the variance to 
building length and width.  
 
The building width and length standards are regularly varied in individual 
Comprehensive Development Zones to ensure a functional built form outcome is 
established in mixed use areas. Similar building widths and lengths have been 
permitting in a number of nearby projects in the Central Lonsdale area.  
 
Resident Parking Spaces 
The proposed development involves a minor variation to the proposed resident car 
parking. Specifically, only 153 residential visitor car parking spaces will be provided in 
lieu of the required 156 spaces.  
 
The subject site is located in a centralized location, nearby to 2 frequent transit corridors 
with inbound and outbound bus stops located within 200 metres walking distance of the 
site. The site is also located within one block of the bicycle route on 13th Street which 
provides connections to the broader bicycle network. Finally, the proposed development 
has provided 246 residential secure bicycle parking spaces (which includes 31 cargo 
bicycle spaces), to promote use of active transportation. 
 
Given the sites centralized location, there is expected to be a reduced demand for 
parking on the site, and therefore the proposed variance is supported. 
 
  



   

Visitor and Commercial Vehicle Parking 
The development involves a minor variation to the proposed visitor and commercial 
vehicle parking. Specifically, only 13 residential visitor car parking spaces will be 
provided in lieu of the required 16 spaces. Further only 15 commercial car parking 
spaces will be provided in lieu of the required 18 spaces.    
 
The development has proposed to allocate 3 vehicle parking spaces as being shared 
between residential visitor spaces and commercial users. Given the commercial parking 
and residential visitor parking will have different peak use times, the shared 
arrangement for these 3 spaces will make better use of the overlapping parking 
demands generated by the commercial uses and residential visitors. Use of the visitor 
car parking space will be managed through the strata of the building, and the terms can 
be outlined in the development covenant.  
 
Given the sites centralized location, there is expected to be a reduced demand for 
parking on the site, and therefore the proposed variance is supported. 
 
Bicycle Parking within P2 Level 
The development proposes 47 resident bicycle parking spaces within the P2 level.  
 
The minor variance is supported, as requiring additional bicycle parking within the 
ground level floor plate will impact the functionality of the office and residential lobbies, 
and reduce the available floor space allocated to active commercial uses along East 
14th Street. Further, providing additional bicycle parking within the P1 level will impact 
the functionality of the car parking layout.  
 
The proposed bicycle parking within P2 will be easily accessible to residents via the 
parkade ramps and two residential elevators.  
 

















~ 111/>ru~I• ~ a IIIH ''" '" " " I h_. • 

<- {J :;'J wv.w 1Jw,o,;><.!><)I!"', r 1 * []J t"; r;;, 

BITHREE 
ni!.!.!I SHORES 

Leveraging 
our 
relationships. 
While origlnallyzoned and planned for ill 6 story 

res~ootlal building, our experuse and connections 
to the c.tv ptannlng staff allowed us to gain 
approval for~ 21 story hrgh•rise, more than 

doubling the existing FSR. ifhls slte went thro11,19h a 

highly competitive bidding process, but with switt 
and efficient due diligence, the potential was crear. 

Taking on th1s due diligence allowed a deal 
strucwre that rapidly accelerated 011.1r 

dovelopmoot t(melino. allowing for cf1iclent 

planning and execu on. Our calculated risk, having 
invested in proper environmental evaluation using 
our industry network, paid off to great benefit tor 

both 1nve.stors ilod our future homeowners. 

ABOUT PROPERTIES NEWS CONTACT 











































Planning and Approvals Officials & Councillors of the City of North Vancouver (CNV) 
Mayor of City of North Vancouver 
Bylaws, Police Support Services CNV 
Infrastructure Planning, Public Works CNV 
Corporate Officer/City Clerk CNV 
Chief Financial Officer CNV 
Acting Corporate Officer CNV 





IJJilTH REE 
m!.!.!ISHORES 

Leveraging 
our 
relationships. 
While originally zoned and planned for a 6 story 
esidential building, our expertise and connections 

o the city planning staff allowed us to gain 
approva1for a21 story high-rise more han 

l:loubli SR hiss e went through a 

and efficient due diligence, the potential was clear. 

Taking on this due d iligence allowed a deal 
structure tha rapidly accelerated our 
development timeline, allowing for efficient 
p!annrng and execution, Our calculated risk, having 
invested in proper environmental evaluation using 

our industry network, paid off t o g reat benefit for 

both investors and otJr fu ure homeowners, 

©~,;:,:.'=~ 
CJ ,-.. ,,WIIJ',.,.. 
- - Ctt,-1.,.,_,., 

Eui,,plol'llllthtf<i~ 

~· ~7 
' " - " r. 

> . 
r ... ,... ......... feltGl 1N l1io+tplll"90fl.clllO.,,~ ::"-~-...·==--=--..,--,, ... 
M """'"l411--«.•L-~ ..... 101ff.1 ... I .. _ 
_,..._..., .. _,. r.,.(JNl-1.~_,IIIN-'11N 
huo\t'lnl-..1t,a.on:1 -. .,..,..,.mi;10,..-n1,,.."11....,to. 
ollln-'wi1111,.,--1111.-ltc.:t1.,_ .. ~-n,(f,. 
...... ~UMe'rllNl>Jlf"OJ 

ABOUT PROPrnTIES NEWS CONTACT 

g~ 
Schedule A 

Land Use 

_c;[] 



Dear Officials of the City of North Vancouver,

We would like to convey a distressing concern to our city leaders -- the soon-to-be built 21-storey mixed-use 
high-rise by Three Shores along 14th St E. Please help us understand why City Planning approved a towering 
edifice in such a highly dense and congested area of Central Lonsdale and along a virtually one-way street that 
is a conduit to vital and essential resident services as Lions Gate Hospital and the RCMP. It is also deeply 
unsettling that this project received the green light without need of public consultation, as indicated in the Public
Advisory in front of the subject property.

We take it that such a massive project was approved through a density transfer (FSR) from the Harry James 
area to 14th St E, resulting in an increase from max six floors to 21 floors. It is perplexing and disturbing to us 
that the city can juggle and toss around density parameters in a seemingly whimsical fashion without consulting
its own constituency that will be directly and adversely affected by such a development. CNV leadership 
appear to have a detached or indifferent posture with regards to the potential deleterious impact it will have on 
its neighbours on the other side of 14th St.

We understand that fast-tracking such projects is meant to help alleviate (on paper) the city's housing crisis. 
However, given the unbridled rapid pace of construction here in the heart of Central Lonsdale, we are left to 
wonder if the city has lost sight of the need to balance housing development with preserving a decent 
welcoming quality of life for the people who effectively voted them to power.

Kindly demonstrate that you are still connected with the concerns of your disaffected constituents by 
addressing the aforementioned issues. Thank you.

Sincerely,
Dennis & Estela Frias
14th St E., North Vancouver,  BC  V7L 0E6









BITHREE 
m!!i]SHORES 

Leveraging 
our 
relationships. 
While originally zoned and planned for a 6 story 
residential building , our expertise and connections 
to the city planning staff allowed us to gain 

approval for a 21 story high-rise, more than 
doubhng the existing FSR. This site went through a 

highly competit ive bidding process, but with swift 
and efficient due diligence, the potential was clear. 

Takina on this due d iliaence allowed a deal 

ABOUT PROPERTIES NEWS CONTACT 













































FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS – 120 EAST 14TH STREET 

How does this application comply with the development review process? 

This application is being processed in accordance with the Local Government Act and the City’s standard 
process for rezoning applications.  To date this has included a comprehensive interdepartmental review 
of the project, developer-led consultation and presentation to City advisory committees (Advisory 
Design Panel & Integrated Transportation Committee). The next step in the process is formal 
consideration of the application by City Council.   

As part of this consideration, a staff report will be provided which will provide a staff recommendation 
based on  

how the proposal aligns with City policies and objectives
an overview of the development proposal and key land use considerations
a summary of public and committee engagement

Council will consider the information provided by staff, as well as the public correspondence when 
making their decision on this proposal.  To date, no decisions have been made on this application. 

Why is there no public hearing? 

Pursuant to recent Provincial amendments to the Local Government Act, which came into force on 
November 30, 2023, the City must not hold a public hearing on a proposed rezoning bylaw if:  

an OCP is in place for the subject site
the bylaw is consistent with the OCP
the purpose of the bylaw is to permit a development that is residential and that residential
component is at least half of the gross floor area for the development.

Since all of these factors apply to this development, no public hearing will be held, consistent with the 
requirements of the Local Government Act.   

What will be the impacts on local traffic and parking? 

As part of our review of more complex planning applications, the City requires the applicant to submit a 
transportation study to show how the proposed development project will affect the transportation 
network. The applicant in this case prepared a Transportation Study in October 2022, which 
demonstrates that the existing road network can accommodate additional vehicle trips once this project 
was built. This study has been reviewed by the City’s Transportation Planning team. 

With regards to engagement with the RCMP, all nearby property owners are provided with an 
opportunity to submit feedback on planning applications in the City. The City did not receive any 
feedback from the RCMP on this specific project. It is worth noting that the RCMP has its primary access 

S:JlY 
vancouver 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING 

CI TY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

141 W EST 14TH STREET 

NORTH VANCOUVER 

BC/ CANADA/ V7M 1 H9 

T 604 983 7357 

F 604 985 0576 

PLANN ING@CNV.ORG 

CNV.ORG 



- 2 -

point from St. Georges Avenue, and emergency vehicles typically use higher order roads in the case of 
emergencies (i.e. 13th Street & 15th Street).  

The application generally meets the parking and loading requirements of the Zoning Bylaw apart from 
some minor variances to resident, commercial and visitor parking. 

Please explain the OCP land use designation and density transfer. 

In accordance with the OCP, City Council may authorize a density transfer between properties, which 
permits additional density above the maximum specified in the OCP being achieved on a site, where the 
building height limits are not exceeded. The height identified in the OCP for the site is 68 metres or 
approximately 22 storeys. The OCP Schedule A Land Use Map can be accessed at the following link: 

https://gisext2.cnv.org/PDFMaps/Schedule%20A%20Land%20Use_11x17.pdf 

This process does not require an OCP amendment, as such transfers do not involve an increase in the 
total development potential in the City, but rather the relocation of density allowance from one parcel 
to another.  

The density transfer is facilitated through a rezoning application as currently proposed for Council 
consideration. As outlined above, recent changes to the Local Government Act prohibit the City from 
holding a Public Hearing for this project. The provisions of the Local Government Act take precedence 
over the current regulations in the OCP, which previously required a Public Hearing for Density 
Transfers.  

The proposed transferred density is from the CD-165 zone from the lands being developed for the City’s 
new Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre. The increased density will allow for the delivery of 
new employment generating uses and residential units, which would contribute to economic growth 
along the Lonsdale Corridor and provide new housing stock in the City.  

The proposed density transfer includes a cash contribution of $195 per square foot of buildable area 
above 4.0 FSR (amounting to an estimated $18,282,030), which will be allocated toward the Civic 
Amenity Reserve Fund, and would be directed to projects to support the delivery of new amenities and 
programmes to serve our growing community, for example the Harry Jerome Community Recreation 
Centre, new parklands, etc. The application is also providing a community benefit contribution of 
$3,138, 200 as per the City’s Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy.   

How will the building height affect view corridors? 

The tower positioning and footprint have been designed to minimize potential impacts on view corridors 
to the fullest extent possible. This is addressed through floorplates that have a narrow width of 19.8 
metres (65 feet) to the northern and southern elevations, which is less than the 30.48 metres (100 feet) 
prescribed for the C-1B zone.   

It is important to consider that any decrease in building height would result in a wider floorplate, 
causing more adverse impacts on view corridors. The slender tower format is deemed appropriate as it 
will lessen impacts on view corridors for surrounding residents.  



- 3 -

While there is likely to be some impact on existing views, the OCP does not guarantee that views will be 
preserved. This is especially true in the Regional City Centre that is envisaged to accommodate regional-
scale employment, services, business and commercial activities, along with high density housing.  

What infrastructure is being planned to accommodate more residents? 

The proposed development will be required to provide off-site streetscape improvements, consistent 
with the City’s Subdivision and Development Control Bylaw. This includes the reconstruction of the 
frontage works along East 14th Street with new sidewalks, street lighting, street furnishings, and a 
seating area. Existing street trees will be retained and additional street trees will be provided.  The 
development will also repave East 14th Street and the adjoining laneways to the northern and western 
boundaries.  

In addition to the bylaw required infrastructure upgrades, the applicant will be required to complete the 
design and construction of a full traffic signal at the intersection of East 14th Street and St. Georges 
Avenue, and has agreed to make a financial contribution of $59,621.00 towards future upgrades to the 
sanitary sewer main on East 14th Street.  

These requirements will be secured through legal agreements with the City to ensure that they are 
completed should this project move forward.   

How will the construction impacts to the community be managed? 

Should this application move forward, the City’s construction administration process includes several 
measures aimed at mitigating impacts to the neighbouring community.  For example, Building Permit 
applications for large-scale projects like this one are required to include both a Construction 
Management Plan and Traffic Management Plan, detailing the strategy for the delivery of materials to 
the site, staging areas, and contractor parking.  Further, all projects are required to comply with the 
Noise Control Bylaw, regulating both the hours of construction and noise levels.  Finally, the City’s 
Construction Site Ambassador Program provides dedicated staff to routinely observe site activity, liaise 
with construction managers, and address potential issues on a proactive basis. 



I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 



I 

I 

I 

I 

I 



I I 

I I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 



BITHREE 
m!!i]SHORES 

Leveraging 
our 
relationships. 
While originally zoned and planned for a 6 story 
residential building, our expertise and connections 
to the city planning staff allowed us to gain 

approval for a 21 story high-rise, more than 
doubhng the existing FSR. This site went through a 

highly competitive bidding process, but with swift 

and efficient due diligence, the potential was clear. 
Takino on this due d ilioence allowed a deal 

ABOUT PROPERTIES NEWS CONTACT 



I I 

I I 

I 
I 

I 





Local Government Act



















Local Government Act

































































Garbage disposal trucks blocking "2-way" traffic during pickup

Multiple commercial vehicles (no drivers in vehicles) completely blocking laneway



Home Hardware truck completely blocking traffic on E. 14th during delivery























Per Image 2. e Zoning Amendment must occur to su:ppon the proposed 21~St0f'Y, 164 suata unit. 
development . Three Shores· proposed dENelopment requlrH this bylaw change. Wtthout this 
revised zoning, the developer wil have to b ack to the drawing board and come up with sometting 
more aoorooriate for the s ite. This i:a most likety our last chance s:too t his absurd orooosat. h o m 
irrepar8bl'y damaginc our neiCf'\bourhood. 

Notice of Proposed Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw 
No Public Hearing 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8960. 2024 
120-128 East 14'" Street 

P\ir~n-.tp,,,roos,tdNp,~ '71:;;::J"--::=:r-c==:::i 
e,v,.. -stotUDne l!!f' M.C,jffl cm:ip.,ty 
fll)m,1-Cft'ltr"IILOl!'l5dr,al!thl tf!/SUW 
8 .C·!Bl Zarw 10 ,1-CO"IP"\'~ 

~760«:0--1'60)Zbhitto I 
~ rtle. c)todcJO,:;Q< C .J • 21 "OH')'. 
f'l'Sloerwif!6& .)UIAt'Jt#ld 
Clll'n~ tfU, it'l(loffl(f"J ,,,...,.t(I,.---~bj«l t.Mds:. TN lai'ld!ffWII ,.,.the r----, ,---.----i 
,su~orN>~BY4-.in ~ 
,shgwnonU,Ctn,itttr.ap,-.,,.;iCMC 
«tcl~of IZ0.12.S E.lSt l.rf Slfffl 

&.q;M Ot-~i0n: Lor. 9, 8k:lck SO, Dt. S&9,""' Sii38 
Lot tO, lllock SO. Ot. S49, Pbn S938 

lyl.aiw Rt~C~«IOltol lv'SI. ~ .,,d lh.nl ~ of Inf' 
i:,,-opmed By(aw'lflflllbtM tht SlfS\ll~ Colltldl Mffll"II 01'1 M,1-y6. 20:2' 
A«ffl; Ooa,me:nts:A copyaftht or~ 8)t.M iS.t-,·li!Jt:iie fOJ'" 
~ Oflhnt .arr,l ~ "'c:nv.o,g!Pubtic:Hotk es. h-omAQrll 24 to 
,.,,,,6..?0ZL 
ProriM lnput;Writcffl submissions •1, ineluding your ,wm,e • nd 
Ndtll'S$. rn#J t,e.,1-0(Jtf'S.SofO totht(orpo~ 017of ¥'¥d W"'lt b'f ~ 
to ~~ or by~ ot ~ toQy KIii. ftO l.llt er thM noon 
Ot1 Monday, May 6, Z0.24 to('Ml.lft!: ~l.it.tytoCOl.lld .c the mt'(!~ 

hO Pubk HINIW"'8 wil ~ Nld, as It IS prctliOted °'1' s.e<1IOO '6,lj]) ot the 
1.«d ~IWnMI At:I Ho public lft.iperson cw onlin,e subrni:s:sioM on 
d,ilm.ttH wl• be hunt at IM COllftCII ~ 
W•tthlMM~Ord1'1!4'lO"t-'.~t~or•np.e,wn•Ccv 
,,.. ,.-1 "''"' t.c Sttft'I.. t,,ter Oty,...,n rron'l l:r SttHuflltorS.JOp"" 
()vftUOtii:• M.irt"lt'YloMtnfff.~nH q,jtl!', ~f60l·9129'7S 

41 'hl'l,f UlH ST!lflt / 11ll.;CTN ll'A~COUl, • , at ' .,n,a ,t"I 

'"°"R"11'•11f6NHSNl1l(f;'IIOII: () 0 C 









o

o

o

















Mayor of City of North Vancouver & Councillors of the City of North Vancouver (CNV) 



--



May 1, 2024 

From 
Sedik Ovanessain 
Vic Jang 

Our concern is the density. 

: E 14th St. 
-: E 14th St.

The alley between 14th St and 15th Street is a huge 
problem ... Major congestion from delivery trucks 
every day. This alley is occupied by delivery trucks 
with no where to park. 

Residence at 108 E 14th Street and customers 
who access the TD Parking from 14th and 15th St. 
have trouble getting through because these delivery 
trucks are blocking the alley. (Garbage trucks and 
local service trucks are blocked) 

The City of North Vancouver should send someone 
out during the week to view this issue. 

Also you are a\ivare that East 14th Street is a 
ONE WAY Street. Every day some one is driving 
down the wrong way ... an accident waiting to 
happen. 













141 WEST 14TH STREET / NORTH VANCOUVER / BC / V7M 1H9
T 604 985 7761 / F 604 985 9417 / CNV.ORG

Notice of Proposed Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw - No Public Hearing

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8960, 2024 
120-128 East 14th Street

Purpose: The purpose of the proposed Bylaw is to rezone the 
subject property from a Central Lonsdale Mixed Use B (C-1B) 
Zone to a Comprehensive Development 760 (CD-760) Zone to 
permit the development of a 21-storey, residential (164 strata 

Subject Lands: The lands that are the subject of the 
proposed Bylaw are shown on the inset map, with a civic 
address of 120-128 East 14th

Bylaw Readings:
Bylaw will be at the Regular Council Meeting on May 6, 2024
Access Documents: A copy of the proposed Bylaw is available for inspection online 
anytime at cnv.org/PublicNotices
Provide input: Written submissions only, including your name and address, 

, or 
by mail or delivered to City Hall, no later than noon on Monday, May 6, 2024, to 

Local Government Act No public in-person or 
online submissions on this matter will be heard at the Council meeting
Watch the Meeting:
West 14th th

Questions?

13
5

12
1

1452

1350

1441

147

14
00

1415140

1344

13
2

1318

1440

13
7

Lo
ns

da
le

 A
ve

E  14th St

E  15th St

120-128 E 14th Street

12
0-

12
8

S:l!Y 
vancouver 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960 Document: 2332897-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8960 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960” (Three Shores Management, 120-128 East 14th 
Street, CD-760 (the Density Receiver Site)) and Text Amendment to Centennial 
Theatre, 2300 Lonsdale Avenue, 116 East 23rd Street, and Norseman Park (HJNL, CD-
165). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lands currently having a civic address of 120-128 
East 14th Street and legally described below as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-760 (Comprehensive Development 760 Zone): 

 
PID: 005-773-024 LOT 9 OF LOT A BLOCK 50 DISTRICT LOT 549 PLAN 5938 
PID: 011-039-523 LOT 10 OF LOT A BLOCK 50 DISTRICT LOT 549 PLAN 5938 

 
from zone C-1B. 

 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following Comprehensive Development  Zone to Section 1101 in numerical 
order:  

 
CD-760 Comprehensive Development 760 Zone (120-128 East 14th Street) 

 
In the CD-760 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the C-1B Zone, except that: 

 
(1) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to: 
 

(a) Retail Service Group 1A Use; 
(b) Retail Service Group 1 Use, except these uses are permitted only at the 

second storey or higher;  
(c) Health care related professional office uses are permitted at the ground 

level;  
(d) Accessory Apartment Use subject to Section 607(1) of this Bylaw; 
(e) Accessory Home Occupation Use, subject to Section 507(6); 
(f) Accessory Home Office Use, subject to Section 507(6); 
(g) Child Care Use, subject to Section 607(9); 
(h) Accessory Off-Street Loading Use; 
(i) Accessory Off-Street Parking Use; 
(j) Off-Site Parking Use.  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960 Document: 2332897-v1 

(2) Gross Floor Area 
 
(a) The maximum Gross Floor Area is 2.6 FSR; 
 
(b) Not withstanding (2)(a) the Gross Floor Area may be increased as follows: 

 
ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY 

ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
CATEGORY  

DESCRIPTION ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
(BONUS) 

POLICY 
REFERENCE  

Community 
Benefit Cash 
Contribution 

Provision of a 
Community 
Benefit Cash 
Contribution of 
$3,138,200 
 

Maximum  
 
2,040.8 sq. m. 
(21,967 sq. ft.) 
1.4 FSR   

As per OCP 
Policy Section 
2.2.1 

TOTAL BONUS  1.4 FSR  
 

DENSITY TRANSFER
DONOR SITE DESCRIPTION TRANSFERRED 

GROSS FLOOR 
AREA 

POLICY 
REFERENCE  

Transferred from 
Harry Jerome 
Lands (at 2300 
Lonsdale Avenue 
and 116 East 
23rd Street, 
Comprehensive 
Development 
Zone 165) 

Residual density 
that is not to be 
utilized on donor 
site 

8,710 sq. m. 
(93,754 sq. ft.) / 
5.98 FSR 

As per OCP 
Policy  
Section 2.3 

TOTAL 
TRANSFER 

 5.98 FSR  

   
Such that the total effective on-site Gross Floor Area is not to exceed 9.98 FSR. 

 
(3) A minimum of 10% of units shall have 3 bedrooms; 
 
(4) Lot Coverage  
 

Shall not exceed a Lot Coverage of 100%, reduced to 47% above the second 
Storey.  
 

(5) Building Height: 
 

(a) The Principal Building shall not exceed a Building Height of 68 metres (223 
feet) as measured from the average Building Grades; 
 

(b) Elevator and mechanical penthouses may project beyond the defined 
height in (a) by a maximum of 6.1 metres (20 feet) including elevator shafts 
and mechanical rooms; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960 Document: 2332897-v1 

 
(6) Section 610(5) Siting shall be waived and replaced with the following siting 

requirements: 
 

(a) The Principal Building shall be sited not less than: 
 

(i)  0 meters from the lane (Flanking Lane) to the west, for all portions of 
Principal Buildings up to two storeys; 

(ii) Minimum of 3.048 metres (10 feet) from the lane (Flanking Lane) to 
the west, for all portions of Principal Buildings exceeding two storeys;   

(iii) 0 meters from the rear boundary setback, for all portions of Principal 
Buildings up to two storeys;  

(iv)  3.65 metres (12 feet) from a Rear Lot Line to the wall, for all portions 
of Principal Buildings exceeding two storeys;  

(v) 2.14 metres (7 feet) from a Rear Lot Line to an unenclosed balcony, 
for all portions of Principal Buildings exceeding two storeys; 

(vi) Notwithstanding Subsections (6)(a)(i-v) all portions of Principal 
Building exceeding four storeys shall be sited at least 24.4 metres (80 
feet) from all portions of other Principal Buildings exceeding four 
Storeys.  

 
(7) Section 612(6) Building Width and Length shall be waived; 

 
(8) Section 402(6) within Prohibited Uses of Land, Buildings, and Structures shall 

be waived;  
 
(9) Off-Street Parking, Short-Term and Secure Bicycle Parking, and Accessory Off-

Street Loading Spaces shall be provided in conformity with the requirements of 
Division IV, Parts 9, 10, and 10A, except that: 

 
(a)  A minimum of 153 residential vehicle Parking Spaces shall be provided; 
 
(b)  A minimum of 13 residential visitor Parking Spaces shall be provided; 
 
(c)  A minimum of 15 commercial Parking Spaces shall be provided;  
 
(d) 3 vehicle Parking Spaces shall be identified as shared residential visitor 

and commercial parking spaces;  
 
(e) 47 resident bicycle parking spaces can be provided at the second level 

beneath grade.  
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 8960 Document: 2332897-v1 

B. Amending Section 1101, CD-165, Schedule 141, ‘Record of Density Transfer’, by:  
 

(1) Creating a new entry recording 8,710 sq. m. of Transferred Gross Floor Area to 
the 120-128 East 14th Street recipient site and subtracting 8,710 sq. m. from the 
Remaining Residual Density. 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2024. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



To: 

From: 

Director CAO 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

CITY CLERK'S DIVISION 

REPORT 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Julie Peters, Manager, Legislative and Election Services 
Amanda Gibbs, Senior Manager, Engagement and Communications 

Subject: ALTERNATIVE APPROVAL PROCESS REGARDING NORTH SHORE 
NEIGHBOURHOOD HOUSE AND CITY PARKS LOAN AUTHORIZATION 
BYLAW, 2024, NO. 9006 - PETITION RESULTS 

Date: April 24, 2024 File No: 09-4250-20-0008/1 

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Legislative and Election Services, and 
the Senior Manager, Engagement and Communications, dated April 24, 2024, 
entitled "Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood 
House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 - Petition 
Results": 

THAT the Acting Corporate Officer's Certification for the Alternative Approval 
Process Opportunity regarding "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City 
Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006" be received and filed with the 
Inspector of Municipalities; 

AND THAT "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006" be considered for final adoption. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Acting Corporate Officer's Certification (CityDocs 2501169) 

2. Frequently Asked Questions (Updated) (CityDocs 2499756) 

3. "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, 
No. 9006" (CityDocs 2452739) 

Document Number: 2501169 



REPORT: Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 - Petition Results 
Date: April 24, 2024 

SUMMARY 

In order to enable the advancement of the North Shore Neighbourhood House ("NSNH") 
Phase 2 Redevelopment, including a new NSNH facility and 180 non-profit rental units, 
as well as two City parks (Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park) to meet key 
objectives in the Parks Master Plan, Council endorsed, at the Regular Council Meeting 
of January 22, 2024, the acceleration of these projects through a financial strategy of 
borrowing $55.7 million in low interest debt financing from the Municipal Finance 
Authority (MFA). The statutory requirements and legislative processes necessary to 
implement this strategy have been followed by staff including, at Council's direction, the 
use of the Alternative Approval Process (AAP) to meet the requirement for elector 
approval under the Community Charter. 

BACKGROUND 

At the Regular Council meeting of February 12, 2024, Council gave third reading to 
"North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, 
No. 9006" (the Loan Authorization Bylaw). Staff subsequently obtained statutory 
approval for the Loan Authorization Bylaw from the Inspector of Municipalities and 
returned to Council on March 11, 2024, for direction to undertake an Alternative 
Approval Process to obtain elector approval of the Loan Authorization Bylaw. 

Below is the timeline for the Loan Authorization Bylaw process: 

Item Dateffimeline 
Loan Authorization Bylaw received third reading February 12 
Bylaw sent to Inspector of Municipalities February 13 
Approval received from the Inspector of February 27 
Municipalities 
AAP Initiation Report presented to Council March 11 
AAP Begins - First Notification Published and March 13 
Elector Response Forms available online and in-
person at City Hall 
Second Notification Published March 20 
AAP Concludes April 22, 5:00pm 
AAP Results and Loan Authorization Bylaw May6 
presented to Council for consideration of adoption Ei- We are here

One Month Quashing Period May 7 - June 7 
Bylaw sent to Inspector of Municipalities for a June 10 
Certificate of Approval 

As set out in the report of the Corporate Officer dated February 28, 2024, an AAP is a 
petition-like process whereby eligible electors can express their opposition by 
completing an Elector Response Form; if less than 10% of eligible electors oppose the 
bylaw, then the local government can proceed to adoption; if more than 10% oppose it, 
then the local government must proceed to Assent Voting (a referendum) or consider 
other options (i.e. alternative financing or not proceeding at all). 

Page 2 of 7 



REPORT: Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 - Petition Results 
Date: April 24, 2024 

An AAP is an option used by local governments, including by the City on three recent 
occasions in respect of parks projects and by larger municipalities for loan authorization 
bylaws for projects such as recreation and activity centres. 

DISCUSSION 

This report presents the results of the opportunity to petition against the Loan 
Authorization Bylaw. It also entails a description of the various methods used to 
advertise the opportunity to the public and the efficacy of those methods. Feedback 
themes that emerged from the public and how they were addressed are also covered in 
the body of this report. 

Communication of the AAP with Electors 

The City of North Vancouver implemented a range of online, print and in-person 
strategies to notify electors of the Alternative Approval Process. The following provides 
an overview of the activities and strategies, and offers a qualitative analysis of the 
comments received online and in-person by staff. 

Approach 

The City of North Vancouver developed a mixed-model approach using a combination 
of trusted print, digital and in-person activities to reach electors. We worked with the 
analytics available through social media posts, digital advertising, verified print 
newspaper circulation numbers and the CNV website to quantify participation, as well 
as making staff available through a variety of non-digital methods to answer questions 
including having staff available on-call for those who dropped by City Hall to ask 
questions or express concerns. The level of promotion of the AAP process measurably 
exceeded the minimum requirements outlined in the Provincial guidelines. 

Key tools included: 
• A web page explaining the process, the projects, and with frequently asked

questions updated weekly to reflect ongoing questions posed by the public;
• A commitment to responding to elector questions via email within 4-5 business

days;
• Two drop-in information sessions - one for 5 hours on a weekday and one for

fours hours on a weekend - inviting the public to ask questions of senior staff
from the DCAO's office, finance, planning and parks among others;

• Media outreach to try to gain coverage of the AAP process with several outlets
printing stories on process;

• Five paid print advertisements in the North Shore News to reach those who may
not participate online. Two of these were legislatively required;

• Online organic and paid advertising on CNV's media channels and on Glacier
Media publications to City of North Vancouver residents.

Metrics 
• Number of individual feedback occurrences received (by phone, email, letter): 20
• Number of website visits for the MP page including the News Release: 1880

Page 3 of 7 



REPORT: Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 - Petition Results 
Date: April 24, 2024 

• Two information sessions - March 27th (7 participants) and April 13th (22
participants): 29 participants in total

• 21 organic social media posts on CNV X, Facebook and lnstagram channels with:
o Impressions (the number of times content appears on screen): 20,926
o Reach: (the number of individual users reached): 18,262

• Inclusion in City News, CNV's organizational newsletter x 5 weeks - subscription
is 1047;

• Five print ads in North Shore News. Verified circulation numbers: North Shore
News prints and circulates 57,000 copies weekly;

• Media coverage in the North Shore News print and digital editions, including a
page featuring letters to the editor, as well as coverage on the Daily Hive
website;

• Print posters set up in Harry Jerome and John Braithwaite Community Centres;
• Digital advertising on the front page of the digital edition of the North Shore News

targeted only to people inside the City of North Vancouver for 12 days with
40,000 impressions; and

• City Hall table with materials and forms and staff available to answer questions
on request.

Qualitative Analysis 

In a qualitative analysis of input received (by phone, in-person, email, letter) and a 
summary of concerns and questions posed by participants in two information sessions, 
staff found the following key themes and sub themes raised by participants via email, 
phone and in-person during public input sessions at Council and two information 
sessions. Themes were analyzed using an inductive approach without commentary on 
the sentiment expressed. 

• Process Concerns with AAP
o Key themes regarding the process include:

• Barriers to seniors and others who do not receive or read the North
Shore News and/or do not have access to online media;

• The duration of the response period was too brief;
• Its partial timing during provincial spring break period may have

prevented families from participating;
• Not allowing electronic submissions of signed Elector Response

Forms and the lack of convenience of printing, mailing or delivering
forms to City Hall;

• Generally with the AAP format of asking for those who oppose the
bylaw to respond or a "reverse referendum";

• The belief that the size of the bylaw ask should have mandated a
full referendum; and

• The desire to have a mail-out to every household in the City.

• Financial Sustainability
o The next most significant theme touched on financial strategy and

borrowing including:

Page 4 of 7 



REPORT: Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 - Petition Results 
Date: April 24, 2024 

• Financing for the park projects should have been approved through
the regular capital planning process;

• General commentary about increasing debt levels for the City of
North Vancouver and the approach to debt financing sought
through the MP process including:

• Correspondence and in-person commentary indicating a
growing burden on taxpayers due to municipal and regional
debt:

o There were specific comments about the forthcoming
increasing tax burden on residents due to the North
Shore Wastewater Treatment cost overruns;

o Specific questions about the terms of the municipal
borrowing authority and projected costs based on the
estimated lending rates;

o Questions about the City's reserves and how they are
being accessed;

o Questions about existing debt financing for the Harry
Jerome Community Recreation Centre and other
capital projects;

o Questions about value for money for municipal
services; and

o Getting back to basics on core delivery of roads,
sewers and day to day operations versus delivering
housing projects.

• Park Projects
o The next highest ranking theme involved the inclusion of the park projects

in the loan authorization bylaw approval request. The responses covered:
• Confusion as to why two park projects were included with the North

Shore Neighbourhood House funding request with less information
about what was being proposed;

• As above, questions about why the park projects were not included
in the capital planning process; and

• Questions about the costing of the park projects including how debt
financing was needed to augment capital projects and one, Kings
Mill Park, with developer contributions.

• Pace of Change and Service Delivery
o General commentary with the pace of change included:

• Comments suggesting that the City is moving too quickly to add
density and is overextending itself with debt;

• Positive comments about the services and support provided by the
North Shore Neighbourhood House; and

• Commentary on the amount of density being added to the housing
portion of the North Shore Neighbourhood House.

Page5of7 



REPORT: Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 - Petition Results 
Date: April 24, 2024 

Results of the AAP 

Completed Elector Response Forms were accepted by the City Clerk's Office until 5:00 
pm on Monday, April 22, 2024 and were subsequently reviewed by the Acting Corporate 
Officer. 

A determination of the total number of electors for the City to which this Alternative 
Approval Process opportunity applies is 42,325. The City received 573 valid Elector 
Response Forms and 9 invalid forms. Elector responses were deemed invalid due to 
duplicate responses (1), and elector ineligibility (eg: address not in the City of North 
Vancouver - 8). Therefore, the percentage of eligible electors who validly submitted 
Elector Response Forms is 1.35%. The Acting Corporate Officer's Certification 
(Attachment 1) confirms that the approval of the electors was obtained. 

Accordingly, "North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006" is brought forward for consideration of final adoption. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The City has the financial capacity to service the recommended new debt. The 
Province typically permits municipalities in British Columbia to take on additional 
borrowing so long as annual debt servicing costs (principal and interest) do not exceed 
25% of municipal revenue. Assuming all of the City's planned credit facilities are fully 
drawn (i.e. the $109M facility for the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and 
the $55.?M facility for the North Shore Neighborhood House and City Parks) are 
converted to long term debt, the City's debt serving costs would be approximately 10% 
of revenues, well within prescribed limits. 

The HJCRC financial strategy endorsed by Council on January 31, 2022 plans for the 
HJCRC loan to be paid after the completion of the project with the proceeds generated 
from the disposition of the Harry Jerome Neighborhood Lands, so is not anticipated to 
generate future ongoing debt service obligations for CNV. With that financial strategy, 
assuming the new debt facility for the North Shore Neighborhood House and City Parks 
is fully drawn and repaid over the long term, staff estimate that the City's debt service 
costs as a percentage of municipal revenue will be only 3%, even further below 
prescribed limits. 

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

This report was prepared in collaboration with other City departments, specifically the 
City Solicitor, Strategic Initiatives, Finance, and Engineering, Parks & Environment, with 
special thanks to Gateway staff for their assistance in providing service to the public 
through the implementation of this Alternative Approval Process. 

Page 6 of 7 



REPORT: Alternative Approval Process Regarding North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 - Petition Results 
Date: April 24, 2024 

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

The securing of debt financing enables the advancement of the NSNH Phase 2 project 
that supports the "A City for People" priority included in Council's 2022-2026 Strategic 
Plan, including initiatives to "Advance to explore innovative housing policy that includes 
protection and expansion of rental housing stock" and "Continue to build partnerships 
with other levels of government and housing providers to deliver more housing diversity 
and affordability" and to generally improve community well-being. 

The recommended debt financing will also enable the advancement of two parks that 
support Council's priorities for "A Vibrant City" and "A Resilient City", and specifically the 
initiatives to "Activate Public Spaces - parks, streets, plazas, outdoor areas - for 
residents to gather together, interact and engage in activities" and "Implement the Kings 
Mill Walk Park Master Plan". 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

Julie Peters 
Manager, Legislative and Election Services 

Amanda Gibbs 
Senior Manager, Engagement & Communications 

Page 7 of 7 



Attachment 1 

Document Number: 2501169 

 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

 
 

CORPORATE OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION 
 

 
 
I, THE UNDERSIGNED Acting Corporate Officer, as the person assigned responsibility 
for corporate administration under section 148 of the Community Charter, determine 
and certify the results of the Alternative Approval Process that was conducted to obtain 
the approval of the electors regarding the following bylaw: 
 

“North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 
2024, No. 9006” 

 
Determination of the number of eligible electors is 42,325 
 
Number of elector response forms submitted by the deadline is 582 
 
Number of elector response forms rejected is 9 
 
Number of elector response forms accepted is 573 
 
Percentage of eligible electors who validly submitted elector response forms is 1.35% 
 
In accordance with Section 86 of the Community Charter, the approval of the electors 
was obtained. 
 
DATED this 23rd day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Peter DeJong 
Acting Corporate Officer 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Alternative Approval Process – Frequently Asked Questions 
 

1. What is an Alternative Approval Process? 

In order to secure long-term borrowing from the Municipal Financial Authority, the bylaw 
associated with the matter requires elector approval. Elector Approval can be obtained through 
either an Alternative Approval Process (AAP) or through Assent Voting. In accordance with 
Section 86 of the Community Charter, eligible electors are given the opportunity to voice their 
opposition to the bylaw. If less than 10% of eligible electors oppose the bylaw, then the bylaw 
can proceed. If 10% or more of eligible electors oppose the bylaw, the bylaw would either need 
to proceed to Assent Voting or be put on hold. 

2. Who is eligible to participate in the Alternative Approval Process? 

Individuals who currently reside in the City of North Vancouver (Resident Electors) and meet the 
criteria below as well as individuals who currently own property in the City of North Vancouver 
and have owned the property for at least 30 days (Non-Resident Electors) and meet the criteria 
below. Non-Resident Electors will need to obtain written consent for the majority of property 
owners on title, if there is more than one owner. A property owned partially or solely owned by a 
corporation is not entitled to participate. 

Resident Electors must: 

• Be 18 years of age or older; and 
• Be a Canadian citizen; and 
• Have been residing in British Columbia for the last 6 months; and 
• Currently reside in the City of North Vancouver; 
• Not be disqualified by the Local Government Act, or any other enactment, or otherwise 

disqualified by law from voting in local government elections; and 
• Not have previously signed an Alternative Approval Process Response Form for this 

Bylaw. 
 

Non-Resident Electors must: 

• Be 18 years of age or older; and 
• Be a Canadian citizen; and 
• Have resided in British Columbia for at least 6 months; and 
• Be a non-resident property elector who lives in another community and have been the 

registered owner of real property in the City of North Vancouver for at least 30 days; and 

9!Y 
vancouver 

CITY CLERK'S DEPARTMENT 

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

141 WEST 14TH STREET 

NORTH VANCOUVER 

BC / CANADA / V7M 1 H9 

T 604 985 7761 

F 604 990 4202 

INFO@CNV.ORG 

CNV.ORG 

sfriesen
FreeText
Attachment 2 �



- 2 - 

• Be the sole registered owner of the real property or hold it with joint tenants or tenants in 
common, all of whom are individuals who do not hold the property in trust for a 
corporation or another trust; and 

• Be the only individual claiming non-resident elector status in respect to the real property; 
and 

• If the registered owner of the real property with other individuals, then have the written 
consent of the majority of the other property owners on title to oppose this Bylaw; and 

• Not be disqualified by the Local Government Act, or any other enactment, or otherwise 
disqualified by law from voting in local government elections; and  

• Be entitled to sign this Alternative Approval Process Response Form and not have 
previously signed an Alternative Approval Process Response Form for the proposed 
Bylaw No. 9006.  

 
3. Where can I obtain a copy of the Alternative Approval Process Form?  
 
Copies of the Alternative Approval Process Form for Resident Electors and Non-Resident 
Electors are available at the reception counter at City Hall (141 West 14th Street, North 
Vancouver, BC, V7M 1H9) or on the City’s AAP website at cnv.org/aap.  
 
Forms will be available from March 13, 2024 at 8:30 am to April 22, 2024 at 5:00 pm, except 
statutory holidays.  
 
4. How do I show my support for the Bylaw?  
 
If you are in favour of adoption of the bylaw, no action is required.  
 
5. How do I show my opposition to this Bylaw?  
 
If you are an eligible elector, you will need to complete the Alternative Approval Process Form 
for either Resident Electors or Non-Resident Electors and submit the completed form to the 
attention of the City Clerk’s Office by the deadline.  
 
6. How do I submit my Alternative Approval Process Response Form?  
 
Completed Alternative Approval Response Forms can be submitted in the following ways:  
 

• In-Person to the City Hall Reception Desk, located at 141 West 14th Street, North 
Vancouver, BC, V7M 1H9 or in one of the City’s secure drop boxes.  

 
• By Mail to the attention of the Corporate Officer, City Clerk’s Office, located at 141 West 

14th Street, North Vancouver, BC, V7M 1H9  

 
7. When is the deadline for Alternative Approval Process Response Forms?  
 
Alternative Approval Process Response Forms must be received by the City Clerk’s Office by 
5:00 pm on April 22, 2024. Postmarked submissions received after the deadline will not be 
accepted.  
 



- 3 - 

8. If I change my mind, can I withdraw my Alternative Approval Process Response Form 
after it has been submitted?  
 
As long as the deadline has not passed, Alternative Approval Process Response Forms can be 
withdrawn by contacting the Corporate Officer in the City Clerk’s Office. Once the deadline has 
passed, Alternative Approval Process Response Forms cannot be withdrawn. 

9. What will the $55.7m be used for, specifically?  

The funding will support the design and construction of a new North Shore Neighbourhood 
House. The current estimate for this portion of the project, as part of a larger non-profit housing 
development, is $49.5M.  There are two additional park projects proposed to be funded with a 
portion of the $55.7M in new debt.  Those two projects are the Kings Mill Walk Park renewal 
project (debt financing of $4.3M) and 1600 Eastern Park (debt financing of $1.9M). These 
projects are further described in the Council report titled “North Shore Neighborhood House and 
City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw” considered by Council at the January 22, 2024 
meeting.  Debt relating to all three of these projects makes up the new $55.7M loan amount. 

10. Why are the two park projects included in this funding bylaw?  

The majority of the proposed funding to be borrowed from the Municipal Finance Authority is to 
support the North Shore Neighborhood House project. The plan to use debt financing to support 
the development of the Kings Mill Walk and 1600 Eastern Park projects was also announced at 
the open Council meeting on January 22, 2024 when the plan to use debt financing to advance 
the North shore Neighborhood House project was first made public.  The three projects were 
grouped into one bylaw to enable one AAP process; if processed as separate bylaws, this would 
have required three separate AAP processes.  You can learn more about each park project in 
the links above. 

11. What is the plan to repay the loan?  

The loan will initially be a short term variable loan during construction, with monthly interest only 
payments at variable rates provided by the Municipal Finance Authority (MFA).  Rates are 
posted on MFA’s web site (mfa.bc.ca) and, during the March 22-28 period, were at 5.56%.  After 
construction is complete in approximately three years, CNV is assessing various repayment 
options.  Staff advised Council at its January 22, 2024 meeting that, if Council elects to convert 
the debt to a long term loan after construction, it would be typical to amortize the debt drawn to 
fund the delivery of long life assets like the North Shore Neighborhood House and the two parks 
over the long term.  The Municipal Finance Authority provides debt amortization terms for long 
life assets of up to 30 years.  The Municipal Finance Authority has its long term financing rates 
posted on its website and, during the March 22-28 period, the interest rate on 30 year debt was 
shown at 4.66%.  If Council elects to convert the debt to 30 year debt and does not repay it with 
other funds, staff have advised, given current interest rates, the additional principal and debt 
payments would approximate $3.5M per annum and could be covered all things equal with a 
one-time increase in property taxes of 5.4%.  

12. Does the City of North Vancouver have debt financing on other projects?  

City of North Vancouver has authorized debt totaling $109m from the Municipal Finance 
Authority in support of the new Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre project.  This 
project has been funded to date with existing reserves and no debt has been drawn from this 



- 4 - 

credit facility to date. The loan will be a short term variable loan during construction, with 
monthly interest only payments at variable rates provided by the Municipal Finance Authority 
(MFA).  Rates are posted on MFA’s web site (mfa.bc.ca) and, during the March 22-28 period, 
were at 5.56%.  As noted in the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre Financial Strategy, 
the City plans to repay this debt after construction with proceeds from the disposition of the 
lands where the current Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre is located, known as the 
Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 Document: 2452739-v4 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 9006 

A Bylaw to authorize the borrowing of $55,700,000 for the purpose of the design 
and construction of a new North Shore Neighbourhood House and City Parks 

 
WHEREAS it is deemed desirable to design and construct a new North Shore Neighbourhood 
House community facility, Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park; 
 
AND WHEREAS the estimated cost of designing and constructing the new North Shore 
Neighbourhood House community facility, and the two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park 
and 1600 Eastern Park, including expenses incidental thereto, is the sum of $66,475,000, of which 
the sum of $55,700,000 is the amount of debt intended to be borrowed from the Municipal 
Financing Authority for these capital projects as authorized by this Bylaw; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “North Shore Neighbourhood 

House and City Parks Loan Authorization Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006”. 
 
2. The Council is hereby empowered and authorized to undertake and carry out, or cause to 

be carried out, the design and construction of a new North Shore Neighbourhood House 
community facility, and two City-owned Parks: Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern Park, 
generally in accordance with general plans on file in the municipal office and to do all things 
necessary in connection therewith and without limiting the generality of the foregoing: 

 
A. To borrow on the credit of the City a total amount not exceeding $55,700,000, with up 

to $49,500,000 being allocated to the North Shore Neighbourhood House, up to 
$4,300,000 being allocated to Kings Mill Walk Park and up to $1,900,000 being 
allocated to 1600 Eastern Park; 

 
B. To acquire all such real property, easements, rights-of-way, licences, rights or 

authorities as may be requisite or desirable for or in connection with the construction 
of the North Shore Neighbourhood House, Kings Mill Walk Park and 1600 Eastern 
Park. 

 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2024, No. 9006 Document: 2452739-v4 

3. The maximum term for which debentures may be issued to secure the debt created by this 
Bylaw is 30 years. 

 
READ a first time on the 22nd day of January, 
2024. 

READ a second time on the 22nd day of 
January, 2024. 

READ a third time on the 22nd day of January, 
2024. 

RESCINDED third reading on the 12th day of 
February, 2024. 

READ a third time, as amended, on the 12th day 
of February, 2024. 

APPROVED by the Inspector of Municipalities 
on the 21st day of February, 2024.  

APPROVAL OF THE ELECTORS CERTIFIED 
on the 23rd day of April, 2024. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2024. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 


	1 Agenda
	2 Minutes - Apr 22 2024�
	3 Minutes - Apr 29 2024�
	*4 Bylaw 8959
	*5 Bylaw 9015
	*6 Bylaw 9017
	*7 Bylaw 9023
	8 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements�
	8-1 Consolidated Financial Statements Ending Dec 31 2023�

	9 120-128 East 14th St�
	9-1 Context Map�
	9-2 Architectural Plans�
	9-3 Landscape Plans�
	9-4 ADP Resolution - Mar 29 2022�
	9-5 ITC Resolution - Apr 13 2022�
	9-6 Consultation�
	9-7 Updated Public Notification Report - Feb 13 2024�
	9-8 Overview of Variances to Zoning & Parking Provisioning�
	Submissions
	Public Notice

	10 Bylaw 8960�
	11 AAP for NSNH & City Parks - Petition Results�
	11-1 Corporate Officer's Certification�
	11-2 FAQs�

	12 Bylaw 9006�



